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I am pleased to present the 2011 Annual
Report of the “Center for Strategic Research
and Development of Georgia”. It is an inte-
grated one, combining the annual report on
our program activities with a sustainability
report. I would also like to mention that this
is our third sustainability report based on the
Global Reporting Initiative’s (GRI) Sustainabil-
ity Reporting Guidelines. At present, we are the
only local organization in Georgia which uses
GRTI’s internationally acknowledged report-
ing format. It demonstrates our commitment
to become more transparent and accountable
to our numerous stakeholders about our work
and the principles and values underlying our
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activities. This also helps us to view our activi-
ties in the broader, and more global, context of
sustainable development.

In the report we also try to show that a Non
Governmental Organization may be - and in-
deed is - both a responsible and useful member
of society, and a force that can have a positive
influence on the development of the country
and its various sectors.

We are still trying to manage and improve
our socio-economic and environmental im-
pacts and to make our contribution to the ac-
complishment of the national goals of sustain-
able development. Furthermore, since 2007
CSRDG has been a signatory of the UN Global
Compact initiative. Consequently, we consider
the Global Compact’s ten universal principles
in our activities - including environmental pro-
tection, human rights, labor rights and combat-
ing corruption. All this demonstrates that sus-
tainability issues are an inseparable part of our
strategic objectives and activities.

We realize that sustainable development is
an on-going, dynamic process and that we still
need to do a lot of hard work to fully integrate
sustainable development principles into all as-
pects of our activities.

In 2011 we have started the implementation
of a three-year program (2011-2013) involving
new objectives and approaches. However, the
main direction of our work remains the same
as in the previous program.

In 2011 CSRDG was still active in networking
and creating efficient partnerships with other
international and local NGOs and financial in-
stitutions from neighboring countries. During
the year CSRDG established contacts with vari-
ous organizations from the Eastern Partnership
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(EaP) countries. Together with new partners
- Community Sector Organizations (CSOs)
from EaP countries, Eastern European and in-
ternational CSOs — a number of new ideas and
initiatives were developed. In partnership with
CSOs from 6 EaP countries CSRDG developed
a Position Paper on common needs regarding
Public Administration Reform in EaP coun-
tries. This work was supported by the Depart-
ment of Human Rights and Transformation
Policy in the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the
Czech Republic. The Position Paper was pre-
sented at the first meeting of CORLEAP (Com-
mittee of Regions and Local Authorities of EaP)
in Poznan on 8th September 2011 by EaP CSF
(Civil Society Forum) Public Administration
Reform Sub-working group representatives.

With regard to the promotion of Corpo-
rate Social Responsibility (CSR), CSRDG ac-
tively worked with the other sectors of society
- NGOs, the media and government - to raise
their awareness, and explain the importance of
CSR for the country’s development. We contin-
ued to promote stakeholder dialogue and thus
foster the creation of a CSR enabling environ-
ment. Recommendations to the Georgian gov-
ernment on CSR-enabling public policy were
developed and updated in cooperation with
different stakeholders.

Extensive analytical research - “Corporate
Social Responsibility and Public Sector Role”
- has been prepared for publication. Requests
for CSRDG expertise on CSR related issues in-
creased significantly over the year. A course on
CSR and a CSR manual for higher education
institutions were developed and included in the
programs of Georgian Universities. A CSRDG
expert was invited to lecture in Corporate So-
cial Responsibility at several Universities.

In terms of Sustainability Support Services
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for CSOs, the main direction of the program
was to support the development of social en-
terprise, as well as providing training and con-
sultancy for CSOs. In order to support social
entrepreneurs, an information/analytical web-
portal on social entrepreneurship was success-
fully launched - the first web-portal on this
topic in Georgia (www.cse.ge) This website is
regularly updated, and CSRDG has diversified
its information service for social entrepreneurs
with the first edition of an electronic bulletin on
social enterprise. A number of training events
were held for social entrepreneurs and inten-
sive targeted consultations were provided for
different enterprises.

In 2011, CSRDG's regional network pro-
grams — Community/Rural Development and
Local Government Strengthening — were still
very active in the Guria and Kakheti regions.

CSRDG’s Community Development Re-
source Centre www.cdrc.ge was also estab-
lished. Its main purpose is to strengthen the
institutional capacities of active community
groups and organizations throughout the coun-
try by developing their horizontal links/infor-
mation sharing and networking. The website
also promotes effective information channels
about community initiatives ‘upwards’ to na-
tion-wide CSOs, international organizations,
businesses, and government.

It should be mentioned that a paper “CSOs
and Community Development - reflections on
the Georgian Experience”, prepared by CSRDG
experts, was published in the British Inter-
national Journal - Voluntary Sector Review
(www.vssn.org.uk). An even greater honor was
that a CSRDG expert was selected as an Inter-
national Board member for the International
“Community Development Journal”
(www.cdj.oxfordjournals.org).
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In terms of promoting transparent and effi-
cient governance, the program achievements in
previous years were maintained in 2011. Fur-
thermore, based on the recommendations and
consultancy of CSRDG’s network, transparency
and reporting improved significantly in the tar-
get municipalities and their activities complied
more fully with the requirements of the law.

I would also like to make special mention of
the important research on “Fiscal Decentraliza-
tion in Georgia” and “Strengthening Local Au-
thorities — The Way Towards Decentralization”
which were prepared by the project with the
support of the Delegation of the European Un-
ion to Georgia. This research evaluates the level
of fiscal independence of the Georgian self-
governed units and identifies factors hamper-
ing decentralization between 2007 and 2010.

Regarding environmental protection activi-
ties, CSRDG has been assisting the Ministry of
Environment through several important pro-
jects. The Center was involved in the finaliza-
tion of the Georgia State of the Environment
Report and the National Environmental Action
Plan (both approved by the Minister of the En-
vironment). At the same time, in cooperation
with the Agency of Disease Control and Public
Health, CSRDG prepared the Environmental
Health Assessment Report.

Our consumer rights protection activities
remain intensive. CSRDG has been actively re-
questing adequate consumers’ rights in the legal
and program documents of the Government. A
special project on food safety issues was imple-
mented in 2011. In terms of consumer protec-
tion, CSRDG organized a food safety hotline
for consumers. The complaints received were
checked through spot purchases and laboratory
testing of the foodstuff named by the consumer.
A number of significant violations have been
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revealed in terms of both food safety and the
food labeling requirements. The National Food
Safety Agency (as well as the food business in-
volved) have been informed, and all the infor-
mation placed on the special internet-site www.
consumer.ge . As a result of those activities,
a number of violations have been corrected.
Changes in the governmental decree on food
inspection have also been introduced as a result
of CSRDG efforts.

Finally, I would like to thank all employees
of the Center for Strategic Research and Devel-
opment of Georgia, as well as individuals and
organizations who collaborated with the Center
in 2011, for their contribution to the attainment
of our goals.
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ABOUT THE ORGANISATION

Founded in 1995, the Centre for Strategic
Research and Development of Georgia is a civil
society organization with 16 years of successful
work experience in the civil sector. The organi-
zation’s legal status is Foundation.

Our activity area is the country of Georgia.
Centre’s head office is in Tbilisi and a branch
office in Telavi.

Our main financing sources are grants re-
ceived from international foundations and de-
velopment agencies, while a small share of our
budget comes from services (such as training
and consultations) provided by our organiza-
tion. (More details are presented in Financial
Report, see Annex 6).

OUR MISSION

The Centre for Strategic Research and Devel-
opment of Georgia seeks to promote the devel-
opment of civil society in Georgia by raising the
awareness of the population, stimulating the
active involvement of citizens in decision mak-
ing processes, advocating the interests of vari-
ous civic groups, supporting civic initiatives,
and conducting applicable practical research.
The Centre endeavours to support groups and
individuals that promote social, political and
economic reforms, and contribute to the devel-
opment of efficient institutions for the protec-
tion of human rights.

In short: the mission of the organization is to
build up civil society in Georgia by promoting
mutual dialogue between the Government and
citizens.

THE MAIN SPHERES OF OUR
ACTIVITIES

To fulfil its mission, the Centre has three
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long-term strategic objectives in relation to the

country’s population, Government and private

sector:

o CSRDG actively works with the public for
awareness raising, promoting the involve-
ment of stakeholders in decision-making
processes, and helping the public to protect
their interests.

o In relation to the Government, CSRDG’s ob-
jective is to promote effective designing and
implementation of structural reforms by the
Government, with the active participation of
the population.

« Inrelation to the private sector, CSRDG pro-
motes the active involvement of the business
in achieving sustainable development objec-
tives by introducing the concept and prac-
tice of responsible business and developing
multi-sector partnerships.

In our opinion, all three objectives are
strongly interrelated and their conglomeration
makes a serious contribution to the country’s
sustainable development, raising the quality of
life and building democracy.

The main spheres of the Centre’s activi-
ties under the strategic objectives are:

« Civic development;

o Community / rural development;

« Economy and social policy;

o Environment protection;

o Government decentralization;

o Increasing the municipalities’ accountability
and effectiveness;

 Budgetary processes;

o Consumer rights;

o Social enterprise;

« Corporate Social Responsibility.

For working in the above listed areas we ap-
ply various approaches and strategies, such as:

o Research in various areas related to CSRDG’s
activities (carried out by CSRDG’s experts,
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as well as with the assistance of the experts’
network formed at the Centre);

« Campaigns for awareness raising and advo-
cacy;

o Monitoring of Government activities on
both the national and local levels;

» Revealing legislative shortcomings and de-
velopment of respective legislative amend-
ments;

« Expertassistance (training and consultations
for civil organizations, civic groups, local
governments and self-governments, public
schools, and business companies);

o Strengthening of civil organizations (for civil
organizations in Tbilisi and other regions of
Georgia, and rural youth initiative groups);

 Provision of micro-grants for village initia-
tive groups in order to solve local problems
and to ensure sustainable development of
civic organizations interested in social entre-
preneurship;

o Promotion of partner and coalition work
within the civil sector, as well as on the inter-
sector level.

GEOGRAPHIC COVERAGE OF OUR
ACTIVITIES

CSRDG has a complex approach to solving
problems facing the country, and carries out its
activities on the local (village, district) as well
as the national level. In particular, our activity
area covers Tbilisi - the capital of Georgia; La-
godekhi, Sighnaghi and Telavi municipalities
in Eastern Georgia; and Ozurgeti and Chokha-
tauri municipalities in Western Georgia. The
Centre has been intensively working in these
municipalities for many years, while some of
these programs are implemented by it on the
whole territory of the country.
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Our target groups:
On the local level:

« Grassroots organizations (CBO and village
initiative groups);

« Non-governmental organizations;

« Public Schools;

 Local governments (Municipalities).

On the national level:

« Government and State agencies;

Research institutions and collages/universi-
ties;

Public schools;

Non-governmental organisations;

Large and medium business companies;
Experts in various spheres;

o The Media.

2011 - FACTS AND FIGURES

Employees: At the end of 2011, the total
number of the organization’s employees was 29
(of these, 27 were employees of the Tbilisi office
and 2 of the Telavi office).

doMomnso gnbsbbyma 35R39693mgd0 369330
Core financial indicators in CEL

2008
2009
2010

750353.1
1185659

1 386 585
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Our donors. In 2011 our donors were:

Oxfam - NOVIB

Church Development Service (EED)
Friedrich Ebbert foundation

Open Society - Georgia Foundation
Delegation of the European Union to
Georgia;

Ministry of Foreigh Affairs of the Czech
Republic.

Our activities in 2011 (core quantitative indi-

cators):

In 2011 we were working in Tbilisi and six
municipalities (Telavi, Sighnaghi, Kare-
lia and Lagodekhi in the Eastern Georgia,
Chokhatauri and Ozurgeti in the Western
Georgia). At the same time, we also had
some nationwide programs;

We were implementing 9 grant programs
and 13 service contracts;

6 publications (3 bulletins, 2 brochures, and
a 2010 sustainability report) were published
by us.

Conducted 41 trainings independently or in
cooperation with other invited experts.
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In particular, trainings were conducted for:

5 local governments from 5 regions of Geor-
gia;

102 civil society organizations (from Tbilisi
and various regions of Georgia);

Members of 35 village initiative groups/or-
ganizations in 20 Georgian municipalities;
Provided consultations for 52 organizations
(five municipalities and 47 non-governmen-
tal organizations);

The Civil Monitoring Network, which is led
by our organization, provided numerous
recommendations to five Georgian munici-
palities regarding budgetary processes and
transparency issues. 27 of the recommenda-
tions were taken into account;

46142 GEL worth micro-grants were award-
ed to 14 initiative groups and 4 non-govern-
mental organizations;

Organized 6 public hearing sessions on vari-
ous important issues;

Together with partners from the Georgian
regional network, monitored six municipal
budgets.

Our main accomplishments in 2011:

In 2011, the Centre, in cooperation with
civic organizations of 6 partner countries of
the Eastern Partnership Forum (EaP), suc-
cessfully implemented an initiative targeted
to draft a Position Paper of the Eastern Part-
nership Civil Society Forum addressed to
the Conference of Regional and Local Au-
thorities (CORLEAP) regarding the needs of
the local and regional public administration
reform. On the 8th of September 2011 the
document was presented by the Civil Society
Forum at the inaugural meeting of the Con-
ference of Regional and Local Authorities
(CORLEAP) set up by the EU’s Committee
of the Regions in Poznan.

The Centre participated in a coalition project
within which the Coalition of Civic Organi-
zations prepared a report on implementation
of Georgia’s Action Plan under the European
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Neighbourhood Policy (ENP AP) 2011. The
issues studied by the Centre’s experts includ-
ed: the public procurement and competition
policy, intellectual property rights, decen-
tralization.
In 2011, a group of the Centre’s experts pre-
pared final recommendations for the Gov-
ernment of Georgia regarding the govern-
ment policy stimulating corporate social
responsibility. It must be noted that the final
version of the recommendations was pre-
pared after consultations with representa-
tives of different sectors - private compa-
nies, civic organizations, and the academic
sector.

In 2011, the Centre implemented several

successful initiatives for inclusion of the

corporate social responsibility curriculum
into university programs, namely:

- In 2011 the Centre’s expert prepared a
course of lectures on the corporate social
responsibility for one semester. This course
was mandatory for all students of the
business administration faculty and the
Centre’s expert was invited to deliver the
course;

- At the same time, the Centre’s expert de-
veloped the first Georgian textbook on the
corporate social responsibility for students
of business faculties.

The Centre has successfully implemented

several interesting internet projects In the

social entrepreneurship area, namely:

- In 2010 the Centre created the first Geor-
gian informative/analytical web-portal
dedicated to the social entrepreneurship
issues - www.cse.ge.

- The first Georgian informative electronic
journal dedicated to the social entre-
preneurship issues was also created. It is
regularly sent to interested organizations.
For this purpose, constantly updated elec-
tronic data base was created;

- In order to popularize the social entrepre-
neurship concept the first specialized Geor-
gian web page was opened in Facebook;
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The above listed internet resources allow any
interested person to receive comprehensive and
necessary information on all theoretical and
practical issues and news related to social en-
trepreneurship, as well as about special services
elaborated by the Centre’s experts (trainings,
consultancy etc.) .

o In 2011, as a result of the Centre’s activities
for promotion of the social entrepreneur-
ship, the basis for the 1 social enterprise was
formed while the 2 social enterprises ex-
pended their services.

o In 2011, the Centre’s trainer/consultants
successfully conducted training courses for
capacity building civic organizations. The
assessment showed that 84% of the partici-
pating civic organizations use the knowl-
edge and skills received during the training
in practice.

o The Centre created and started operation
of a Community Development Resource
Centre that provides support to rural com-
munity groups/organizations, their capacity
development, uninterrupted exchange of in-
formation between the existing groups and
wide public dissemination of information
about their work;

o Assessments demonstrated stable improve-
ment of the efficiency and development of
the Centre’s 12 target Community Youth
Centres. This is proven by 45 initiatives
implemented by the Community Centres
independently, without the Program’s sup-
port; this includes financing received by the
Community Centres from other funds and
local municipalities in order to solve their
problems as well as the problems addressed
by municipalities based on information re-
ceived from community centres; besides, 6
out of 12 community groups are already reg-
istered organizations while several are plan-
ning to get registered;

o The Centre’s expert wrote an article “Civic
Organizations and Community Develop-
ment — Reflections on the Georgian Expe-
rience” which was published in an inter-

17

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2011



18

Bo(3098L, bgmb @bymdl dsma Igbodemyg-
dmdgdalb DML, oMbgdmm  xanygdL
dmeab byzg@n abgm@dszomma 3ogdomals
©5394oMgdob s domdg nbgm@ds300l ggam-
om 0@ mMnsdg ao@ebob.

“396@mMab” 12 Lsdadby bomgdm sbamasbm-
o (3960l dggebgded shggbs Lamgdm
(396@M9dal  Log8006mdalb  domoma  gg89d-
Gfmds s LbGodomymo  gobgomsmgdals
3boMmn §gbwgbzns. 985Dy 89@y3gmgdlL ab
399&gd0, Gm3 Lomgdm  (396@Mgdds  wo-
3m300g0mo@, 3Mmamsdol  ©obdemgdals
356939, asbobm@zngmgb 45 abozns@nge.
od o0gmobbdgds 3MMEmadgdal aowobag-
gmo Lbbgs 3mbogdasb s dba(sada-
08989000056  IM3mzggdymo  ©sx0bablbgds
5 obggg 3GMdmgdgda, HmImgdoz bamgdm
3968900l 0bgm@m3s(300by IYMLbmbom
0300335003 9mmdgdds Imaggzatgl. gomme
530bs, bddabbg 12 Lomgdm sbomasbHammo
336@M0@b 6 53] ©IMYanbGMamgdyeo
mEgobodszoss o Medmeybody wafganb-

GMafgdol ggadsgl.
© “39b@Mab”  g4b3gMmBds  Bmadbas  LEe-
Goo  “Lobmgsmgdfngn  mMasbabszogdo

> mgdalb aobgomafgds — LojoMmggmmb

303m(3000mgds”,  Mmdgmoi  353mdz9ybos

LogPmsdm@obm  dMn@ebam  gumbamdoa

“dmbomabgoms bgd@meal 3admbamgs”, bLo-

a90bbdms, ®m3 (396@Mab 94L3gHEn dom-

Bogb LogGmedmeabm “mgdal gobgomag-

dab  g@bomn”-b LogMmedmEabm Laddmb

Bg3Mow.

“396@mMab” 3Bmamadal gomamgddn gsbb-

mE309mgdama bogdosbmdal dgogasw:

- bodndby dmbogodserndgdgdol bsgdn-
0bmdob  bGobwomBgdn  Jomobemmzwo
bsgomoggenmb  306mbdwgdenmdoom  goor-
30em0b60698emem  Imobmzbydlb  goddgorm-
Foermdobs s  8b39M0d35mm 879300
dgbobyd;

- 9J3bo@sb mombo bodo 86y Jyborz0dserody-
&0b boogzosena@mo 36mgmods gomdxmdgb-
@9

- bo8nBby FmbozodscrogBgdolb bmeyemol
306300009300 3FmgFHd9ddn  goomzsem-
0bb0bgdeemn oym swgoermdingn Jmbob-
gmdol dogi 6s8mbyaemo 3mmdemgdydo
@ I9boz0d5em0898930b dbGowsb son
obgorn 3mmg &0 0bs wsg0b06L93zcm0.

IR3MIRN 356300196»330L 36356030 2011

national British journal Voluntary Sector
Review (www.vssn.org.uk). It is important
to note that the Centre’s expert was elected
as a Board Member of the international
Community Development Journal (www.
cdj.oxfordjournals.org).

As a result of the Centre’s activities imple-
mented within the Program™:

- Compliance of the target municipalities
with the transparency and reporting re-
quirements of the Georgian legislation has
been improved;

- Social programs of four out of six munici-
palities have been improved;

- Problems raised by the local population
were taken into account in the Rural De-
velopment Programs of the target munici-
palities and 10 such projects were funded
by local municipalities;

All studies conducted by the Centre in
2011in the field of social and economic
policy include specific conclusions and pro-
posals. 50% of the recommendations given
by the Centre’s experts to public institutions
were taken into account.

The Centre actively participated in draft-
ing the country’s environmental legislation,
namely:

- The Centres expert participated in draft-
ing the final version of two important en-
vironmental documents: “The National
Environmental Report” and “The Envi-
ronmental National Action Plan” (by now
both documents have been approved by
the Ministry of Environment and Natural
Resources).

- At the same time, in cooperation with
the Agency of Disease Control and Public
Health, the Centre has prepared the Envi-
ronmental Health Assessment Report.
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In 2011, thanks to the efforts of the Cen-
tre’s experts, amendments were made to the
Government Resolution on control of food
products and the Code of Georgia on Food/
Animal Feed Safety, Veterinary and Plant
Protection.

In 2011, thanks to the efforts of the Centre
worked on identification of consumer right
violation cases. 1/3 of the violations revealed
by the Centre’s experts have been corrected.
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The organizational and management struc-
ture of CSRDG is designed to ensure a clear as-
signment of functions and responsibilities, and
the inclusion of all employees in decision mak-
ing processes.

Sustainability issues are treated in the same
way as any other important strategic issue at
CSRDG; this aspect is fully integrated into the
overall governance of the organization.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is the highest governing body that
ensures the fulfillment of the statutory objec-
tives of the organization; approves strategic de-
velopment plans, programs, and terms of their
implementation; hears the annual program and
financial reports of the Chairman of the Board
and Executive Director concerning the con-
ducted activities and future plans; approves the
annual budget of the programs; oversees the ex-
penditure of the organization’s funds; controls
the observance of legal and accounting require-
ments.

The Board consists of five members, three
of whom are independent and non-executive.
The other two members serve CSRDG in an
executive capacity, namely: executive director
and program coordinator. The former is also
the chairperson of the Board. Board members
are volunteers and are not remunerated.
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CSRDG?’s long-term objective is to gradu-
ally increase the number of independent Board
members by either replacing current executive
members or adding one or two new members
who will already have experience in the main
areas of the organization’s activities and will
bring new vision and approach to the Board’s
activity.

The Board is an elective body. At first, Board
members are elected by the organization’s
founders, and later, the Curatorium elects the
Board which serves for a period of four years.

Members of the present board (elected in
2010 for 4 years) are:

o Eka Urushadze (Chairperson of the Board);
o Eka Datuashvili;

o Levan Avalishvili;

o David Gzirishvili;

o Otar Babunashvilj;

The Board regularly meets twice a year.
When necessary, additional board meeting can
be convened if requested by 1/3 of the members
of the Board.

The Executive Director, appointed by the
Board, directs the organizations work in ac-
cordance with the objectives and plans elabo-
rated by the Board. Responsibilities of the Ex-
ecutive Director include managing CSRDG’s
daily activities; presenting it at various levels;
reporting on the Centre’s current activity to the
Board; controlling expenditure of the funds;
day-today management of the finances and
other tangible assets of the organization, as well
as responsibility for their adequate utilization;
ensuring unimpeded functioning of the organi-
zation and its sustainable development; staff
recruitment and capacity building; implemen-
tation of other functions required for tactical
management of CSRDG's activities.
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In order to carry out activities in CSRDG’s
priority areas, programs and sub-programs
have been developed which are implemented
by work groups. The groups are coordinated
by program coordinators (heads of the work
groups). The main functions of the program
coordinators are: management, monitoring
and evaluation of the program activities, and
preparation of program reports. They are also
responsible for the activities of the personnel
under their supervision.

Program coordinators and the executive di-
rector also form CSRDG’s consultative body
- the Intermediate Managerial Unit (IMU) or
Directorate. The aim of the middle manage-
rial unit is to direct the daily activities of the
organization and ensure equal participation by
middle-level managers in decision-making on
issues of various importance. Within its com-
petence, the IMU takes independent decisions.
Also, the unit has a consultative function re-
garding final decisions made by the Executive
Director. The intermediate managerial unit
meets with the Executive Director at least once
a month, or more often if necessary.

The Curatorium is CSRDG’s supervisory
body which controls the Board’s activities and
the performance of the administration on the
basis of the Law and Charter; and presents advi-
sory opinion at the Board meetings concerning
the activities and strategies to be implemented
by the organization. The Curatorium has three
members elected by the Centre’s founders for
an indefinite period of time. The members of
the Curatorium work in a voluntary capacity.
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If necessary, upon the Board’s decision, one
or several Expert Councils are created for a
fixed period of time and a special purpose. The
Expert Council represents CSRDG’s advisory
body. Its main function is the provision of ex-
pertise for program implementation.

Employee engagement and participation in
decision making

By effective communication and a partici-
patory approach CSRDG tries to ensure that,
when making important decisions for the or-
ganization, every employee’s opinion is heard
and taken into consideration as far as possible.

Horizontal and vertical mechanisms of com-
munication and engagement are introduced
and operate in the organization. In particular:

« General monthly meeting of all employees,
where every employee can express his/her
opinion and state his/her position to the or-
ganization’s management.

« Within the programs, regular meetings are
held between the program manager and pro-
gram staff, where staff members can express
their position and opinion.

o Meetings of the Intermediate Managerial
Unit (comprised of program and direction
coordinators) are held on a monthly basis,
where, as needed, the program coordinator
can present his/her staff members’ opinions
or comments.

» Regular Board meetings are held once half-
yearly. If required, a special meeting can also
be convened. The Executive Director can
present to the Board employees’ opinions
and comments expressed at the IMU meet-
ings. The Executive Director can also request
the attendance of the respective program co-
ordinator at the Board meeting, where the
program coordinator is able to directly pre-
sent the staft’s opinions.
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o The program Network’s coordination meet-
ings are also held once every six months,
where members of our organization and our
two partner organizations are able to raise is-
sues and state their opinions. The issues are
later discussed at IMU meetings and, if nec-
essary, also at the Board meetings.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Being a civil organization and driven pri-
marily by social goals, CSRDG considers com-
munication with our numerous stakeholders
to be one of the main components of our ac-
tivities. As a rule, within every new program, or
prior to starting a new stage in an existing one,
our target groups and stakeholders are identi-
fied and the communication and feedback pro-
cesses planned.

Hence, GRI requirement was nothing new
and unusual for us. However, in line with this
requirement, and upon making the decision to
prepare the sustainability report, key groups of
our stakeholders were re-identified and stake-
holder engagement in the reporting process
was planned.

The following groups of stakeholders were
identified, priority was given to the employees’
general meeting at the initial stage of report
preparation, and the decision was made to con-
tact them for their inclusion in defining the re-
port content.

Our main stakeholders are:
 Organization’s employees ;

o Donors;

o Civil organizations (partner non-govern-
mental organizations from Tbilisi and other
regions, village initiative groups);

 Our target municipalities;

o Some of the ministries, with which the or-
ganization interacts during our activities;

« Georgian private companies interested in the
implementation of the corporate social re-
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sponsibility;

» Georgian universities where the corporate
social responsibility is included or is planned
to be into the curriculum;

 Addressees of our publications - research in-
stitutes and colleges/universities, as well as
experts from various spheres;

« Members of the CSRDG’s network of experts

o Beneficiary organizations of the trainings
held by us;

o Media sources;

Communication process with each of the
groups was also planned.

Employees expressed their opinions regard-
ing the report content at the general meeting of
the staff. As for external stakeholders, a special
questionnaire was designed for them to iden-
tify the aspects of the organization’s activities
they consider important to be presented in the
report. The questionnaires were distributed to
the representatives of the selected stakehold-
ers (a representative number of respondents
from each group were questioned, giving us
an understanding of the group’s expectations).
Contacts were established mainly via electronic
mail. In some cases, telephone or face-to-face
interviews were held.

The dialogue with the stakeholders during
the reporting process was carried out as de-
scribed above.

Our communication with the stakeholders
is not limited only to including them in the re-
port preparation. As already mentioned above,
our organization constantly stays in touch with
numerous groups of its stakeholders, in order
to identify their expectations and needs, as well
as to evaluate their level of satisfaction with the
organization’s activity.

A variety of communication methods is ap-
plied for different stakeholder groups.

Our employees, one of the most important
groups of the organization’s stakeholders, are
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sent daily digests with brief news about our
ongoing programs. Besides, general staft meet-
ings are held regularly (monthly), where each
program coordinator presents the activities
and future plans for their respective programs.
During the meetings the personnel are able to
ask questions and raise or discuss any organiza-
tional or program related issue, which, in their
opinion, need to be improved.

Our financial and program reports are regu-
larly prepared for the donors, and future action
plans are presented. Feedback is provided by
means of comments on the reports or action
plans. Co-ordination and consultation meet-
ings are also held regularly with target groups
or partner civil organizations (rural communi-
ty groups, coalition member non-governmen-
tal organizations from Tbilisi, or our regional
partner NGOs). These provide opportunities
for sharing experience, aligning different po-
sitions, discussing issues and planning future
activities.

The organization regularly invites our inter-
locutory government representatives, as well as
various spherical experts and addressees of our
publications, to seminars and public hearings
organized by us, where opinions are expressed
and exchanged. Recommendations made by
CSRDG to various government agencies are
also often discussed at joint work meetings.

Furthermore, program coordinators regular-
ly inform the authors of the articles published
in our bulletins (members of CSRDG’s network
of experts) about the plans made for our re-
search activity. The authors have opportunities
to make certain corrections in the plans and of-
fer suggestions (e.g. recommend program co-
ordinators to conduct research on some other
additional or relevant issues).

We mainly communicate with our target pri-
vate companies at different forums and work-
shops, such as meetings of the regional network
of the Global Compact, meetings organized by
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the Social Responsibility Council of the Ameri-
can Chamber of Commerce and various con-
ferences and seminars dedicated to the social
responsibility etc.

Feedback from the beneficiaries of our ser-
vices (trainings and consultations) is received
through special questionnaires that are distrib-
uted to the participants as well as through spe-
cial surveys.

Media sources are regularly provided with
information about our activities through press-
releases and other hand-outs. We conduct daily
content analysis of the main media sources,
and our experts” special comments on any im-
portant issues identified are provided to the
respective Media. If needed, press-conferences
and discussions with the Media are organized,
where they can obtain answers on questions of
interest to them.

Other instruments for keeping the stake-
holders informed and communicating with
them are our internet website and our publi-
cations (regular bulletins, annual reports and
other publications). CSRDG’s contact details,
as well as a request to contact us and give us
feedback, is provided on the website and pub-
lished in every bulletin. This is quite an active
mechanism, and readers of our publications or
website visitors regularly call CSRDG with vari-
ous questions or comments. The comments re-
ceived are collected, discussed and considered
when planning our next activities.

The Centre also conducts fairly regular so-
ciological research with various target groups
aimed at measuring their satisfaction level with
our activities and identifying any existing prob-
lems. (More details about these surveys are giv-
en in the Chapter on “Social Performance Indi-
cators”). Based on the survey results, changes
are made in the current projects and future
strategy planned.
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REPORT PARAMETERS

The report integrates an annual report on
our program activities and a sustainability re-
port, which conforms to the Global Report-
ing Initiatives (GRI) Sustainability Reporting
Guidelines, version 3.0 (GRI G3). Consequent-
ly, it should be read as a totality.

In terms of extent of disclosure, we have self-
declared this report to GRI Application level C,
acknowledging that it has not been externally
assessed. At our request, the application level
had been checked by GRI representative.

The report also meets the basic compliance
as a “Communication on Progress” for the UN
Global Compact (UNGC.). Our organization
joined the UN Global Compact Initiative in
2007.

Reporting period:

This present report covers the period January
1 to December 31 2011 (which matches with
our fiscal year). In some instances, in order to
provide the context and illustrate trends, we
present the available data and discuss certain
programs from the previous year.

SCOPE AND BOUNDARY OF THE
REPORT

Most of the data presented in the report
cover the operations of the Tbilisi head office as
well as the Telavi bureau. For some indicators
the data is only presented for the Thbilisi office,
because reliable systems for their measurement
have not yet been introduced in the Telavi bu-
reau. (There is a clear indication for every such
case.)



bomgol, Mowasbsz mgmegal don@mda gg-
R9OMdom o6 M0l ©bgHanmoa Jgbsdsdabo
s@@o(3bgob babgdgda. ymggma sbgomn dgdmb-
39300 3gbobgd Logsbagdme 360l domnmgdamo
dgbodadabo Imbs(3935dab Bomdmuggbabab.

06390030L 30629ALAL 3O6LIDBRIMY

063560d0l obss@bol aobLsdmzMal 3Em-
39bd0 RaBoma 0ygbgb mEasbadsznal yggme
©mbal ©8653dOmMImgda s ©onbEgMgLbgdem
dbomgos bbgowabbzs ganxygdo.

0og3Ed30Mzgma  Imgbym  396g%3g6@anbe
5 0b53dMmIgmms LagFHom dgbggots, Hma-
9mdgs asbgobomgm, oq Go@md sl Bggbo
mEa560bs(300bmz0L 3608369mmz60 daMawn
353000M580b  8b6g060dol by s Go@md
160 g53dbgdmegl gb bgstndo GRI sbgstnd-
3900L Bm@IoGb; saMgmgg gfommdmagow asb-
3Ladm3gM e MEabads(300L doMman bggeg-
mgbob (@owgdomn s Jofmymaynma) bygmMmgda
daMomn gsbgomamgdol 3mb@gJLEdn s god-
™M3y53000 mEgsb0Ds300b Logddnsbmdal ol sb-
3948900, Gm3mgms 3gbsbgd sbgstndda ob-
gmedazool  Bomdmpanbs  860d36gmmzbow
dngohbogon.

3980098 9&93L bomdmama gbos mgsbads(so-
ol 306y ©o0b@gMgbgdama dbomggdal godm -
0mbgs, Goms asdmagzggmabs Jommgal 3o-
M08 g@mo bogombgda, by mMasbabdsgonls
bogBnsbmdal sb3gd@gdo, Gmdgmms Jgbobgd
doo 006 gMgLgdesm 0bxrmmdsznals domgds
3bgo60dab 8gd39mboo. (b gMgbgdmmoa db-
36ggd0lb  308mgmabol, 3Mommng@odsznabs
©5 3500036 3m3Mboga300lb 3Bm(3gbal Jgbobgd
DBOH™ abzMomgdoom ab. g3. 25).

mEa060bs300L  06533HMBmgdabash o
35679 ©506&9M9Lbgdnmo bomggdobsgsb domg-
o 0bgm@msznal 8bsmabal bagdggmdy,
mEgobods300b Igbgx8968 30, (39mggnm 3Gm-
aMsdoms bgmddmgebgmgdds s sbgatndagdals
bogmm@eabagom xangyds (Hmdgmdaz dgwn-
mEbyb 3mE3m@s30mo bmgosmya 3obybab-
bagdmmdal 3MmaModaol  3mmEobs@men o
3m39b0go30960b  dgbgxgMo) dmobrabgl as3-
mgmagboe  Lbagombos 3GomMadg@ndsoios ©o
9F0mdmogem aobbodmamgl ob sb3gd@gdo ©s

DETERMINING THE REPORT CONTENT

CSRDG’s employees of all levels and various
groups of our stakeholders were involved in de-
termining the report content.

In the beginning, an introductory meeting
of the organization’s management and staff was
held, discussing the importance of writing a
sustainability report and the reasons for basing
it on the GRI format. We also jointly identified
CSRDG’s main impact (positive and negative)
areas in the context of sustainable development
and identified the aspects of our activities we
considered important to be presented in the re-
port.

Following on from this, the organization’s
external stakeholders were asked to identify is-
sues of relevance or concern to them. In other
words, to prioritize those aspects of the organi-
zation’s activities about which they would be
interested to be informed via the report. (For
more details about identifying and prioritizing
the stakeholders, as well as the process of com-
municating with them, see pp. 25).

Based on the analysis of the information re-
ceived from the employees and external stake-
holders, CSRDG’s management, together with
separate program officers and a reporting co-
ordination group (comprising of the corpo-
rate social responsibility program coordinator
and the communications manager) ranked
the identified priority issues and jointly deter-
mined the aspects, and respective indicators, to
address in our current sustainability report. The
report’s boundaries and coverage area were also
determined.

In finalizing the identification and prioritiza-
tion of the indicators, we were guided by GRI’s
principles for determining report contents,
which include: Materiality; Stakeholder inclu-
siveness; Sustainability context; and Complete-
ness.'

1

More details about these principles are presented in the GRI reporting Guidelines (the Georgian version is avail-

able on our web-site www.csrdg.ge; http://www.globalreporting.org/, while the English version can be obtained

on http://www.globalreporting.org/.
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Of these, the Materiality principle is the core
one, meaning that the information in a report
should cover topics and indicators that reflect
the organization’s significant economic, envi-
ronmental, and social impacts, or would sub-
stantively influence the assessments and deci-
sions of stakeholders.

The indicators that had been considered to be
accomplished by the Materiality principle were
later tested by us by the sustainability context
and completeness principles (meaning that the
report should present the organizations per-
formance in the wider context of sustainability,
and coverage of the material topics and indica-
tors should be sufficient to reflect significant
economic, environmental, and social impacts
and enable stakeholders to assess the reporting
organization’s performance over the reporting
period).

Thus, the final list of the indicators to be in-
cluded in our current annual report was deter-
mined (in other words, the report content was
identified).

So, the issues and indicators presented in this
report were selected based on communication
with the organization’s employees and external
stakeholders, and by applying GRI principles.
As a results, the most relevant and core issues
for the organization’s activity were identified.

When determining the report content we
tried our best to consider stakeholders’ opin-
ions. How well we succeeded in this we leave
the reader to judge.

We realize that various groups of our numer-
ous stakeholders may be interested in different
aspects of CSRDG’s activities and, naturally,
this report cannot answer all their questions.
However, as mentioned above, we have tried to
present the most material and relevant sustain-
ability aspects of our operations as identified by
us and prioritized by a majority of our stake-
holders.

1

aRcm ©obgMamgdom 98 360b(303980L dgbobgd abamge GRI s6gs6ndggdal Lobgrddmgsebgmm

Bomonmgdgdo (Jomogma ggmboab bobgs dgbadmadgmoas 3gd-339Mwgddg: www.csrdg.ge; http://www.
globalreporting.org/, bemmm 0bgmabymo 3gMbos gobmagbgdmos veb-gverdze: http://www.globalreport-

ing.org/.
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This report presents information by 19 GRI
indicators. Out of which: 3 are from the eco-
nomic area, 6 - from the environmental, and 10
from the social area.

There is only partial data for several indica-
tors that were considered to be essential for our
organization.

The information presented in this report
covers such issues as: organizational profile,
governance and management approaches, the
economic, social and environmental impacts
of our operations, employee policy and labour
practices, human rights and societal issues. The
report covers each of these aspects in the way
and to the extent in which they relate to the
work of CSRDG.

A GRI content index is provided at the end
of the report for cross-reference. It identifies
where each standard disclosure and perfor-
mance indicator can be found in the report.

If you have any questions about this report,
please contact:

Nana Karseladze

Public Relations Manager

E-mail: nkarseladze@csrdg.ge

Tel.: (+99532) 2 399018/19

Delisi 1st lane 5A, Thbilisi, Georgia

Centre for Strategic Research and
Development of Georgia
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CSRDG’S THREE YEAR (2011 - 2013)
PROGRAM

The aim of CSRDG’s Three Year Program is
to promote effective joint participation between
the Governmental, public and business sectors
in the processes of Georgia’s democratic devel-
opment; and, by establishing social partner-
ship between these three groups, promote the
improvement of the quality of life for socially
unprotected groups in the country.

To achieve the Program’s goals, the organiza-
tion has developed various strategies for imple-
menting its activities:

« Advocacy campaigns on priority issues of the
State policy;

« Informing decision-makers on problems/is-
sues relevant to the public;

« Increasing the effectiveness of these activities
by stimulating coalition and network forms
of working;

« Monitoring the implementation of Govern-
ment Programs and reforms;

» Monitoring the activities of the target mu-
nicipalities and promoting increased ac-
countability;

o Community/rural development;

o Providing technical assistance (consultation
and training) to non-governmental organi-
zations the national and local level;

« Promoting civil society development;

o Popularizing business’s corporate social re-
sponsibility and participation in creating a
favourable State policy for its development.
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CSRDG carries out its activities based on
network-coalition principles. Our commu-
nity development and municipal monitoring
activities in Tbilisi and the six target munici-
palities — Lagodekhi, Ozurgeti, Chokhatauri,
Kvareli, Sighnaghi and Telavi - are implement-
ed through a network created under the Pro-
gram. The Network, which has been operating
since 2002, consists of CSRDG’s partner or-
ganizations — Georgian Civil Development As-
sociation (Lagodekhi), Georgian Democratic
Development Union (Ozurgeti). In Telavi the
activities are implemented by CSRDG’s local
Telavi branch. Network-based activities in the
regions provide opportunities to identify local
problems, obtain a better understanding of lo-
cal circumstances and conditions, and general-
ise these to the national level.

The Three Year Program has three sub-Pro-
gram components: Strengthening Civil Society
Institutions, the Promotion of Good Govern-
ance and the Development of Corporate Social
Responsibility.
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PROGRAM - STRENGTHENING
CIVIL SOCIETY INSTITUTIONS

The goal of this program is to support im-
provement in the institutional and financial
condition of local, regional and national civic
institutions so that they are capable of pro-
viding adequate services and protecting the
interests of their target groups.

The strategy developed to achieve this goal
involves the promotion of civic society devel-
opment through the creation of a favorable en-
vironment and the provision of technical/ in-
formation assistance to NGOs and community
groups/organizations.

The program is implemented at both the na-
tional and local levels via two sub-programs —
civic society development and community de-
velopment.

SUB-PROGRAM - COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

The goal of this Sub-program is to ensure the
accessibility of resources and information for
rural community groups/organizations in
various Georgian municipalities so that the
residents can effectively realize its potential
for solving local problems.

The program strategy is to offer a ‘menu’ of
services to community groups/ organizations
working in Georgia. These include: access to
information (on sources of funding, training,
success stories, etc.) and opportunities to ex-
change learning. Special attention is also paid
to the development of partnerships between
community groups/organizations and strong
civic organizations to ensure the sustainability
of community groups/organizations.

At the same time, the Program continues
its work to strengthen the community groups/



R3BJd0L/mEasbobs(30980L FpaMemdabso-
30b demog@ Lobdmgsmgdmog mEMasbabszngdo-
ob  domo  3oMEGbamEmma
RoBmyamndgdal bgmdgbymdsl. gofms 5dabo,
afdgmegds 2008-2010 Brgddn 3Gmamadals
gofamgdda dgddbomn 12 LaBadby Lomgdm
RaBoL/MmEasbods(300b  godmagFgds, Moo

N0 gMHNMEgdals

doo 390 dgdmmb  Lmgmol  abGgmgbgdals
658mby3e s sanmmdmog bymobagmagdsborsb
3000 mmdamgds.

0930l 336300361980b MabLy@L(396§ M0

bodoonggemb  bLGMoGgaoneo  33mggzgde-
Lo o gobgomamgdol (396@Fab doDodg 2011

Bgmb 3g0436s s 83mdsgws bagstmggmml 34)-
Bozn3amo@g@gddo dmddgmn bmgmal Lsmgdm
RANBJS0L/mEa560bs (30960l dbotsdggmo
G9ba@L396@M0, GmBgmoi bgmb Jgnbymal
domon dgbadmgdmmdgdolb s, mbygzgs 0b-
gmEdaomem 393306b sGbLgdam gamaqdlb dm-
0ol s oo dgbabgd 0bgm@dsz0nl FoBmogdsl
RIOOM 390G mManabomgab.

Lysmgdm xanRgdab/mEmas360Ds(30930b
dmbs(393m> d3B>

F9by@bL396@ G0l dog 399dsg00
bogoMmggmmdo dmgdgen bamgdm xanygdal/
mE3560bs(309600L 8mba3g8ms doDs, HmBgmancs
dg@obamas 0bgm@dszns 84 Lomgdm xangdy/
mEaobodsznady, domn  bdgdasbmdal  ggm-
aMox0qm oxsmzgady, dofomaw dndstoemyg-
390bs s Lodadby Kamygddg, dLgzg dmenm
396omEdn  gobbmEzogmgdym  5g@ngmdgdls
5 3080boMg 3Gimg]@gddg. gL nbgm@dssas
Lomgdm (396@Mgd0b Myy30b o L3gnomyHa
B3I ob — (3bFomals — bobom gobmogbgdey-
mos mgdal  aobznmamgdal Mgby@b396@Mab
390-3m0@ombyg (0bgm@ds(300 3gd-3mHGomby
0b. 4zgdmm).

093ab  3363005M730L  MgbLyAL(396-
&b 398-3mAGomo

2011 Bgemb 0gdob gobgomemgdal &gbm®-
L39bGEAL dobody Fg0dd6s 393-3mEGoma —
www.cdre.ge, Gmdgmoz BoMdmowaqbl,  3v-
dngo  aobsbmgdomn 0bgm@dszoalb  BysGmb
0930l g963000061930L Lo 30Mbby, s BbmEmE
Lomgdm xanxgdaobs s MEMgsbabszngdabomaal,

organizations created in 2008-2010 in order to
improve their ability to raise issues that are in
the interests of their villages, and to lobby for
those interests in local government bodies.

The Community Development Resource
Center

In 2011, the Center for Strategic Research
and Development of Georgia set up a Resource
Center to provide support for rural community
groups/organizations and the development of
their capacity. The Resource Center offers an
uninterrupted exchange of information be-
tween existing groups and the wider public dis-
semination of information about their work.

Data Base of Community Groups/Organi-
zations

The Resource Center has developed a data
base of community groups/organizations that
contains information about 84 community
groups/organizations, the geographic area of
their operation, the main areas of their activity
and target groups, as well as information about
recently implemented and ongoing projects.
This information is provided in the form of a
community organization map and table and is
published on the web-page of the Community
Development Resource Center - www.cdrc.ge
(information regarding the web-page is pro-
vided below).

The Web Page of the Community Develop-
ment Resource Center

The web-page of the Community Develop-
ment Resource Center - www.cdrc.ge, was cre-
ated in 2011. It is a source of constantly updated
information, not only for community groups
and organizations but also for all interested
civic and international organizations, govern-
ment institutions, the private sector and media
representatives.
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This web page gives an opportunity for in-
terested organizations to find information on
some practical and interesting issues, such as:

« active community groups in Georgia;

« community group funding opportunities;

 organizations and programs working on
community development issues;

o thematic publications and useful literature;

o information on consultations, training, sem-
inars and joint activities/events;

« the success stories of community groups;

o local and international thematic news.

For interested organizations, the web-portal
is a good tool to disseminate information about
their success because one section of it is dedi-
cated to the description of the success stories of
community groups. There is also an opportu-
nity to place photo and video materials on the
web site. In addition, the Resource Center will
publish a quarterly electronic Information Bul-
letin and send it to all interested persons and
organizations, with the most important and up-
to-date news and information.

Seminars, and

Training

Consultancy Services

The Resource Center offers interested or-
ganizations consultancy services on various
topics, as well as opportunities for participation
in training, thematic seminars and workshops.
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In 2011, the topics selected for seminars
and trainings took account of the interests and
needs of community groups (based on face-to-
face discussions and interactive communica-
tion through the web-page). After this, the Re-
source Center looked for the resources needed
and invited organizations and experts to take
part and organized the events.

An opportunity to attend training was given
not only to members of the target Community
Youth Centers, but also to representatives of
other community groups/ organizations work-
ing in Georgia. Information about training was
disseminated by means of the web-portal of the
Community Development Resource Center.

The Program provided two types of train-
ing:

« Open training for all interested community
groups;

o Training organized only for the target Com-
munity Youth Centers.

The topics covered in training and seminars
were: “Leadership and Team Work”, “Social
Municipal Programs and the Population Sur-
vey on Related Issues”, “Business Plan Develop-
ment’, “Do-No-Harm Technologies”, “Efficient
Communication”, “
ject Proposals”, and “Management Skills”.

Interested organizations could also receive
consultancy services at face-to-face meetings
with the Resource Center experts. If the Re-
source Center did not have the expertise nec-
essary in-house, tried where possible to direct
the interested organizations to corresponding
persons and organizations.

In 2011, consultations covered the following
topics: filling in application forms for partici-
pation in tenders, the development of program
budgets, marketing activities and planning of
joint events.

Planning and Writing Pro-
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Joint Events and Sharing of Experience

Every year, the Community Development
Resource Center organizes joint meetings (sim-
ilar to forums). This helps to establish hori-
zontal links between community groups and
civic organizations, including opportunities to
exchange information and experience. During
such meetings organizations make presenta-
tions on issues identified before followed by
discussions.

In October 2011, a joint meeting of commu-
nity organizations took place in Telavi. In addi-
tion to the interested community organizations,
representatives from other organizations work-
ing on community development issues also
participated. During the meeting, participants
had an opportunity to listen to presentations on
the Resource Center’s goals and services, as well
as presentations by invited guests and several
successful community organizations.

During the meeting the needs and interests
of Community Centers were identified. In par-
ticular, the participants discussed their wishes
and expectations in relation to the Resource
Center and identified interesting topics for fu-
ture seminars, training and meetings.
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Capacity Building for 12 Target Commu-
nity Groups/Organizations

In 2011, the Community Development Pro-
gram continued to support 12 active commu-
nity youth groups established within the pro-
gram’s framework during previous years. This
was to develop their ability to highlight the in-
terests of their villages and lobby for these on
local government bodies.

As a result of the workshops and training
conducted by the Program’s experts for Com-
munity Centers, the Centers prepared strate-
gic one-year action plans reflecting their vi-
sion, mission, goals and assessment/outcome
indicators. In addition, specific activities were
planned for achieving the institutional sustain-
ability of the groups.

The goal of the training conducted under this
Program was to equip new members of Com-
munity Centers with basic knowledge and skills
and broaden the experience and knowledge of
older members.

The Program’s experts also provided on-go-
ing consultancy services to Community Youth
Centers on issues such as: the registration of an
organization, financial reporting, project devel-
opment, self-assessment, planning etc.

At the same time, Community Youth Center
meetings were regularly held for reporting pur-
poses. During such meetings the Centers dis-
cussed their achievements and success, as well
as problems and the possible solutions.

Assessment of Community Center Activi-
ties

At the end of the year, the Community Cent-
er workshops will be organized in order to as-
sess the activities implemented (taking into
account their program indicators and perfor-
mance quality) and, based on the assessment
results, develop a draft action plan for 2012.
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THE ASSESSMENT SHOWED THAT THE
WORK CARRIED OUT BY THE COMMUNITY
CENTERS IS HIGHLY EFFECTIVE WITH
A STABLE DEVELOPMENT TREND
APPARENT - DEMONSTRATED BY
THE FACT THAT THE COMMUNITY
CENTERS MANAGED TO IMPLEMENT 45
INITIATIVES INDEPENDENTLY, WITHOUT
THE PROGRAM’S ASSISTANCE. THIS
INCLUDES THE SOLUTION OF PROBLEMS
BY MEANS OF FINANCE ATTRACTED FROM
OTHER FUNDS AND MUNICIPALITIES, AS
WELL AS THE SOLUTION OF PROBLEMS
BY SELF-GOVERNING BODIES BASED
ON INFORMATION PROVIDED BY
THE COMMUNITY CENTERS (FOR
MORE DETAILED INFORMATION ON
THE INITIATIVES IMPLEMENTED CF
ATTACHMENT N3). IT IS ALSO IMPORTANT
TO NOTE THAT 6 OUT OF 12 COMMUNITY
GROUPS ARE ALREADY REGISTERED
ORGANIZATIONS, WHILE SEVERAL ARE
PLANNING TO BECOME REGISTERED.

Materials Published for the Popularization
of the Activities

In 2011, a brochure on the Community De-
velopment Network Program was published
describing the achievements of the program
implemented by the Center for Strategic Re-
search and Development of Georgia between
2006 and 2010. The publication describes the
success stories of Community Youth Centers
working in Kakheti and Guria illustrated with
photographs and diagrams.

At the end of 2011, Calendar 2012 was pub-
lished. It contains a brief overview of the Re-
source Center’s goals and its web-portal. The
Calendar also has photographs of the activities
carried out by the Community Youth Centers.

Cooperation with Local and International
Organizations Working on Community De-
velopment Issues

Together with 9 other organizations work-
ing on the community development issues in
Georgia, the task force of the Center for Strate-
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gic Research and Development of Georgia took
an active part in preparing a joint publication
on the experience of working with communi-
ties. This initiative was funded by the Church
Development Service (Evangelischer Entwick-
lungsdienst - EED) and local partners of the
organization were involved in its implementa-
tion. The publication will appear in summer
2012. During the process, many meetings were
organized, articles written and comments ex-
changed. Furthermore, for the purpose of wid-
er public dissemination of this information, a
regional meeting was arranged with colleagues
from the South Caucasus. The objective of the
meeting was to inform Azeri, Armenian and
Albanian organizations working on similar is-
sues about the publication and its general find-
ings. The meeting was attended by representa-
tives of the international organizations Church
Development Service (EED) and Bread for the
World. The meeting took place in Batumi. The
Center for Strategic Research and Development
of Georgia made a presentation on Georgia’s
experience of working with communities.

IT IS WORTH NOTING THAT A
CENTER’S EXPERT WROTE AN ARTICLE
“CIVIC SOCIETY ORGANIZATIONS
AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
- REFLECTIONS ON THE GEORGIAN
EXPERIENCE” FOR AN INTERNATIONAL
BRITISH JOURNAL “VOLUNTARY SECTOR
REVIEW”, (WWW.VSSN.ORG.UK). IT IS
ALSO IMPORTANT TO NOTE THAT THE

CENTER’S EXPERT WAS SELECTED AS AN
INTERNATIONAL BOARD MEMBER OF THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT JOURNAL

(WWW.CDJ.OXFORDJOURNALS.ORG).
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The goal of the program is to ensure that
rural, regional and national civic organiza-
tions have access to services promoting their
sustainability.

In order to achieve this objective, the Pro-
gram developed a strategy which, on the one
hand, envisaged the provision of information,
technical assistance (trainings consultancy etc.)
and financial resources for Georgian civic or-
ganizations interested in social entrepreneur-
ship and, on the other hand, stimulated the
efficiency of regional and national civic organi-
zations by supporting their organizational de-
velopment and improving the skills of novice
managers.

Services developed by the program’s experts
were therefore targeted towards strengthening
civic organizations, ensuring their financial
sustainability and improving management pro-
cesses.

The key to the development and sustainabil-
ity of civil society organizations is their ability
to find and use alternative sources of funding.
The Program’s experts showed real interest in
this issue and, since 2009, the Center has been
actively working on popularizing of the idea of
social enterprise and stimulation of social en-
trepreneurship practices in Georgia.

Micro-grant projects, training and consul-
tancy services provided under this Program
were targeted at strengthening the civil society
organizations interested in social entrepreneur-
ship, improving their organization, ensuring
their financial sustainability and refining man-
agement processes. Information support was
provided through the web-portal, emails and
social networking.
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Informative-Analytical Web-Portal

Since 2010, an Informative-Analytical web-
portal www.cse.ge has been available. This the-
matic web-portal is dedicated to social entre-
preneurship issues. Any interested person has
an opportunity to receive information on the
theoretical and practical aspects of social entre-
preneurship, namely:

o the concept, forms and significance of social
entrepreneurship;

o thelegal framework regulating the economic
activities of social enterprises and civic or-
ganizations in Georgia;

« research and practical examples related to
social entrepreneurship;

« opportunities for funding social enterprises;

« useful thematic links.

The web-portal also contains information
about services developed by the Program’s ex-
perts: thematic training, consultancy services
and an electronic journal dedicated to social
entrepreneurship issues. Interested persons are
given an opportunity to ask questions, make
comments and express their wishes regarding
the web portal.

An electronic version of the social entrepre-
neurship journal is sent to the interested organ-
izations once a quarter. The journal contains
information on recent events and the initiatives
of the various funds working in Georgia, as well
as success stories of Georgian and foreign so-
cial enterprises. The News section provides in-
formation about grant competitions, forthcom-
ing training, presentations and different types
of events.

The regularly updated list of addressees cur-
rently consists of 310 organizations.

In order to popularize the social entrepre-
neurship concept, a special page was opened in
Facebook. Similar to the web portal, the page
publishes information about initiatives and in-
novations and is one more tool for the wider
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dissemination of information regarding social
entrepreneurship.

Training on Social Entrepreneurship Issues

In 2011, the five training courses conducted
in Thilisi on social entrepreneurship issues were
attended by 85 participants. The evaluation sur-
veys revealed a high level of satisfaction among
the participants. The fact that the training was
adapted to the Georgian context was especially
welcome.

Consultant trainers developed three types of
training on social entrepreneurship issues:

o Introductory Training Course: general issues
of social entrepreneurship, its forms and role
in society;

o Training on Social Organization: the steps
necessary to develop social entrepreneurship
in an organization;

o Training on Business Planning: organiza-
tional structure and financial management,
marketing and taxes for a social enterprise.
During the training each theoretical section
was supplied with practical exercises. The
participants developed business plans for
modeled organizations. This approach made
the training process interesting and lively for
the participants.

Micro-Grants for the Development of
Social Entrepreneurship

In order to improve the financial sustainabil-
ity of civic organizations and develop social en-
trepreneurship, the Program gave micro-grants
to those civic organizations that carry out, or
are willing to commence, economic activities.

In 2011, the Program financed the projects of
4 civic organizations, namely:

o The “Union for Therapy of Socially Vulner-
able People in Signagi Region — Qedeli”. The
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purpose of the Project was to open a social
café, “Qedeli”, in Signagi, a tourist area with
many restaurants but no cafes. Cafe “Qedeli”
has social benefits as it employed beneficiar-
ies of the Union for Therapy of Socially Vul-
nerable People in Signagi Region (adults with
limited abilities), enabling them to have their
own income and helping their social integra-
tion. In addition, income from the social en-
terprise is used for achieving the goals of the
civic organization. It must be noted that the
“Qedeli” café is the first social enterprise café
in Georgia.

The Civic Organization “Child and Environ-
ment”. The Project’s goal was to extend the
existing car wash and create new jobs for the
organization’s target groups. The Civic Or-
ganization “Child and Environment” works
with children who are in extreme poverty,
orphans, street children and children with
disabilities. It aims to give such children
physical and spiritual assistance, improve
their level of education, and support their
social integration.
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« The Civic Organization “Leli”. The idea be-

hind this Project was to develop bee-keeping
and use the proceeds for the popularization
of community development issues and pro-
motion of different practical skills among the
local population. The Community Organiza-
tion “Leli” works with the Kakheti popula-
tion (Leliani Community) — namely women,
youths and different ethnical groups - to
provide informal education and help them
realize their potential.

Civic Organization “International Associa-
tion for Assistance of Children with Leuke-
mia” - has a “Parents’ Guesthouse” of a hotel
type which is located on the land of a chil-
drens hospital in Tbilisi. The guesthouse,
which has an area of 250m2, used by patients
(and their parents) who come to Tbilisi from
the regions for an extended course of treat-
ment at the Department of Oncology & He-
matology. The Community Organization
came up with an idea to build a café - can-
teen in the vicinity of the “Parents’ Guest-
house”. Proceeds from the café - canteen will
help the Community Organization to fund
the operational costs of the “Parents’ Guest-
house”

The International Association for Assistance

of Children with Leukemia provides social and
psychological assistance to children with this

mbgm-393s@mmmany 9356 &0d968d0.
mEgobobs300b dngm bomoagborn 3Mmgd-
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lethal disease and their families. It is trying to
make treatment accessible for such patients and
help them receive education and employment.

The prime social goal of all above enterprises
is first of all to ensure employment of the tar-
get groups. Fifty people work in the enterprises,
the majority of whom are beneficiaries of the
organizations financed.

Provision of Consultancy Services on So-
cial Entrepreneurship Issues

The Center’s experts provided consultancy
services on various aspects of social entrepre-
neurship to those civic organizations who won
grants in 2010 and 2011, as well as community
groups and organizations interested in social
entrepreneurship issues.

The consultancy services were provided on
various topics identified during the commercial
activity of the organizations and included: busi-
ness plan development, marketing, financial
management, taxes etc. In 2011, 34 civic and
community organizations received the consul-
tancy services.

The Center’s trainers and consultants work-
ing in the field of organizational development
offer civic organizations training modules on a
variety of topics adapted to the needs of these
organizations. They also offer individual con-
sultations on management and organization
development.

In 2011, the trainers working on this Pro-
gram conducted 14 thematic trainings for 102
civic organizations and community groups in
Thilisi and various regions of Georgia (cf. Ap-
pendix N 4).
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The training topics included:

Social entrepreneurship;

Diversity management;

Project planning, monitoring and assess-
ment;

Search for support;

Strategic planning;

Assessment of the organization’s needs.
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PROGRAM - PROMOTION OF
GOOD GOVERNANCE

The goals of the Program are to improve local
governance and also ensure that the Govern-
ment takes into account the actual needs and
problems of the population in a more efficient
manner.

Based on the research carried out by the
Center and the experience of cooperation with
the legislative and Government institutions, the
Program’s experts developed a strategy that in-
volves analysis, public discussion and the mon-
itoring of the policies implemented by Govern-
ment bodies.

The program is implemented at both the na-
tional and local levels, within which two sub-
programs have been developed: Research and
Promoting Reforms and Local Government
Development.

SUB-PROGRAM - LOCAL GOVERNMENT
DEVELOPMENT

The goal of the program is to promote the
transparency of the local budgeting process in
5 municipalities and ensure that the proposed
budgets reflect the needs of the local popula-
tion as far as possible.

Network activity - Monitoring of Self-
Governed Entities

Monitoring of self-government bodies is car-
ried out in Telavi, Lagodekhi, Signagi, Ozurgeti
and Chokhatauri. The program strategy devel-
oped for the achievement of the above goals in-
volves the monitoring of the budgetary process
and compliance with the transparency norms
required by the law. The program activities are
carried out by means of the civil society moni-
toring network. The organizations that imple-
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ment this monitoring, together with the Center
for Strategic Research and Development of
Georgia, are the Georgian Civil Development
Association (Lagodekhi) and the Georgian
Democratic Development Union (Ozurgeti). In
Telavi the program activities are carried out by
the Telavi Bureau of the Center.

Transparency and reporting - results
achieved

In order to monitor transparency and re-
porting of the self-government units, the civil
society monitoring network developed 15
special criteria for transparency assessment in
compliance with current Georgian legislation.
Based on these criteria, the first assessment of
the transparency level in the target municipali-
ties was carried out in the first quarter of 2011.

As expected, the assessment results were
rather low in all the municipalities. Some of the
common problems were: publicity of the work
of the local “Sakrebulo” commissions; public
participation in the decision making process;
reporting by Sakrebulo members and officials;
access to public information.

Based on the assessment results, recommen-
dations and corresponding action plans were
developed for each target municipality. Be-
sides media related activities, the action plans
involved consultation and coordination meet-
ings with local government officials, the par-
ticipation of network experts in the work of the
Sakreboulos and their commissions, the mobi-
lization of community organizations etc.

Results of the work carried out by the civic
monitoring network in 2011 to improve trans-
parency and reporting in Telavi, Lagodekhi,
Signagi, Ozurgeti and Chokhatauri municipali-
ties are as follows:
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« ALL THE MUNICIPALITIES HAVE MORE
OR LESS INFORMATIVE WEB-SITES OF
THEIR OWN;

o CIVIL SOCIETY COUNCILS HAVE BEEN
CREATED IN LAGODEKHI, SIGNAGI, AND
CHOKHATAURI MUNICIPALITIES;

« IN 2011, THE CIVIL SOCIETY COUNCIL
CREATED IN LAGODEKHI MUNICIPAL-
ITY IN 2010 ORGANIZED 10 MEETINGS
AT WHICH OVER 30 ISSUES WERE DIS-
CUSSED. OZURGETI SAKREBULO TOOK
INTO ACCOUNT A MAJORITY OF THE
RECOMMENDATIONS DEVELOPED BY
THE COUNCIL;

« PUBLIC DISCUSSIONS OF BUDGETS
WERE ORGANIZED IN ALL THE TARGET
SAKREBULOS. AT THE SAME TIME, THE
QUALITY OF PUBLIC DISCUSSIONS -
CONDUCTING AND PLANNING OF THE
MEETINGS - IMPROVED;

o SEVERAL SAKREBULOS PUBLICLY PRE-
SENTED REPORTS ABOUT THEIR WORK
TO THE LOCAL POPULATION;

o POSITIVE PRECEDENTS FOR CIVIC OR-
GANIZATION PARTICIPATION IN SAKRE-
BULO COMMISSIONS WERE CREATED
(DISCUSSIONS AROUND REPORTS; RE-
FINING OF SOCIAL ASSISTANCE RULES);

« THE NUMBER OF UNPLANNED MEET-
INGS CONDUCTED WITHOUT PROPER
JUSTIFICATION WAS REDUCED DRA-
MATICALLY.

Monitoring of the budgeting process

At the beginning of 2011, the direction of
monitoring the budgeting process in the target
municipalities was identified. In particular,
this included:

o The current state of compliance with the
timeframes and procedures of the budgeting
process;

« Documentary and field monitoring of local
budget programs;

o Analysis of approved budgets;

o Assessment of quarterly and annual budget
implementation.
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Compliance with the Budgeting Process
Timeframes and Procedures

The Budget Code defines the terms and pro-
cedures of the local budgeting processes; their
formation, approval, implementation, and the
reporting of self-governing bodies. During the
year the network experts have been monitoring
compliance with the statutory timeframes and
procedures.

It is important to note that, compared to pre-
vious years, the compliance of the target mu-
nicipalities has improved. Despite this, some
procedures still need to be refined and the tar-
get municipalities received recommendations
on this, prepared by the network experts. The
recommendations covered the following issues:
the publishing of the draft budget; the improve-
ment of the budget application forms; the qual-
ity of information in, and accessibility of the
structure of budget implementation reports.

Documentary and Field Monitoring of Lo-
cal Budget Programs

At the beginning of the year, monitoring
areas for the most important ongoing projects
were identified. In particular, in 2011, monitor-
ing of the Rural Development and Social Assis-
tance Programs was carried out. The network
experts studied the programs and related docu-
ments. As a result of the analysis the following
problems were identified:
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o The social programs are not changed or re-
fined from year to year;

o The criteria for selecting the program benefi-
ciaries can be disputed and are often biased;

« People who do not belong to the target
groups often get into the programs due to the
vagueness of the criteria;

« Some programs do not have fund giving
rules, which allows arbitrary decision mak-
ing;

o In some cases, there is an overlap between
different programs, which reduces their ef-
fectiveness;

o The population is very poorly informed
about social programs;

o The Rural Development Program is a Gov-
ernmental program implemented by the
municipalities via transfers and instructions
received from central Government, but their
contents are exceptionally local. Such an ap-
proach reduces the program’s efficiency.

In order to implement field monitoring,
the network’s experts conducted seminars for
the Community Youth Centers, during which
the participants received detailed information
about the Rural Development and Social As-
sistance Programs. During the seminars Action
Plans for the field monitoring of the program
implementation were developed for each mu-

[l
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nicipality. One of the most important activities
provided for in the Action Plan was a survey of
the social program target groups (including po-
tential ones) using questionnaires specially pre-
pared by the network’s experts. These surveys
were undertaken in all five municipalities. The
survey results identified common problems
related to the current social programs, as well
as some violations. The problems included: the
low level of popular awareness about the pro-
grams; the suspension of programs before the
end of a fiscal year due to the lack of funds; un-
clear reasons for denying assistance etc. These
cases were discussed with the municipality rep-
resentatives in order to avoid similar shortcom-
ings in future.

Based on the social program analysis and the
population survey, the network’s experts devel-
oped recommendation packages for all five tar-
get municipalities. Each package consisted of
up to ten recommendations.
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THE TARGET MUNICIPALITIES TOOK
INTO CONSIDERATION 29 OUT OF ALL THE
SUBMITTED RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE
BASIS OF IMPORTANCE AND PRIORITY. DE-
SPITE THIS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSESS-
MENT INDICATORS, THESE 29 RECOMMEN-
DATIONS WERE SUMMED UP AS 4 CORE
THEMES AND, THUS, SOCIAL PROGRAMS
OF 4 MUNICIPALITIES WERE IMPROVED.

In order to raise the popular awareness about
the social programs, the network’s experts pre-
pared a list of the social assistance programs
currently happening in the target municipali-
ties. The list was accompanied by simple, and
clearly formulated, explanations on the follow-
ing issues: the target groups for each social pro-
gram; the procedures necessary for inclusion in
the program etc. This information was dissemi-
nated in the local community with the help of
the Community Youth Centers.

As for the Rural Development Program, it
is important to note that the field monitoring
mainly identified violations that took place at
the initial stage of the budget setting.
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Identification of Existing Problems in Vil-
lages. In particular, it was revealed that the lo-
cal population was not properly involved in the
problem identification process (as required by
the Program implementation rules). Often, the
municipality representatives tried to manipu-
late the population and lobby for the solution
of ‘problems’ which were mainly in the interests
of the bureaucrats (e.g. refurbishment of the
governor’s office). The municipalities received
recommendations on such issues.

COMMUNITY YOUTH CENTERS BECAME
VERY ACTIVE IN SEVERAL OF THE TARGET
MUNICIPALITIES (LAGODEKHI, OZURGETI,
TELAVI) AND LOBBIED ABOUT COMMU-
NITY PROBLEMS IN ORDER TO ADDRESS
THEM THROUGH THE RURAL DEVELOP-
MENT PROGRAM. AS A RESULT, UP TO TEN
SUCH PROJECTS WERE FINANCED (IN-
CLUDING REPAIR OF SMALL BRIDGES AND
VILLAGE ROADS, DRYING UP DITCHES, RE-
PAIR TO KINDERGARTENS ETC.).

Quarterly and Annual Budget Implementa-
tion Assessment

During the year, the quarterly and annual
budget implementation reports of the target
municipalities were analyzed and correspond-
ing analytical documents were prepared. Such
assessments were made by experts and reflected
the experts’ vision (the full version of the docu-
ments is available at the Center’s web page:
www.csrdg.ge).

Inclusion of the Population in the Budgeting
Process

The network’s experts prepared a simplified
version of the target municipalities’ budgets ap-
proved for 2011. The budget presentations were
organized for interested persons in Lagodekhi
(Kakheti) and Ozurgety (Guria). During the
presentations, the speakers and participants
discussed the faults identified during the analy-
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sis of the budgeting processes of the target mu-
nicipalities in 2010-2011, as well as shortfalls
revealed during the transparency monitoring of
their activities. The participants also discussed
recommendations developed by the experts
and problems of the previous period, which
were addressed in 2011 as a result of joint ef-
forts with the municipalities. The presentations
were attended by top government officials, lo-
cal media, representatives of civic organizations
and the Center’s experts. The monitoring results
were widely covered by central and local media.
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The program goal is public discussion and
assessment of policy issues important for the
public, as well as enhancement of the influ-
ence of different social groups in the decision
making process.

The main approach involved research and
analysis of issues that are important for the de-
velopment of the country, as well as the imple-
mentation of campaigns for the protection of
interests identified during such research and
analysis. This task was undertaken with the
help of the Center’s experts, as well as highly
qualified invited specialists. The scope of the
Research and Reform Promotion Program was
not limited to research of specific issues: it also
envisaged public discussion of the results by
means of the Center’s regular publications, the
organization of meetings and seminars with
stakeholders, the development of recommen-
dations by the experts and the submission of
these recommendations to relevant institutions.
It was also planned to monitor implementation
of the recommendations and dissemination of
results via the mass media.

In 2011, after the in-depth analysis of the en-

vironment, four priority areas were identified:

Economic and social policy;

Environmental pollution and ecological

rights;

The Government’s decentralization reform.

Consumer rights.

Within the above areas, the issues that had
to be addressed were selected, based on their
urgency and interests shown by the public and
experts. Finally, these issues were investigated
and campaigns organized to protect public in-
terests.
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« analysis and monitoring of social programs
— at the beginning of 2011, the Program’s
experts received and analyzed the following
materials: the social programs developed by
the Agency of Social Subsidies and funded
by the Government from the central and lo-
cal budgets (i.e. budgets of the Center’s target
municipalities: Ozurgeti, Chokhatauri, La-
godekhi, Signagi, and Telavi).The work cov-
ered three important areas:

- Identification of funds allocated by the
State for social programs during the last two
years;

- Collection of full information about each
program, namely: the volume of funds, target
groups, the assistance amounts, purpose, goals,
specific activities, the implementing agency, the
program monitoring results, documents confirm-
ing implementation of activities;

- Detailed analysis of the health insurance
program documents, and study of the assessment
methods applied for assigning the category of a
Socially Vulnerable Person.

The results of the documentary and field
monitoring of social programs funded from
the local budgets in the target municipalities
are given on page 54.

The research also aimed at reviewing and
monitoring the social and healthcare pro-
grams currently implemented in Georgia. It
contains information on programs implement-
ed in 2010-2011, such as: the volume of funds,
beneficiaries, the list of documents required
and procedures necessary for inclusion in the
program, and the annual program development
dynamics.
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The largest budget allocation is for pensions:
the second largest is the Social Assistance for
Families below the Poverty Level. During the
research, the methodology applied for classify-
ing socially vulnerable people (including math-
ematical methods) was studied in detail. As a
result, problems in the assessment methodol-
ogy were identified due to which some socially
vulnerable families might be left out. Some of
the problems identified were: very low levels
of transparency; the high weighting of the in-
terviewer’s coefficient in the total assessment,
which allows for a very biased assessment; the
overestimation of the value of items owned by
a family etc.

+ Georgia’s economic reforms in 2010 - the
research offers an overview of the Georgian
labor market. It also analyses other impor-
tant issues, such as: changes in the budget/
tax legislation, the State debt increase trends,
the fiscal/credit environment and the Act of
Economic Freedom and Dignity.

Georgias current course of economic re-
forms gives rise to two main conclusions:

- It is unjustifiable, if not dangerous, to use eco-
nomic and especially social policy for politi-
cal interests — the declared social and political
priorities sound more like political propagan-
da.

- There are no realistic economic statistics -
there is no reliable economic analysis, to say
nothing of forecasts, although it is not clear
whether this is caused by the lack of profes-
sionalism or a fear of seeing the true picture.

« The main aspects of managing the finan-
cial crisis — the research reviews the follow-
ing issues: the role and goals of crisis man-
agement; crisis symptoms and phases; crisis
diagnostics and crisis management methods.
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Any entrepreneurial activity is accompanied
by risks that are very diverse. Georgian compa-
nies, including large ones, do not pay enough
attention to risk identification and analysis. The
global economic events of August 2008 demon-
strated that even popular companies failed to
operate in force majeure and minimize losses.
They did not have risk reduction mechanisms
and crisis planning.

« Budget policy in Georgia: problems and
tendencies — the Russian aggression of Au-
gust 2008 and the global economic crisis
had very negative impacts on the Georgian
economy and public finance. Since these
two events happened at the same time, it is
very difficult to differentiate and evaluate the
influence of either of them on the public fi-
nance. The goal of this research was to evalu-
ate the situation apropos the public finance,
and specifically the budget policy, in order to
identify its strengths and weaknesses. The re-
search reviews the State Budget and its main
parameters, as well as their impact on mac-
roeconomic values. It also briefly describes
shortcomings in the legal framework; the
uncertainty of budget funds; the burden of
the State debt and management problems;
the interrelation between the new Tax Code
and the State Budget; budget transparency
and the program budget.

o Economic Overview (2010) - In recent
years the Georgian economy has gone
through dramatic changes. The country’s
social and economic sector has changed and
new challenges and risks have appeared. In
2004 large scale economic reforms resulted
in significant changes in the economy. The
research offers a general analysis of Georgia’s
social and economic condition in 2004-2010,
focusing on the main social and economic
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development trends: GDP, inflation, direct
foreign investments, foreign trade, employ-
ment and salaries and Georgia’s place in in-
ternational ratings.

+ Analysis of Georgia’s Draft Budget 2012 -
The research offers a comparison of all the
budget parameters with those of previous
years, as well as expert assessments and con-
clusions.

The complete version of the research is pub-
lished on the Center’s web-page: www.csrdg.ge.

All studies conducted in 2011 include specif-
ic conclusions and proposals. The importance
of the above-mentioned issues was empha-
sized through campaigns that included public
discussions and seminars, the development of
recommendations for government institutions,
and stimulation of wide coverage of the issues
by the media.



2bogommzgmmb b@odgaogemo j3mgzgdobs
5 35630006980l (39680, bodsMmggmmdn g3-
m3533060L BomdmBomagbmmmdal gabobbyn
dbatoggmnm, 2010 Bmowsb sbmmogmgdos
36mM94&L ,,0g0mmdMago bymabygmadol go-
dmogfgds — 3D ©7396@Momadsz0abggb®.
36mgd@ob 0Dsbo ngm s@anmmdoga mznmd-
dommggmmdab bags®m dmbgmaggdol dgbademg-
dmdgdal gobgomamgds obgm bgggHmgdda, Hm-
amen(30 39ba303smma®o Jmbgdal gmE®domgds
5 306356339, 503 0mmmbM03z0 309)%,9E0Mgds o
d9bozadsmymo dm3bobygds.

2011 Bgemb, 3Gmgd@ob gomamagdda, Ro@om-
Q> §3e03> »BobgorgMo ©YEgbGMmda(300
badoMmggmmdn®. 33mgz0b 80Dsbo gobrmesm
bogdofmggmmb mgomddstmggmn gfmgymgdals
gobgomyn sdme0gdrmdol bafabbol dg-
3obgds s g3g6@Memadsz0nl dgdeggmby-
dgmo gog@mMMgdal 0gbBogoafgds. 33magze
dmo(zogs 2007-2010 Bemgdob 3gHomab.

©m3896@0b Im3bogdsl bob wLEMgdwe
39680l 9dL3gMmEgdab 8ngH mEgsbabdgdemo
LabBogmm  3uMbgdab (3030 Mz0m3BoMmngy-
mo  gmognmob  gmbgdol gm®daMgdobs o
35630Ma30L, sgommdfngo doxg@ofgdabo
5 3qbogndomyMo dmdLabncgdaol Lsgombg-
3bg. mdamobbes ©s bagdsmggmmb Mganmbyddo
a33sGo9e mbobdagdgddn dmbsbaemgmds dno-
m 427-3s bagsmm dmbadbabamgd, bojstamgg-
mmb ®007gd0b yzgms mgomddstmggmo g-
ogamosb.  dgbggmgddy  smaommdmago
bgmabyymgdolb  gobgsmyo  og@&mbmdoals
L3N gdMb s ogdnmgdmma sMsgMma 3Mmd-

mgds  aodmagggms.  (396@Mab  94b3gHEGgdab

80g6 8mddoees dgdoxsdgdgmo sbgsmnda, be-
(3 dbabmmos gb 3Gmdmygdgdn, Jsmo sbaenbo
s bamggm3gboaszam babosmal Bobswmswgdgdo
(06356030l bEmma gg@bos aboemgo ,(396@Eab”
39%-33960%g www.csrdg.ge). smbodbamo do-
bamgdo Logmdgmem ©ogom Dgdmbbgbgdmmo
339300 bamobbmdmogn sbammabal 6sbab.

In 2010, with financial support from the
Delegation of the European Union to Georgia,
the Center for Strategic Research and Develop-
ment of Georgia started the implementation
of a Project: “Strengthening Local Authorities
- the Way towards Decentralization”. The pur-
pose of the project was the capacity-building
of local self-governing bodies through training
local civil servants on issues related to the for-
mation and disposal of municipal property, the
development of local budgets and municipal
services.

In 2011, within this Project, research was un-
dertaken on Fiscal Decentralization in Georgia.
The goal of this research was to assess the fiscal
independence of self-governing authorities in
Georgia and identify the factors hindering de-
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centralization. The research covered the period
2007-2010.

Before starting work on the document, the
Center’s experts organized a cycle of informa-
tive courses on issues related to the formation
and disposal of municipal property, the devel-
opment of local budgets and municipal servic-
es. The events organized in Thbilisi and different
regions of Georgia were attended by 427 civil
servants from almost all the country’s self-gov-
erning units. The meetings helped to identify
many of the fiscal autonomy problems of lo-
cal authorities. The Center’s experts prepared a
summary report containing a description of the
problems, their analysis and recommendations
(the full version of the report is published on
the Center’s web-page: www.csrdg.ge). These
materials were used as a basis for the analytical
part of the above research.

In order to identify the strengths and weak-
nesses of the reform, amendments made to the
legislation regulating the financial and budg-
etary issues of self-governing units during the
period 2007-2011 were analyzed in detail; the
budget implementation reports of all self-gov-
erning bodies, the central budget and autono-
mous republics for 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 (as
well as the budgets approved for 2011) were
studied; the volumes of equalization transfers
payable to each self-governing body were cal-
culated in compliance with the equalization
formula and calculation instructions and then
compared to the transfers allocated in the State
budget for 2011. To identify the strengths and
weaknesses of the formula, all its components
were analyzed and possible changes modeled.
During the analysis, the self-governing units
were divided into self-governed cities and mu-
nicipalities. The indicators developed by the
World Bank were also used for the assessment
of the decentralization level and trends.
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The Research revealed the following facts:

- The biggest share of public finance is still
concentrated in the Central Budget; no sig-
nificant changes occurred in this area in
2008-2010;

- The dependence of self-governing units on
transfers from the Central Budget is still very
high; the majority of such transfers are made
in the form of grants, which deepens the ver-
tical imbalance;

- Only an insignificant part of the tax revenues
collected is transferred to the budgets of lo-
cal self-governing units; as a result, the units
have fewer incentives to promote economic
activities on their territories;

- The process of ‘forming property’ (the trans-
fer of State property assets to local munici-
palities/self-governing units), which could
become an important guarantee of their
economic and financial independence, was
started in 2005 but never completed;

- Transfer allocation is often based on arbi-
trary decisions, thus preventing efficient dis-
tribution of resources;

- 'The minimal standards and corresponding
financial norms of public services within the
remit of self-governing units are not taken
into account during equalization;

- The legal procedure for borrowing funds by
self-governing units is still very rigid and in-
flexible; it practically blocks their access to
the national capital market and excludes the
possibility of capital investments.

The full version of the report is published on
the Center’s web-page: www.csrdg.ge.

The research results were discussed at a spe-
cially organized seminar, attended by experts
working in this particular field, representatives
of government institutions, NGOs and self-
governing bodies. The participants gave the
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study’s recommendations a positive assessment
and stressed that the implementation of the rec-
ommendations was possible. Implementation
of some of the recommendations is planned for
2012.

In addition, the Center organized a summa-
rizing conference to enable the Center’s experts
to inform the public about the results of the
Project “Strengthening Local Authorities - the
Way towards Decentralization”

In 2011, the Center’s expert actively partici-
pated in drafting the final version of two impor-
tant environmental documents: “The National
Environmental Report” and “The Environmen-
tal National Action Plan” (both documents
have now been approved by the Ministry of En-
vironment and Natural Resources).

At the same time, in cooperation with the
Agency of Disease Control and Public Health,
the Center has prepared the Environmental
Health Assessment Report.

In 2011, the Program’s experts worked on the
promotion of adequate human rights legislation
and identification of consumer right violations
and a relevant response.

In particular, as a result of these amendments,
the National Food Agency of Georgia has the
right to check food producers or food stores
without the necessity of court permission
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(which was required prior to the amendment).
Since the amendment, it has become possible
for the National Food Agency of Georgia to
carry out unannounced inspections of food
producers and retailers based on customer
complaints (which was impossible before the
amendment) - although each complaint must
have an attached certificate from a doctor con-
firming the food poisoning case and a labora-
tory report confirming the harmfulness of the
food product.

Unfortunately in 2011, the Government
submitted to Parliament a package of laws that
abolished the Law of Georgia on the Protection
of Consumer Rights. It was replaced with the
Code of Product Safety and Free Trade which
protects only some of the consumer rights. As a
result, the consumer rights were seriously limit-
ed in Georgia: e.g. before the changes, custom-
ers had 6 months from the date of purchase to
return a faulty/damaged product to the vendor
(i.e. it was the seller’s responsibility to prove
that the product did not have any problems).
The new law abolished this provision and it is
now up to the client to prove the poor quality of
a product at the time of purchase.

The Center’s experts submitted a number of
comments to the Government and Parliament
regarding these amendments but they have not
been taken into account. The comments were
also sent to the Delegation of the European
Union to Georgia asking it to take them into
consideration during negotiations between the
EU and Georgia regarding the Deep and Com-
prehensive Free Trade Agreement. The Center
is also planning to use the Civil Society Forum
- the Georgian National Platform for lobbying
on these issues.
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We believe that such examples will help to re-
duce the negative attitude of private companies
towards the strict legislation and Government
entities will be less reluctant to take into account
recommendations of the Center’s experts.

In 2011 the Center implemented a project
funded by the Eurasia Foundation, “The Con-
trol of Food Products by Consumers”. The ob-
jective of this project was to demonstrate that
the safety of food offered for sale is not guar-
anteed and stricter control is necessary. For
this purpose, a Hot Line was established by the
Project. Citizens had an opportunity to call and
provide information to back their complaint.
Besides, complaints could also be sent using Fa-
cebook and a special thematic web-portal www.
momxmarebeli.ge. Complaints received were
checked by the Center’s experts who bought
the products at the specified stores and tested
them in a laboratory. The Center’s experts also
studied complaints concerning labels. All re-
sults were published on the above web-portal
and Facebook. Information about violations

was submitted to the food producer, the shop
and the National Food Agency. If the producer
and the merchant disagreed with the results,
they had an opportunity to publish a refutation
along with proof on the same web-portal.
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Several Examples of Corrected Violations:

« FOUR SHOPS SOLD 4 TYPES OF EGGS
ON WHICH THE DATE OF PRODUCTION
WAS NOT INDICATED. AFTER THE COM-
MENTS MADE BY THE CENTERS EX-
PERTS THE VIOLATION WAS CORRECTED
IN ALL THESE SHOPS;

« THE SUPERMARKET ‘GOODWILL WAS
USING AN UNHYGIENIC METHOD FOR
LOADING BREAD. FOLLOWING THE CRIT-
ICAL COMMENT, THE SHOP STOPPED
USING THIS METHOD OF TRANSPORTA-
TION AND LOADING;

¢« A SPREAD PRODUCED BY ECOFOOD AND
SHATILI WAS CALLED “BUTTER”. BASED
ON THE EXPERT’S INSTRUCTIONS THE
PRODUCERS CHANGED THE LABELS;

« ONE OF THE SHOPS WAS SELLING MI-
CROBIOLOGICALLY CONTAMINATED
SAUSAGES. THE CENTER’S EXPERTS SENT
A NOTIFICATION ABOUT THIS VIOLA-
TION. A REPEAT INSPECTION CARRIED
OUT 10 WEEKS LATER SHOWED THE
SAME PRODUCT BOUGHT AT THE SAME
SHOP WAS NO LONGER CONTAMINAT-
ED;

« ONE OF THE SHOPS WAS SELLING MI-
CROBIOLOGICALLY CONTAMINATED
SMOKED FISH. AFTER THE CENTER’S NO-
TIFICATION THE SHOP STOPPED SELL-
ING THE PRODUCT.

It must be noted that the web-portal cre-
ated by the Center - www.momxmarebeli.ge -
is very popular with consumers because of its
informative and educational nature. It provides
them with essential information on a wide vari-
ety of topics, such as: how to select food prod-
ucts; what to do if the quality of a purchased
product is unsatisfactory; what are merchants’
obligations; what are the requirements on food
products; which normative documents regulate
different areas of consumption. In addition, the
web-portal users have the opportunity of ex-
changing information on service quality or cas-
es of unfair treatment that they had witnessed.
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Using Facebook or the telephone, consumers
can ask questions or for advice and receive an-
swers from the Center’s expert/consultant on
food issues.

In 2011, the Center for Strategic Research
and Development of Georgia participated in
a coalition project implemented with the sup-
port of APRODEV. The goal of the Project was
to analyze the implementation of Georgia’s ob-
ligations under the European Neighborhood
Policy. In this project the issues studied by the
Center’s experts included: public procurement
and competition policy, intellectual property
rights and decentralization.

In 2011, with financial support of the Min-
istry of Foreign Affairs of the Czech Republic,
the Center for Strategic Research and Develop-
ment of Georgia drafted a Position Paper for
the Eastern Partnership Civil Society Forum,
presented to the Conference of Regional and
Local Authorities (CORLEAP), regarding the
needs of the local and regional public adminis-
tration reforms.

At the initial stage, the member organiza-
tions of the Civil Society Forum subgroup
working on these issues used the methodology
and questionnaires developed by the Center for
Strategic Research and Development of Geor-
gia to collect information about the challenges
faced by their countries in terms of public ad-
ministration reform. Based on the analysis of
this information, the Center’s experts drafted
the text of a Position Paper consisting of four
parts: 1) Introduction: which stressed the im-
portance of the Eastern Partnership Initiative
for establishing good governance and democ-
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racy in the member countries; 2) Needs and
challenges of the local self-government reform;
3) Needs and challenges of reforms at the
regional level; 4) Recommendations for both
the EU Regional Committee and the local au-
thorities of the member countries.

In August 2011, a workshop of the Public
Administration Reform Subgroup of the Civil
Society Forum (PAR SWG of CSF) took place
in Batumi. The main item on the workshop’s
agenda was discussion of the draft Position Pa-
per. Based on the ideas generated at this event,
the Center’s experts finalized the document. On
the 8th of September 2011 the document was
presented by the Civil Society Forum at the in-
augural meeting of the Conference of Regional
and Local Authorities (CORLEAP) set up by
the EU’s Committee of the Regions in Poznan.
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PROGRAM - PROMOTION OF THE
DEVELOPMENT OF CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The goal of the program is to support the intro-
duction and development of corporate social
responsibility in Georgia.

The strategy developed to achieve the Pro-
gram objectives involved working with:

Large businesses to enhance their awareness
of the essence of corporate social responsibil-
ity, the forms and instruments of its implemen-
tation — as well as improving access to expert
knowledge on the issue

Different segments of civil society (civic or-
ganizations, the media and Government insti-
tutions) to enhance their awareness of corpo-
rate social responsibility, stress its importance
for the country’s development, support dia-
logue between stakeholders and thus create a
favorable environment for the development of
corporate social responsibility and popularize
the idea.

The Promotion of Corporate Social Re-
sponsibility through Government Policy

One of the important goals of the Project
was to support the development of Govern-
ment policies which would promote the take-
up of corporate social responsibility. In 2010,
the Center finished working on research called
“Corporate Social Responsibility and the Role
of the Public Sector” (an analytical study with
recommendations for the Government of
Georgia). The research was conducted by the
Center in cooperation with several Georgian
and foreign experts in corporate social respon-
sibility, economics and justice. As a result, the
study addresses in depth the different legal, so-
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cial and economic aspects of corporate social
responsibility.

IN 2011, ONE OF THE CENTER’S EXPERTS
PREPARED FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR THE GOVERNMENT OF GEORGIA RE-
GARDING ITS POLICIES TO STIMULATE
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY. IT
MUST BE NOTED THAT THE FINAL VER-
SION OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS WAS
PREPARED AFTER CONSULTATIONS WITH
REPRESENTATIVES FROM PRIVATE COMPA-
NIES, CIVIC ORGANIZATIONS, AND ACA-
DEMIA. AS A RESULT, THE RECOMMENDA-
TIONS TAKE INTO ACCOUNT VIEWS OF A
LARGE PERCENTAGE OF STAKEHOLDERS.

Publication of the analytical report and rec-
ommendations is planned for 2012.

In October 2011, the Center organized a
workshop dedicated to the stimulation of corpo-

75

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2011



a5bbogs. 39Mdme, dgbz9Mady gsdsmomema
0bggbos dggbm: bagdomggmmdn 3m@3mEs3o-
o bmgosmamo 3sbmbobdggdmmdal bgmdga-
Bymda  Lobgmdbogm  3mmo@ngzol  dgbademm
308oMomgdgdlb, bmgosmamo  3sbyboldag-
dmmdab gobgnmamgdol bgmdgdbymda gotgdmb
Rodmyamndgdal 3Mm3gbdn Lobdmasmgdnga
mE3560bs(30980L Fmbsbamagmdol bamabblb o
LabymBBogmb Mmmb 88839 3Gim(39Lbda.

Jm63m60(30'3@n bmenaﬂ,ﬂﬁn 3obmbnb333-
Bgmbnb JmSGquBnnb 3(')3'3@060%0(300

gotom  babdmgswmgdada
o bogosmg®n  3sbyybobdggdmmdol  3mb-
G98Eo0Lb 3m3nmamadszool abbom, ,(396-
&Mab* og dm3Dos s Ma8gbndyg 658Y36
a0bgmda (,24 Losmn®, ,obsma Mmomds®) godm-
J3096@> LEOGgdab 3ogera, GmBgmog gb-
gdm@s  bmgosmy@o  3obybaldggdmmdal
35630006980l s©gdom bgaszmgbsl J39y-
Bob gobgomamgdady s domsgmmdal Hmeb
Logofmggmmdn  3mEm3mEsogmo  bmgosm-
a0 3obgbobdagdmmdal  bgmdgbymdsbe
©> obgMagedn. gofes odabs, ,(396@Mab*
9dL3gMmE3s  Bmadbas  gM(zgmo  sbseman-
3060 LGS ,3MA3MES (3099 bmznomyHo
3obybnbdagdmmds s Logstm  Lgd@meab
Mo, HmIgmo 398mdzgybos ,(396@Mab®
Mgagmofmm  dommg@gbda.  LEGNS aob-
3nogbomo aym Lsgomboom ©s0b@gfMgbgdamao
Lbgoabbgs LygMmb g4L3gMEGgdobogal ©s
80bbo abobogms Jzgysbeda 3m@m3mEs oo
begooem®o 3abybobdggdmmdol gobgomatg-
b0l bamsbsm LabgmdBogm 3mmo@ozob dg-
dmdoggdal 360d369mmdol BomdmAgbsl s o3
Lo goobal sg@momadszasb.

33 (309)-

3MB3mEs30ma bmgasmygMa 3sbybabdgg-
dmmdab  LBs3mgdalb s65Ma30b bgmdgb-
gmds LadoGaggmmb 4dsmmaglb LabBsgmygd-

9330

qdb3gmEgdob  Bogm  RoGemgdymds  33-
939935 ©d  Lowabimbom  Jgbggomgddy
308mmJdnmds dmbobMgdgdds shzgbs, ™3
Logofmggmmdn  bmgnsmama  3sbybabdgg-
demmdol gobznmamgdol gfom-gMon dgdagg®-
bgdgmo god@mns bmsosmyma 3Mmygd@gdab
a0bbm& (309mgdol dgommgdabs s dnam3dgod-
ab dgbobgd (3mwbals s 3m839896(300L b 3emg-

76

IR3MIRN 33630036 I3NL 96336030 2011

rate social responsibility through Government
policy. The workshop participants were experts
from public institutions, private companies and
civil society. The goal of the workshop was to
promote this issue and discuss related problems
and possible solutions, including: the possible
direction of Government policies in support of
corporate social responsibility, the participa-
tion of civic organizations in the formation of
an environment favorable to the development
of corporate social responsibility and the Gov-
ernment’s role in the process.

The Popularization of the Concept of Corpo-
rate Social Responsibility

In order to ensure the widest possible popu-
larization of the concept of corporate social re-
sponsibility, the Center prepared and published
articles in several leading newspapers (“24
Hours”, “Akhali Taoba”) on the positive role
played by corporate social responsibility in the
country’s development and the Government’s
role in its promotion.

At the same time, the Center’s experts pre-
pared a major analytical article on “Corporate
Social Responsibility and the Role of the Public
Sector”. The article was published in the Center’s
periodic bulletin and was aimed at those work-
ing in a wide variety of areas interested in this
issue. The objective of the article was to stress
the importance of developing proper Govern-
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2010 Bemob 0939809630 3oggobool d0bbgL
LgmMmod godmogdgs ab@gMgbo sbaema boemgd-
o™ 3aebab ©sbymagady.

030L LOBVII3ITDBY, »B336&6HNL
JdL3IAMB3Y 2011 BITL 3MO3BOIRY IMOI-
LJIFILEMNOBN (5 3AIRNGNO60) LOKIT-
GOM 3IALO SMAEIMEAIGNIR LMBNIRIA
30LIBAL33I3ITNMB3ODBI, MMIITNB LO3-
OTRIBITMY 30DB6IL dRINENLEMNEMI-
30L VOIIVXBGISHNL I3ITY LGIRIEABN-
LOXAI3NOL. MM ,BI6GAOLY ITLIIGSN
30633IX 0Jd6d WIIBNIA3NL RILOBGIMI-
ddR®,

30Ebalb  30Dobos BoMB8moagbs dguJdbsb
LEM®IBBIOL  gMmBBmEsommo  bmgose-
a0 3abybobdggdmmdol  Momdal,  doo-
oo  3Mab(3039d0bs s 3M33mbgbEgdal,
dobo Rsdmysmodgdal obEmE0abs s Bobo-
306mmdgdolb dgbobgd, 88 bggmmdo s®bgdgymo
&9brgb-
306&ggb@0b
dgbabgd, samgmgg 3mbiMg@mmo 3md3sbngdoa-

LogFmedmEobm  gs8m(zomgdals,
(30900bs 5 dEanmmdMago
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Lo g3056mds3n gMB3MGS3ommo bmgnsem®a
3obyybolbdggdmmdal  LEbsMEGool  @sb-

ment policies for the promotion of corporate
social responsibility.

Introduction of the Corporate Social Responsi-
bility Curriculum in Universities

Research conducted by experts, and ideas
developed during subsequent discussions,
made it clear that one of the obstacles to the
development of corporate social responsibility
concepts in Georgia is a lack of general knowl-
edge regarding social project implementation
methodologies and approaches. The inclusion
of a corporate social responsibility curriculum
in university programs is an effective way of
addressing this problem. Thus, the new gen-
eration of managers will acquire basic skills and
knowledge in the field of the corporate social
responsibility. As a result, managers, already fa-
miliar with the issue, will be able to introduce
CSR approaches and values in their companies.
Considering all the above circumstances, the
Center believes that it is important to include
corporate social responsibility in the curricula
of business schools/universities in Georgia and
implement a curriculum and related activities
to achieve this goal.

In December 2010, the Caucasus School of
Business expressed an interest in introducing
CSR teaching to their programs.

BASED ON THIS, IN 2011 THE CENTER’S
EXPERT PREPARED A COURSE OF LECTURES
ON CSR FOR ONE SEMESTER (5 CREDITS).
THIS COURSE IS MANDATORY FOR ALL
STUDENTS IN THE BUSINESS ADMINISTRA-
TION FACULTY AND THE CENTER’S EXPERT
WAS INVITED TO DELIVER THE TEACHING.

The goal of the course is to give students
general information about the main principles
and components, the history of, and precondi-
tions for the development of CSR (accumulated
through international experiences), trends and
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local context for corporate social responsibility,
its importance for particular companies and the
positive results of adopting CSR policies. The
course will also inform students about mecha-
nisms for introducing and implementing cor-
porate social responsibility, transparency and
reporting in a private company.

In response to the request of the Caucasus
School of Business, this course will be included
in the curriculum for 2012.

It is important to note that on 9th Febru-
ary 2011, four leading universities — the Cau-
casus School of Business, the Free University,
the Black Sea International University and the
Georgian-American University signed a Mem-
orandum of Cooperation for the promotion of
corporate social responsibility. In future, this
will assist the inclusion of the subject in the
curriculum of other Georgian universities.

The Development and Publication of a Manual
on Corporate Social Responsibility in Georgian

In October 2011, the Center’s expert worked
on the development of a Georgian textbook on
corporate social responsibility for students of
business faculties.

The Manual covers various CSR related is-
sues such as: the concept, terminology, scien-
tific theories, and main regulatory instruments;
a general overview of international experiences,
and a detailed review of some of the key ele-
ments for the implementation of corporate so-
cial responsibility by commercial companies.

The Manual is based on scientific literature
available in this field. It takes into account the
current social, political, economic, and legal
environment in Georgia and the experience of
Georgian companies.



303m30mgdsl 93 bgggMmao.
Bogbo BomImomaqbl Lobbogmm Lobgmadd-

0356gmmb  Logofmggmmlb  dommgbo  bab-

Bogmgdmydols 30bbgb B93NmB9&goab
LEM©IBBJdabs o  3MmgygbmMgdabomgab.
0go  @ogbdamagds  sbggg  Jomormm  dadbgl

3M3356098L  Lagmmamo LmnamyMa 3abiyb-
0b3ggdmmdol gs630maMgdada, s3sbmsb, Lb-
3500bbgs Ladmgomogm oy Logdb3gHGm me-
3560bo(3098L,  Mm3mgdai  LajeMomgzggmmdo
3mM3mEsogmo  bmnsmyco  3abybalidgg-
Senmdol bymdgbymdal abobeggb 80bbaw. Lob-

qe03dmgebgmmb go8m(398s ©aggadaemas 2012
Beoabamgob.

The Manual is intended for business faculty
students and professors in Georgian universi-
ties. It will help the country’s private compa-
nies implement corporate social responsibility
in their commercial activities. It will also help
various civil society and professional organiza-
tions (whose goal is to promote corporate so-
cial responsibility) in Georgia. Publication of
this Manual is planned for 2012.
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OUR ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

EC 1 - d943bomon o asobobomgdmma g3mbm-
do3nco mamgdnmgds - dgdmbogmad-
ob, 303006s6g Lobo@dmm batgqdal,

3bsDmaMgdal,

35393990 dgdmBodyymmdgdabs s

056533 m3gmms

Lodmasmgdabomgal gomgdama bbgs
ab3gb@ogngdals, a09bs6oemgdgma
dmggdab, sbgsg 3odo@omal d0dbmeg-
dmgdobs o Labgmdbogmbamgal

3505600 Mbbgdals Rsmgmoo.

2011 Bgemb ,,(396@E0b* d0gM bogMHmedmmabm
BMbgb0©sb, amabGgdal Lobno, dmbowma
®obbo dgomaqbes 671 519 moemb, Moz d3gybab
03mMbm30 3530 Rogdema oMo d306g 0b3ggb-
03005 Az9b60 Bm3alb mMasbods(znabomzgal;

B396 dogt asbgymo LgFgobgdowsb (EMg-
Bobagdo s 3mbLbym@ozngdn) domgdayma dg-
dmbogmadn dgoggbos 125 734 moml;

3Mma@madnm  bogdosbmdadg aobgmma  be-
m3gMsom batggdol meogbmds 3o — 833 361
mafb; 83 09bboesb, 303MmaMmabBgdol Labom
2a0mmdM030 093g80b aobgomatgdsbs s nb-
BOLEOYJE 0l aobzomstgdsda Rewgdmmn
oym 151 028 moto;

05653d6MImgdobocmzal gswsboama bge-
33L7d0b MEgbmds dgoggbos 478 060 momb;

b Lobgmdbogm doyxg@dn Lbgowsbbgs
a505boba©al babnom dg@sbaemn mabbs — 119514
oMb,

4399mo 3mygeboem (3bFomdn omndNmo
o60b Bamdmeg gbaema 2011 Byl hgqgbo mmasb-
0b300b bogddnsbmdal g3mbmdognmo dohzqb-
90 gd0, B3 s babbmgdaol dmdMomdao,
oby dgdmbagmgdoms s bafggdom  sobob-
9%o. (3bGomdn Bomdmmagborma  dmbs(3939d0
95399db6gds sl dog d93mB3gdaem Brman®
3065bLM 5635603L (ab. obstomn 6).
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EC 1 - Direct economic value generated and
distributed - including income, current
direct expenses, staff remunerations,
donations and other investments made
for the public, undistributed profit, as
well as the amounts paid to providers of
the capital and to the State.

In 2011 grants attracted by our organization
from international funds amounted to GEL
671 519 - no small investment in the Georgian
economy by an organization of our size.

Income earned by our service provision
(trainings and consultations) was GEL 125 734.

Operational expenses on program activi-
ties amounted to GEL 833 361 - out of this, the
amount invested as micro-grants in local com-
munity and infrastructure development was
GEL 151 028;

Staff salaries equalled GEL 478 060;

119 514 GEL was paid in various taxes to the
state budget.

The table below presents a breakdown of our
economic performance indicators for 2011, ex-
pressed by cash flow, i.e. by income and expens-
es. (The financial data presented in the table are
derived from the audited annual accounts) - see
the Annex 6 in the end).



0bngomsmn®o dgdmadbamgzgmgdabasb domgdymo mabbgdo

From individual contributions

b d93mbogmgdo /Total Income

Lom3gMazom bofggda / Operating expenses

LobgmdBogmbsomgal gowaboamo msbbgda (gosbsbawgdo, xoMadgda

s 5.9.) / Payments to government (taxes etc.)

15 304

812 557

411 671
119 514

g babbmgdo s doma g3g0ogomgb@n 3gfammals dmeml

Excess of revenue over expences

*

mobbgdo  domomgdymos  LadoMmggemmmb
9fmgbam gormm@oeda (mafda). 2011 Bl
oMol badgamm 39@bo g3Hmbomab dnde-
Gogdoo dgoanbes: 1 g36m - 2,3468 maomo.

EC 8 - 3m3g@zommo, bo@nfom ob Labmao-
mgdabomngals Laboggom/bagdggm-
dmd8gom  Lo43056mdob?  ggm@Ioom

0bgz@ab@O @ mEodo gobbmzngmg-
0 0639L@ 030900 s bLadmasmgd-
obamgab Lobamggdemm dmaLabymgdals
306300056989, obgzg 93 gbom Imbog-

bomo bgaogmgbs.

2011 Bgemb ogdnb gobgomamgdal 3Gmg@adals
BoMamgdda 9330 Rogdmma 0bggb@nzagdo
Jdgomagbos 46142 oMb, 5¢bodbyma 0bggl-
030900 dmazogb bmgmab Lomgdm gameygdal
dgbodmgdmmdsms gadmngmgdabe s bam3gHe-
(300 b gdol dbobsdramMgdmaw go393nm
D3bbol (ab. 3MmaMedymo sbgsmadn, ag. 41).
ol Jgogaswsi bomgdm xanxgdds dgdmgl
3593Mdgmadnboo @bgombamgds s Lbgo-
obbgs Bgommgdosb ©ads@gdomo 53nbsblbgd-
ab dmDogs 93d0 s@bgdgma 3Gmdmagdgdols
dmboggeofgdmow (ob. EC 9 s 0sbstma 3).

55971

* The sums are given in GEL, the Georgian
national currency. In 2011, the average ex-
change rate was 2,3468GEL to 1 Euro.

EC 8 - Development and impact of infrastruc-
ture investments and services provided
primarily for public benefit through
commercial, in-kind, or pro bono en-
gagement.

In 2011, investments made in communi-
ties within the framework of the Community
Development Program equalled GEL 46 142.
These investments were used for capacity build-
ing of rural community groups and financing of
operating expenses (see: Program Report, page
41). As a result, the community groups man-
aged to continue operation and attract addi-
tional financing from different sources in order
to solve problems of their communities (see:
EC9 and Appendix N 3).

2 Commercial, in-kind or pro bono.
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Besides, within the Civic Organization Ca-
pacity Building Program, the Organization
supports the social entrepreneurship develop-
ment. In 2011, the investments made within
this Program equalled GEL 35 815. These in-
vestments consisted of grants given to social
enterprises as starting capital for expansion of
existing businesses.

In 2011, three projects were financed within
the framework of the Social Entrepreneurship
Program, one of which was implemented in
Thilisi and the other two - in regions. Grants
were given to the following organizations:

1.  The Civic Organization “Child and Envi-
ronment” — The Civic Organization “Child and
Environment” works in Tbilisi with children
and teenagers from risk groups and street chil-
dren. The organization founded Healthy En-
vironment Ltd. in order to extend the existing
car wash/chemical cleaning services and create
additional jobs for 3 more youths. The goal of
this project is on the one hand to provide jobs
for sell competitive groups of the population
and on the other hand to use the revenues as
alternative sources of funding the organization’s
projects and programs.

2. The Civic Organization “Leli” - works
in the Leliani village of Lagodekhi municipal-
ity. Its goal is to address community problems
and to support informal education of the popu-
lation. Within this Project the organization de-
veloped bee-farming and established its train-
ing center. As a result, the community youths
received an opportunity to study bee farming
and receive employment. The revenues are used
for the organization’s needs.

3. The Civic Organization “Qedeli” - pro-
vides social services to people with limited abil-
ities. Its goal is social integration of people with
limited abilities and their occupational therapy.
The organization has a dwelling for people with
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obo obdofMgdoma(z 8358 gd000 ©dL]dg-
dmos  aoM33gmo  Momegbmdol  dmbob-
mgmds. dogomoma, anmagmob bamgdm
(39680l 85Bsdy dmgdge LedzgMgarmmda 4
Jomdo@mbo 3domdl, bmmm bmggm 3geg-

oobgemda  bLomgdm (39680 Labmegmm-

limited abilities in the Qedeli village where 20
such persons live in a family environment. They
have jobs in different therapeutic workshops
that correspond to their abilities and skills.
The organization opened a café in Signagi. The
beneficiaries of the organization are among
its employees. This is the first café in Georgia
where clients receive services from people with
limited abilities. The café has 4 employees with
limited abilities. The social goal of the Project is
to employ persons with limited abilities on the
one hand and to find an alternative source of
funding for the organization on the other hand.

EC 9 - Understanding and describing signifi-
cant indirect economic impacts, in-
cluding the Extent of impacts

The Community development program’s
indirect economic impact in the target com-
munities is also expressed in the improved
employment opportunities and/or increased
knowledge and skills of the beneficiaries,
which, in turn, helped raise the accessibility of
various services for the local population, etc.
For example:

o Currently, 25 people are employed in the
community centres established under the
program. Besides, some of the commu-
nity centres provide charged services to the
population, giving additional employment
to a certain number of people. For example,
4 females work in a sewing workshop that
operates on the basis of Gulgula community
centre; the centre from Heretiskari provides
agricultural services to local residents help-
ing them with cultivating the land with the
small mini tractor owned by the centre. This
service provided jobs to two more people.

o Coordinators of Community Centres at-
tended trainings and seminars (on the fol-
lowing issues: preparation of strategic plans,
social programs of self-government units,
trainings of trainers, “Do No Harm” tech-
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niques, team work and leadership). All
these, as well as their past activities and ex-
perience, help them to extend their knowl-
edge and skills, and become a pre-condition
for their further employment or effective
work performance on other jobs.

Various types of courses are provided on
the bases of community centres, and com-
puter courses are the most important among
them. In 2011, up to 300 village residents
underwent such courses free of charge. As
a result, they acquired knowledge and skills
that increase their work effectiveness and
employment opportunities. It should be
noted that there is an increasing demand on
computer courses in many villages.

In many cases, community centres offer vil-
lage residents and organisations such ser-
vices that help them save time and costs.
For example, assistance to representatives of
local governments, teachers and doctors in
the preparation of various documentations,
making photo copies and sending the docu-
ments by the Internet. In such cases, people
that already experience financial difficulties
no longer have to travel to administrative
centres that saves them time and money.
Besides the Community Development Pro-
gram financing, the Community Centres
managed to attract funds from various ad-
ditional sources, namely: local self-govern-
ment bodies, other foundations, and the
local private sector. In total, funds attracted
in 2011 equalled GEL 105 159. This funding
enabled the Community Centres to imple-
ment 45 initiatives — programs targeted to
solve specific problems of their communi-
ties (see: Appendix N 3).

All the above has an indirect economic im-

pact of the Community development program.

Other programs initiated by our organiza-

tion also have various types of indirect eco-
nomic impacts. For example:



s 5g0mmdMago 30bbgbowsb, xodda o3

00653 2011 Bgemb 105 189 oo dgowaabe.
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93mbmBogn®  bgasgmgbol sbwgbgb Legy-
M0 Mg30mbgdol g3mbmdagnm asbgomatg-
3%y, 3gMdme:

- 3mmgmsdol gomgmgddn g3odme;bswydeacro
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0o 16 s@sdnobn, Gmdgenors oo 6s6nemo
9.6, , 3563306500067 2390986 dog 1900569~
8006, obe Joo, domnoms@ow, hgmemydrog
3nm898dn  @sbsydgds adntion. bmgooen-
@670 bobsmdmydnwsb Jomgdaemn dydmbogs-
0 8300 3dmg 500 bsdgomgdsl 03696 @opm
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bobggdo s gmbbayenBozngdo  bsbsmdmlb
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@m0l gondxmdglgdsl s 568567935 o039
IR9TE P 35b656mE3090mmb  bogaostin
JFmbmdngamn  bogdosbmds.  domggem  od
bsbob mmgsobods3098b bsgmmstin bzenemn
dgogao  Jagybol  95mbmBngsdn  dyfdboern
3w Bgdob boboo, sbyzg bsbsmdmb @o
0g @obogfdgdaemn  o@odnsbydob  gowobob-
s@ydoo. sbsbndbsgos, Hmd gb bobstdmy-
30 9695056 obgor bogdosbmdsl, FHmdgemary

3933900 dndg8gd0b godm bbgs bgg-
&m0l (39670m @5 boxsmm) stgsendo 567

CSRDG supports the development of social
enterprising within the program Develop-
ment of Civil Society Organizations. In their
turn, social enterprises have a considerable
impact on economic development of those
regions where they operate. Namely:

In the social enterprises created as a result
of grant competitions announced within the
program, 16 people got jobs and a big ma-
jority of them were from so called “marginal
groups” - in other words, such people that
in regular conditions have less employment
opportunities. Income received from social
entrepreneurship gives them more financial
freedom.

Besides, providing financial assistance, train-
ings and consultations on economic, finan-
cial, marketing, organizational and legisla-
tive issues are held for the social enterprises
created under the program, promoting their
sustainability and helping them to carry out
their economic activity in a more effective
way. As a result, these enterprises make their
contribution in the countrys economy with
their production, as well as with the taxes
paid by the enterprises and their employees.
It is noteworthy, that these enterprises carry
out the types of activities that, due to certain
reasons, do not fall under the scope of other
sectors (private and public).

It is also worth to note separately that social
enterprises give an opportunity to the com-
munities fo receive various necessary ser-
vices which are not covered by other sectors
(private and public) due to various reasons.
In these cases, social enterprises work in the
areas that are not attractive for the private
sector because of low profits but the state does
not have enough resources and the political
will to change the situation.

As a result of the implemented monitor-
ing and the developed recommendations
within the frameworks of the program on
the Development of Local Government in
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Telavi, Lagodekhi, Sighnaghi, Ozurgeti and
Chokhatauri municipalities, the budgetary
process and the transparency and account-
ability mechanisms have improved (see Pro-
gram Report, 52 p.), that, in their turn, have
helped fair distribution and effective appli-
cation of the budgetary funds, having an un-
doubtedly positive impact on the economic
systems of these regions. In addition, keep-
ing in mind that public offices are one of the
largest procurers in Georgia, development
of the municipal budgetary systems and in-
creased transparency become a considerable
pre-requisite for the development of a com-
petitive and free market in these regions.

o The Centre’s experts developed recommen-
dation packages for target municipalities in
order to eliminate shortfalls in their social
programs and the rural development pro-
grams. As a result, the above programs were
improved, efficiency of their budget expen-
ditures was increased and priority problems
of the population were solved (see: Program
Report, 54 p.).

o In2010-2011 the Centre’s experts constantly
gave recommendations to relevant public
institutions regarding public procurement.
In 2010-2011 important changes were intro-
duced in this area. In particular an electron-
ic procurement system and an electronic
complaint mechanism were put in place. In
2011, as a result of starting operation of the
electronic system, the State saved about GEL
190 million.

Legislative changes, initiated by CSRDG,
that help to ensure more effective functioning
of the economic system or separate structures,
also result in indirect economic impacts. For
example:

o One of the important areas of the Centre’s
research activities is support of free trade,
enhancement of competition and toughen-
ing of the anti-trust regulations in Georgia.
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396mb3rgdmm (33moemgdgdl, GmBergdacs byerb tion of consumer rights in the food market.
9Bgm3L §3mbmBog@o bobGgdab 96 oeggnee As a result of the work carried out by our or-
LEOYIGIMYO0L PBO™ 98I BbIGomb- ganization, several changes were introduced

06955b, 3ogorr0mo: for improvement of this situation (see: The

Part of the recommendations provided dur-
ing the previous years were taken into ac-
count in 2010 (adoption of the strategy) and
2011 when the draft Law on Free Trade and
Competition was submitted to the Parlia-
ment. This Law will promote formation of
free market which will have a substantial
positive influence on the country’s economy.

dodstmyymgdaon.
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303Omdobs s 3mbym@gbzool  dgbobgd”.
bLbgbgdmma 3obmba bgmb dgnbymdl magab-
agomo bbb Rodmysmadgdsl, Mabacs
3603369mmmgabo bggegmagbs gdbgds Jzgybol
93MbmBn 30l BgMopmdady.

2011 Bgemb “(396@Mab” gdb3gHGgdol Bng
dm3bdotgdgmms Bmgdgdol s(330L dnds-
Mormgdoo 0gbGoxa0Mgdamo ogm baym-
bamob doDaddg 8mbdomgdgmms a3 gdgd-
ob sMm3930L 308m3b3g30 Lo 3obMb3gdemm
batiggbgda. Rggbo m@asbadszoob  Lagdo-
obmdal dgrgasm dombgmm odbs Medrgb-
0dg (33momgds sMbgdamo dgmdstgmdab
359mbobbm@gdmom (nb. 3Mmamsdnma ob-
aoc0da, a3. 68). LyMbomob 36gdmmdady
3Mb@Emmal 3083536900,
@53 90badbymo (33momgdgdol Ladmemm
30babns, bymb dgubymdl dobbgbol gowsb-
gl bagdnsbmdol ggGm  (3030m0dgdam
ImEgmgddg (Lows 8mBbdamgdmal dm@y-
1908 o6 0gbgds 65688 gdal Babsdnmmds),
Go(3 omogab dbMng, bgmamb d50896L J3gy-
Bab 93mbmB03zolb 9894@nsbmdal bAwsabs e
DEbeE dsdMgddy Joormmoa Mmool
3636968 mbansbmdsdo;

babgmdBbogm

Program Report, 68 p.). The final goal is
toughening of the food safety control which
will promote more civilized business mod-
els (during which cheating of customers
will not be a precondition for success). This
will improve the efficiency of the country’s
economy and competitiveness of Georgian
products in foreign markets.
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OUR ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
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EN 1 - Materials used by weight or volume

Materials used during our activity are mainly
paper and cartridges for printing and copying
machines.

In 2011, we used 1 072 kilograms of paper
(including printing paper and paper materials
like stationary, envelopes, note-books, etc.). 678
kilograms of paper was used for our publica-
tions (the data is for Tbilisi office only, and this
year, no data could be collected on the issue for
Telavi branch).

It should be noted that CSRDG uses only
the type of paper produced by environmental
friendly technologies. This is certified paper
with a ‘Paper from Farmed Trees Double A
logo on.

The amount of cartridges used in 2011 for
copying machines and printers (in both Thbilisi
and Telavi offices) was: black and white car-
tridge — 6 kg and 200 grams; coloured cartridge
-0.75 kg.

EN3 - Direct energy consumption by primary en-
ergy source
EN4 - Indirect energy consumption by primary

source
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Our organization’s direct energy consump-
tion is natural gas and gasoline, and our indirect
energy consumption is primarily electricity.

We consume natural gas for the heating
system in our Tbilisi office (natural gas is pur-
chased from KazTransGaz-Tbilisi which is the
city supplier. See http://www.tbilgazi.ge/).

Gasoline is primarily consumed by
vehicles owned by the organization. We own
three sedan type vehicles. In addition, a small
amount of gasoline is used to operate an elec-
tric generator in our Thilisi office, which pro-
vides power to the office in cases of electricity
power cuts.

Electricity is consumed in the Tbilisi and
Telavi offices by various appliances - e.g. com-
puters, printers, copiers, lighting, etc.

All electricity (100%) consumed in Tbilisi of-
fice is purchased from Telasi Ltd - the sole dis-
tributor of electricity in Tbilisi (http://www.tel-
asi.ge). Unfortunately, due to the inaccessibility
of information, it is impossible to accurately di-
vide the sources of electric supply into renew-
able and non-renewable resources. About 88%
of the energy generated annually in Georgia is
produced by hydro-power (i.e. by a renewable
energy source) and the remaining 12% from
the combustion of natural gas (at our request,
this data was provided to us by the Ministry of
Energy of Georgia). Consequently, about 88%
of energy purchased by us is from renewable
sources and the remaining 12% comes from
non-renewable sources (natural gas).

The table below presents cumulative data of
direct and indirect energy consumption by Tbi-
lisi office of our organization in 2011:
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1832.76 338/Lbor 0Bs6Bmgds sEogsbobrmgdomn
A9baEbgdabasb, 39Mdme 30, 396966030 sofab
b30b Jgmgasw. 93 mEgbmdal gemgd@cmgbgm-
300l LobaM3mgdmom sbsmxmma dymbgdMagn
20M0L MomEgbmds Jgomaqgbl 549.828 33 sb4)
21.488 ax.

* 00baofMndgdobomzgol asdmgnygbgom d93cg-
30 §mgB030bGgde: 1 338/ben
9mad@mmabgdanal babsmImgdmo bad«-
seme dmabdomgds 0.3 33 dbgdMoszn
060 (9b gmggaegbEe 98:Pdbgss gbyHag-
&030b Ld30babEMML ogF Imbmegdmem
0bggm&®3a(30sb); 1000 83 dmbgdMogo soto -
39,01 ax;
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* Coeflicients for transforming the volumes
of consumed natural gas, gasoline and electric-
ity into the Joules are given in the GRI Report-
ing Guidelines, p. 8. In particular, 1000 m3
natural gas - 39,01 GJ; 1 ton gasoline - 44,80 GJ
(average density of Litre of gasoline - 0,75 kg); 1
kW/h electricity - 0,0036 GJ.

As for the amount of fuel burnt in gener-
ating the electricity consumed by our Tbilisi
office, as already mentioned, about 12%, or
1832.76 kW/h, is produced from not-renewable
sources, in particular, as a result of natural gas
combustion. The amount of natural gas burnt
to generate this much electricity equals 549.828
cubic meters, or 21.488 GJ.

* For the calculations, the following coefficients
were used: approximately 0.3 cubic meters
of natural gas is needed to generate 1 kW/h
electricity. (The coefficient is provided by the
Ministry of Energy of Georgia); 1000 cubic
meters of natural gas = 39.01 GJ.



EN8 - Bymol doxmnsbo 0dmmgds, @scmadyma
Bymob Bysmmagdal dnbgogom

B3960 mMasbadsznol Joge Bymals dmbdatg-
35 bagmaga3bma@igdm 30dbgdnm 3mbdsmgdemma
bymoom (Lobdgma Bymom) dgdmoggatgmads.

2011
mgabdn 3mbIoMmgdma Bymab ImEmmmds
3d95003960> 382 33-Lb.

Bgmb mAas60ds30ab @doemabab

3dmbo(393900 o305635Mndgm bymals dmb-

doMgdob  abmogomemy@o  dMa3bzgmal

30h3969dmadal dnbgoznom.

dmbatgdym Bysmb mmasbobsgas domo-
0bo© 00gdl mdamobol Bysmdmdsmaggdal bab-
$930006 (mdaabbs ©s dab dgdmascighbl Lob-
39 Byomb 5630000 3m33s60s Georgian Water and
Powers. ab. http://www.georgianwater.com).

G dggbgds dmbdomgdmma bymal Byst-
MgdL, Bmam&s (36mdomos, mdomobo Labdgmo
bymoom dofoggds 3nboMggdowsb - ama
(@domobol begol Lodmomgdom) s oMsggn
(906300l Byombazo30b Lodmamgdoom).

B396L dogd dmbdsmgdmma Bysma 3obozo-
3omay&n Lo obomabsznm Lob@gdom gowol me-
3560b(3000056.

EN16 - Loomdgmol sofMgdal 3oMsdomn o
5M330MEa30M0 3ox3MJ3930L domonsbo

M bmds, dsbob domnmgdom
mf3560Do(3006 boddnobmdolb Jgmgasw Loo-
d@ab 00Mgdob (babdoMmEgabaol) 3oMmadnn

30530 J3930L Bgommb Bomdmowanbl dbgdco-

30 00M0b 635 ®domobob mgabol gomdmdab

Lob@gdabomgal bymab gozbgmgdal dobboom,

2afgmgg MmMasbods300b 80gf dmbdamgdemma

396%0balb B30l dgrggen Bomdmgdbaoma Loo-

Sd&ab s0Mgdob goxfdszgge.

* mgobolb g0cmdmdal LobGgds o3@mbmdny-
0s, (3bgmo bymal dmomgfn mMgaobo-
Bo300b GgM0GMENDgs I3MBES¥gdMma
s dobongal d6gdcngn sofal B3s mEgsba-
Bo300b BoMamgddo begds. bmmm 396D0bL
3dmgobdator mmasbodsznol 3mmgbama o3-
BMBob7gobgdabs s MmEMasbnds(znodn dmon-
23L90mo gmgd@MmMagbaMe@mEnbamgal.
58009650, b30L 03 3Gm(39Lgdol dggaswe
Bom3mddbomo LomdgFmal sofgda 3ofos-
3067 39836939350 boMdmoaqbl.

ENB8 - Total water withdrawal by source

Water consumption in our organization is
limited to drinking water.

382 cubic meters of water was consumed in
our Thilisi office in 2011.

The data has been calculated from the indi-
vidual water meter reading.

All water consumed by the Centre is sup-
plied from Thbilisi’s water supply system (Geor-
gian Water and Powers provides water to Tbilisi
and its suburbs. See http://www.georgianwater.
com ).

As for the source of the water, it is supplied
to Thilisi from the rivers Lori (through the so
called Thilisi Sea) and Aragvi (through the
Zhinvali reservoir).

Water consumed by us is discharged through
the municipal sewage system.

EN16 - Total direct and indirect greenhouse
gas emissions by weight

Direct greenhouse gas emissions related
to the activity of our organization are created
from burning natural gas to operate the Tbilisi
office’s heating system, and burning gasoline to
power our vehicles and the electric generator
in the office. Greenhouse gas emissions created
from these processes are direct emissions.

* The office heating system is autonomous. The
hot water boiler is installed on the organiza-
tion’s premises and natural gas supplying the
boiler is being burnt on our territory. Petrol
is used for the vehicles owned by CSRDG
and the power generator installed on our
territory. Hence, greenhouse gasses resulted
from this burning are direct emissions.
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Rgqgblb 8ogm 2011 Bgemb aomdmdob Lobdgdob
Bbg30mbafgdobomgal dmbIsmgdamo dubg-
36030 5060l dmgnermds Bomdmawggbos 5026
33 (ob. bg3mor EN3; EN 4). 396936030 s060b
8badbgemo dmzmmmdolb B30L dgmgasw 2011
Bgemb B56ImJdbaema LomdyMmab saMab 3nm-
33060 3583604393780 33503960 3.52 §mbs
CO.,.

* bozoo&gﬁmb 506980b mEgbmdob mssbgsmndgd-
abob 394Mbmdmmon d93wga d g -
omEb: d3mbdaMgdnmo s06ab dmgmemmdal
300960 398Mgdnsb 30mmaoedg-
330 gomayzobal 3mgamazngb@os 0,7 (sby
1000 33 34bgdmngn somo = 0,7 &mbsb); 1
&mbs 3bgdM0g0 s0Mob ebgznm, b sbopsm-
G 3mgR0(3096@0b mobobdow,
6om3mngdbgds 1,96 §mbs CO.,.

o3 d99bgds 896B0bab b30b Jggasm Bom-
dmgdboem  LomdyMalb  s0fgdal  goxmdszgzel,
Bmamég dgdmo omgbadbgm, mMgsbabszonb
bag805bmdal GoMmamgdda ®doemabolb mgobob
3oge dmb3omgdama 396%0bolb mEgbmds 2011
Bgmb BomBmawagbos 3160 mom@l, obgy 2370
3a-b. 80b0dbmmo Momogbmdal d96%abol B30l
dggao BomImddboemn bamdaab sofgdab
(CO,) aogMgd3930L dmEyemmds 2011 Bgeb
3950039605 7.58 §mbsb.

©03bg5M0dg30bsb go8mgnygbgm dgdmgan bEoboom-

Gmo 3mgx0(3096@9d0: 1 magma 396%aba - 0,75

3a; 1 @mbs 396%0bal ©ob30bob Bo3mngdbgds 3,2

&mbs CO,.

Rggbo m@asbodsz00b bagddnsbmdom BomIm-
48boema sMs30MEsdntn goxmdzgsgs 3o dmazegl
Bgg6 Bngh dmblamgdamo gmgd@Hmgbyfanals
Bo3mgdabol BsmImddbom gondzggab.

Rggbo mMasbodszool 8ogH Imbdsmgdeema
9mad@mmgbgfgoal  BomImgdal  3Gm(39Ldn
Bo3mgdborma Lamdpmol sofal gog®dzgzol
30635603505 Fbmmmo ssbrmmgdoo byMbog-
do, LEIbEIMGNm Fohz9696mgdDdy LoyMbm-
d0o. Bmgmei(z Dgdmo 500b0dbs, mEgsbabs(zo-
ob dogM dmbdomgdymoa  gmgd@mmgbgmanals
badaamme 12% Imdabatigmdl gbgManal sts-
aobsbmgdon bys@mgdowsb, o6y dubgdtogn
2060l §Hbbgm@mIamgdal abam Bnomgds, Mo
2011 Bgmb  @daemobol mgabobsmgal dgoc-
aqbos 1832.76 338/Lo, bmem 838 mEgbmdal
9m9d@Mmgbgfgonl bo@dmgdobamgals obam-
Ramo dqbgdfngo saal mgbmds 549.828 33
(ob. 3; 4).549.828 33 bybgdcaga sofal B3ab dg-
©9a5© 6563mddbomo LomdaMab safgdol meg-
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The amount of natural gas used by CSRDG
in 2011 for heating purposes was equal to 5026
cubic meters (see above - EN3; EN 4). The
amount of greenhouse gas emitted was equal
to 3.52 tons of CO2.

* The following conversion factors have been
used in calculating the CO2 emissions: the
coeflicient for converting one cubic meter of
consumed natural gas into kilograms equals
0.7 (or, 1000 m* of natural gas = 0.7 tons).
According to the standard coefficient, 1.96
tons of CO, is produced by burning 1 ton of
natural gas.

As for greenhouse gas emissions from gaso-
line, as already mentioned above, 3160 litres, or
2370 kg of gasoline were consumed by the or-
ganization for its operational purposes in 2011.
The amount of greenhouse gas emitted (CO,)
equalled 7.58 tons.

* The following standard coeflicient was used
for the calculations: 1 litre gasoline = 0.75
kg; CO, produced as a result of burning 1 ton
of gasoline = 3.2 tons.

In addition to direct CO, emissions, CSRDG
operations generate indirect CO, emissions
produced from purchased electricity.

The amount of greenhouse gas emission pro-
duced as a result of generating electricity used
by our organization can only be calculated ap-
proximately, by applying standard coefficients.
As mentioned above, about 12% of our electric-
ity comes from non-renewable energy sources,
e.g. generated using natural gas. In 2011, the
amount of electricity used in our Tbilisi office
equalled 1832.76 kWh, and 549.828 m’ of natu-
ral gas was needed to generate it (see EN3; EN
4). The amount of greenhouse gas produced as
a result of burning 549.828 m3 of natural gas
equals 0.75 tons of CO,.



60’)60 osbmmgdom dgowagbl 0.75 §mbs CO,.
* o0baomndgdobslb ge8mgzoygbyom aaangn
LESbEsMmE Mo  3mgxoiogbdgda: 1000
33  3ybgdMongo sota = 0,7 §mbob; 1 &mbo
6586030 5060b obzom bsmdmaddbgds -
1,96 mbs CO,.

dqbodadoba, Azgbo mmasbadsznob mdamo-
bob mg3abob Logd0sbmdal dgmgasw 2011 Bgmb
Bo8mgdbormo Lamdamolb s0Mgdalb SoMesdnmn
5 5Md30Mad0fMn 3ox8MJ3930L KMo meg-
bmds (sbGoma@ma sby dgadmads BomImgzsman-

Bmon:

bmbgdM030 5060l B3s 3503mdob bob@gdnbsmgal

Burning of natural gas for the heating system

396b0b0ls 635 mmMasbabs30960b 538m3sbgsbgdabs s

3969658 ™m0l 53964 (30mbofgdabmgals

* The following standard coefficient has been
used for the calculations: 1000 m* of natural
gas = 0.7 tons; the amount of greenhouse gas
produced by burning 1 ton of natural gas =
1.96 CO..

Accordingly, cumulative amount of di-
rect and indirect greenhouse gas emissions pro-
duced as a result of our organization’ activity in
2011 can be summarized in the following table:

3,52

99JGH™-
7,58

Burning of gasoline for the company’s vehicles and electricity generator

99d&MmmgbgMaool bocdmgdabsl Bomdmddbamo goxdzgazs

0.75

Emissions produced during electricity generation

306033060 5 3G330MEs30Mn 333MJ3930L dnmnsbo megbmds
Total amount of direct and indirect emissions

EN22 - 656B 69300 doremnoba 8sbs, @omadmeman
bomRgbadol Gndabs o aon36989emy-
M0l dgommgdol dobgogom

Bggbo mMasbabszonl dogm Bocdmddbaemo
bothgbgdal 360d36gmmgab Boeml  Jomaemmols
bomhgbgda bodmawagbl. Rggb mnmgdal Le-
Mo 3obogbo Aggbl dogd mdaemobol megabdo
dmbdomgdymo Jomammol Mg303mamgdsl. o3
30Bbom yzgmes LaMommdy asb b3gnsmymo
g09d0, bosi ammgegds mgyabdo dmbdatmg-
dmo Jomomea. 3503399 39M0mENmmo0m
08 Jomomel 30dsMgdo ,3o335b00b gomgdmb-
©5(330000  363L3dMogHmdm MM sbnds(309d0b
Jbgmb” (CENN), Gm3gmacg 8ob 8oge asbb-
m0gmgdama 363569 mgabob® 3Gmamadal
BoMamgdda 03MHm3zqdL 40dmygbgdmm Jomaomaml
5 585MgoL Jomammal Jombabsls Mg303moamg-

11,85

EN22 - Total weight of waste by type and dis-
posal method

A major part of the waste produced by our or-
ganization is waste paper. We recycle almost all
of the paper material used in our Tbilisi office.
For this purpose, special bins have been put on
every floor in our office to collect waste paper,
which is then regularly delivered to the Cau-
casus Environmental NGO Network (CENN).
Within its Green Office program, CENN col-
lects used paper and delivers it to a paper fac-
tory for recycling (see http://greenoffice.cenn.
org/). In 2011 our organization delivered 82 kg
of used paper to the Caucasus Environmental
NGO Network for recycling.
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3ol 30%boor (ob. http://greenoffice.cenn.org/).
2011 Byemb R3963s mMaoboDs(3058 Mg(303eafg-
0L 80bbom  ,30335L00b  gafgdmbszz0mn
0M5bodmagMmdm  mMasbndozngdol  JLgmb®
Rosdoms 82 33 ImbIatgdamo dJomsemeol bom-
hgbo. badBybomme, xgHxgMmMdac 396 bgMbog-
35 mgmogalb mggabda 3mbdomgdmmoa Jomammal
9(303mnMgds.

2011 Bgmb mdoemobol mgobdo Bomdmd-
Bomo bagmazszbmagmgdm bachRgbgdal domosba
dmgmemds bodgsmme Badmowmaqbos 12 33
(Bmbo3g3n  oobasmndms mgabdn goboegl-
9dmo bobaggg 3mbEgnbgFgdal Momogbmdab,
AmEmemmdobs @ 6MAgbgdal as@obol Lab-
dotob dobgogom). badbybocmm, Lodstmggmm-
do 56 oMb gdmMAL Laymazs3bmgegdm bomhgbadal
LgaMagasoalb o6 Mgngmomgdal 3Mad@nge.
Loymegozbmagdm  bathnbgdal  aov3bgdgmy-
mxob ghomogmo dgomeb bomdmanggbl oob-
QRma3950b  3bazndsemgmo Lob@gdolb BngH
30010 BogogboygMgmdyg gobomogbgdes.
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Unfortunately, we do not have a system in
place for recycling paper used in our Telavi of-
fice.

As for household waste from the office oper-
ation, the total volume of such waste produced
in our Thilisi office in 2011 was equal to ap-
proximately 12 cubic meters. (This was calcu-
lated by the volume of material in the office bins
and the frequency of waste discharge). Unfor-
tunately, there is no system of household waste
segregation or recycling in Georgia. The only
method of disposing household waste is for the
municipal cleaning service to take it to landfills.



LYJ3N06MBNOL LMGBNORIEAN 3OR3I6IdT IS

OUR SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

34M3N0M0 LOJIANVEM3Y RO QNALIIXO

3A@M3d

LAl - o6gs60bsioolb doxemasbo dMmdnma
Agby@bgdo, ©emndymn ©obogdgdab
$03gdal, dMmdomn bgmdgzMmagdal
&03900bs o 3m33sb0ol bogdnsbmdals
Mga0mbgdol dobgogom

2011 Bgemb megsobadszn0do 29 0sbs830mag-
™0 0603bgdmes. 385mgsb 27 mdomabab mgo-
Lob 08658dMMIgemas s 2 - mgemagab mgabobs.

mma560bs(300b 00653OMBgmmagsb 22 swo-
80560 (75.9%) LEmen a0bs3zgmdgs ©oLogdg-
dmeo, boemm 7 spsdosbo (24.1%) - bobgzem
35653390bg. 985ma96 mgmagalb mggabolb mogg
®500830m3gemo Im3omdb LM 3o by.

Amgme mdomabol, obg ogmegob meo-
bob yg9ms 86583MMBgmmsb gogm@dgdamos
BgFommdomo bgemdgztmmgds godbomgdmemo
39000

LABOUR PRACTICES AND DECENT
WORK

LA1 - Total workforce by employment type,
employment contract, and region

The number of full-time employees at the
end of 2011 was 29. Out of these, 27 are em-
ployed in the Tbilisi office and 2 in the Telavi
office.

22 of the staft (75.9%) are full-time employ-
ees, and 7 (24.1%) are part-time. All 2 employ-
ees in the Telavi office work full-time.

Fixed term written contracts are signed with
the employees in both the Tbilisi and Telavi of-
fices.

m63560%3(300b 036533MMBgmas 336560mgds 3389a3mM0gdab Jabgroznm
(30m0;gdnmas 565336m3gmans M3mEybmds)

The below chart presents the employee breakdown by the categories
(Number of employees is indicated)

Middle management unit
ds@mngzab 3¢5 Mameo
6

Senior program officer
3Mmams3ab gg@mmbo

L3ggosmab@o

Senior management unit
dsmmgab dges Hameo
2

Support Staff
&99603960 39Gbmbsma
7

Junior program officer
36ma33ab sbob@gb@n
8
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LA2 - 0565336m3gmms @gbomdals 5dbmenyy-

Bfo s 3Mm396@mmoa 35R396909-
o, ©smndgmn bigbob, sbszmdmaga

RK3NBJO0Ly s Mgaombgdols dobyco-

800’).

2011 69006 d9dmaz99s85 3 006583mmdgcmo
DS O3ZFSFEIDS 0.

LA2 - Total number and rate of employee turn-
over by age group, gender, and region

In 2011 three new employees joined and two
employees left the Centre.

m3560b5(30530 Indsmdab bobgmdmagmds
Period of employment in CSRDG

6-10 years/ 6gemo —
(8 »565336Gm3gcemn/employess)
28%

LA3 - begem 3@o@dg dmddagg 0obsddmma-
m930bsm30L obabgdmmo g3absbby&n
©ob35Mgds o Jgmozomgda, Moz o6
3M39mEgds  @Mmgdoo ob babgzem
3&o@&dg Im3ndo3q 0sbs3dEMAmgdDdy,
smndgmo  bogdosbmdal  dofomewn
&03900b dobgz0m

B3960 Labgmazobm 3men@ngab doDsobas, dqb-
0535Dmb 565336M3mgdL Lo gmmomo dGmab
0oL nmo ©s badoMmmnsba sbabmemmagds.

50dLoMgdmmo bgmaabgdal gofs, mMasbo-

Bo(300 03653IOMIMYAL Led3DMAL g0 339

dgme30m98L, Moz 0aMgm3g d0Ddbow abobagl

05653dMm3gmms bG0dPmaMgdslb o gobbamo,
0ofbgmmao bLodymdom dommdgdal 9dEON63gmy-

ML, dogomoma:

* ®obIGMgmmMdab abmzg30lb wamgdmmgd-
ol aoM3390ma  boboamab  sbsdmonEgds
(G033 Bodbomgdnm cobbsols Bomdmoaqbl
©5 MbsdaMns yzgmo msb53dHmImaboo-

ob);
3@23563@)‘3@0 9306:0eg30b  9bodRoYMYdS
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11-15 years/ 6gemo —
(9 0565336Gm3gman/employess)
31%

1-5 years/ 6gemo —

41%

LA3 - Benefits provided to full-time employees
that are not provided to temporary or
part-time employees, by major opera-
tions

The goal of our wage policy is to offer the
employees dignified and fair compensation of
their work.

As well as fixed salaries, CSRDG also pro-
vides its employees with certain additional
benefits aimed at maintaining motivated staff
and offering them healthy and pleasant work-
ing conditions. For example:

- Partial coverage of health insurance (which
is a fixed amount and equal for all employ-
ees);

+ Four months paid maternity leave (the term’s
duration is set by the Georgian legislation.

(12 0565336m3gema/employess)



bgmaxzabolb Lo mEgbmdom 4 mgol gob-
dogemmdadn (o3 bogsMmggmmb 396mb3wg-
drmdoo sEagbor go@sl Bamdmawggbl,
odis  3390mmgdol  sbodman@gds  m-
3560Ds(300b 3bF0EIL 39bMbIgdermmdom o6
dmombmggds);

* LoBLobyMgdMngn Imgamgmdal dgbemad-
obsl Bomgdamo Gaboga®o @sDosbgdab
dgdobggzedn  goobomo  @sds@gdoma
3babmon@gds  (50bodbymo  abdomgdos
30035mabB0bgdamos mEgobodazonl
3mmo@ngom, bLodgwbogme, Rzgbo of-
Lgdmdob Bobdombg of azdmbas BLgsgbo
3930b3939);

© oxobob bgzmal ©sgemazol dgdmbggzeda
336ggmo  g30bsblbm@o  obdamgds, sbggg
©335@gd0m0 365braMgdan d3gdqmgds
@ ©3b3gbgo0b Eeggde;

* gumoEo abdamgds amagboma mado@nb
BoMamgddo dzomab dgdgbals, Jm&Babgdal,
sbaem 306530 gowsbgmobs ©s 8.3, dgdmb-
393590;

© LoobomBemm 36gdns babggeta o6 gHon
»30b bgemaobol m@gbmdoo;

+ Bodobomnbgdgmo 36530930 godm@Bhgumo
gofgo d9mdamdobomgol (Mo 0boozowe-
Sergfor goboboergds gmgger jmbyMyd e
dgdobgggzedn).

0badbgmo dgmoegemgda 3M(3gm@gds M-
3560Ds300b LEMm 3Go@ by oboddgdye yzg-
M 00653dOm3gmDy. Moz dggbgds bobgzem
a5b03390bg  oboddgdmm  096533dMmMImgdl
(Bmdgmoms  MomEgbmds, Gmaméi  dgdmo
0360369, 7 50880060, 564 mMasbabdszaal
doasba dGmIama Ggbg@bol 24.1%-as), bg-
dmor Rsdmmgmomo Jgmagemgdawsb mmasba-
B30 8500 JbmenmE Bmgogo 00bs3dMmmI gl
LEgabMBL, Moz asbbbzegwgds  (39emggmmo
0360330m3mabomzgol ©s 3gHbmbomama 3mb-
BMog&om Mgammoamgds (sbg dogamomow, bosk-
smbem 36gdns babggem gobszzgmdyg obsddy-

59 Y39 096083Gm3gmby 36 (39mrydd)-

However, it does not require employers to
compensate the leave);

+ Additional compensation is paid to employ-
ees if injured when performing their work
duties (this benefit is outlined by our poli-
cy). However, luckily, we have never had any
such accident;

- Financial assistance in case of a family mem-
ber’s death. Also, additional paid leave and
vacation days;

+ Monetary assistance within defined limits in
cases of child birth, marriage, moving to a
new apartment etc;

+ New Year bonus equal to half or one month’s
salary;

- Incentive bonuses for good work perfor-
mance (subject to individual consideration
of every specific case).

The above mentioned benefits apply to all
full-time employees. Part-time workers (7
people, or 24.1% of the staff) have only some
of these benefits, different for each worker and
regulated by individual work contracts. (e.g.,
all part-time employees receive New Year bo-
nuses).
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LA10 - Bgmobomdn badgsmme Modmgbo bssmo
obofggds  gfmo  096sddGMImalb
LBs3mMgdabg/BMgbnbygddy,
dOmAgmms 3o@gamngdol dobgogom

0obsa-

2011 mmasbobsz00b 05650-

Bgmb

dOm3gmmomgzalb BoGomgdama §Mgbnbggdobs
o LBogmgdob godmMo bobamdmagmds Jgoc-
39600 268 Losob, Mo momm sbs83HmBmo-
Lomgob badmsmme 9,2 boysmb dgemag6b.

®56033Omgmms 3o gammngdol 8obgozom
Lbagemgdobs s GMgbabagdal bsbgmdmozmds
2011 Bgemb obg ao@obabome:

LA10 - Average hours of training per year per
employee by employee category

In 2011, a total of 268 work-hours (i.e. an av-
erage of 9.2 hours per employee) were spent on
training purposes.

Below is a breakdown by the raining types
and the trainings’ duration of the various cat-
egories of employees during 2011:

dommngob dgos Mammo

Top management

doMmmngzob dms Mamemo
Mid-level management
3mamadol  gu@mbo  b3g-
odmab@o 6
Senior program officer
36maadol bl gb@n
Junior program officer
&9db03n60 3gMbmbaea
Support staft

LA12 - 08 006033d6:m3mgdals 3G (3968
Boero,  Gm3mgdo  Ggagmet g
0009896 dgx3obgdol Logmmeta dmdom-
bab 98394 mdabs s 3Gmaygbogmn
a563000560980b dgbobgd

mEg560bs(3006 gzgmo 00bsddMMIgeml ym-

39 6 mggdo gfobgm EIMYds gobbme-

30gmgdama bLadmdomb, 330mogagaznabs s

dgbodmgdmmdgdal  Igomgon®o  dgisbgds,

bomm gmggmao Bemab dmemb - dgdsxsdgdgmo
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8 4
120 20
80 13
60 7.5

LA12 - Percentage of employees receiving reg-
ular performance and career develop-
ment reviews

Every six months all employees undergo
mid-term reviews of their performed work,
qualification and capacity, and, at the end of
the year, they have a final evaluation. Each em-
ployee is evaluated by her/his immediate su-



dgi3obgds. mommgmmo ebs83dMmmmmoal Lsgda-
obmdal Jggabgdol o@smgdl daobo ¢dmsmm
bgm3dmgabgmo, BabsbBom dgoagbomo jomb-
3o60bs s 3oMoa dgbggmol Logmdzgmdg
(300bgoM0 agds (3om3gMmo mobsdwgdmdo-
bomgolb dMmIolb smbgFnmmdadn ©ogodbofg-
dayma 30bgbabdggdmmds-dmgamagmdgdal
dobgogzom). dggebgdol  Igbzgmal  dgdwmga
abgfgds dgbggotnl 8mjmg dgdaxsdgdgmo sb-
3560do, Mobog bgmddmgabymo o(36mdl mobsd-
dAm3gb.

2011 Bgmb Rggbo m@asbodszool  yzgme
0500330m3gmBs  (sbgy  dorgmnsbo  IHmBoocon
9bm@Lgdab 100%-8s) Jonmm bs gmoso bsgda-
3bmdab mgza(znomamn Jggabygds.

LA13 - 83s®mggmmdoomn mMgsbmgdals dg-
doagbmmdobs o bbzopabbgs 398 9-
amM0930b MebsddMmmBgmms omndgzs
3969 mo, sbyzmdMago, M3 z0Mgbm-
bdob gamxgdoboda dozmogbgdol o
3Mo30mxygMm3bgdal  bbgs 8ohRggbg-

b gdab dobgogom

»(396@ 0% ©obogddgdab, 3Mmggbommo asb-
30m0Mgdabs s BobLgmal mebsded Jgbademyg-
dmdgdl  odmgsl  yggme  »obsaddMmmagmb,
33b@Rggmom  Lgbab, obagal, gMmgbgdal,
53bafgdmmdal, 3mmoadongnmo  dgbgommy-
3960l oy Lbgo 30Mm3zbyma dobobosomgdemgdabs.

pervisor based on a pre-designed questionnaire
and a face-to-face meeting (the questionnaire is
designed for the various positions, in line with
the duties and obligations outlined in their job
descriptions). Following the evaluation meet-
ing, a brief summary report is written and is
afterwards presented to the employee by her/
his supervisor.

In 2011, all our employees (100% of all hu-
man resources) received their official work per-
formance evaluation report

LA13 - Composition of governance bodies and
breakdown of employees per category
according to gender, age group, minor-
ity group membership, and other indi-
cators of diversity.

CSRDG gives equal employment, profes-
sional development and advancement oppor-
tunities to all its employees, regardless of their
gender, age, ethnicity, religion, political views,
or other personal features.

0563336mIgmos 39bgmymo @snndzs
Breackdown of employees by gender

Male/gsio — 12 (41.3 %

Famale/doema — 17 (586 %)
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0565336mIgmos sbs3mdMnzn N33
Breakdown of the employees by age

45-55 years/ 6gemo -3

65-70 years/ 6gemo -1

25-35 years/ 6 -12
Y - 55-65 years/ 6gemo -1

35-45 years/ Bgemo - 12

0565336mIgmas 396gMH Ym0 INNd3s 35§ ga3MMngdab dabgognm
Employee gender breakdown, by categories

2 100 0 0

dommngol dgos Mammo
Top management

dommgals 31\]0 Mammo
Middle level management 4 67 2 £6
36Mmaadolb gammbo bdgnsmab@o . 0 , 5
Senior program officer
3mamadal sbob@gb@o . o , e
Junior program officer
&9dbo gm0 3gAbmbama ) 29 ; .
Support staff
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0565336mIgmans sbs 3M3Mag0 Ed3MNI3s 33§ 33MmMngdab dabgzom
Employee age breakdown, by categories

dommngzob dgos Mammo

Top management

dotmngal s Mameno 6
Middle level management
36mamadols
3osmob@on
Senior program officer

3Gmamadob sbob@gb@ o 8
Junior program officer

axmmbo  b3g- 6

2 4
4 1 1
4 3 1

o dggbgds  mMasbodazool  aodggmdsl,
mdgmo(y ddoMmmggmmdals gdommal mMasbmb
Bodmamagbl, ngo dgggds & Bgzmnbogsb, dabs
40%-Ub Jomgdo dgogq6gb, 60%-U - 3535353900,
sbogmdmng xanydo 30-©sb 45 Bemadwy.

LA14 - 3535353009 @5 Jomms doMomaswa (bods-
bm) bgmazzabgdol dggemogds, 0ebsd-
dOmBgmos 3o@¢gammngdab dnbgozom

3960960 0065LbmEMbal dnamds Rzg6lL
Lobgmagabm  3mmo@ngadgi  snbobgds. Rzgb
o6 a0b30bbgoggde  56533MmMImgdabamgals
aosboam bgmeabgol bigbolb dobgogom. m-
3960Do(300L o gbama 593 Mmammgnma 358 -
98m600bsmgzalb dofMomsma Ladababm bgmes-
Lol 30603930 s dodLodydo, Moz gMmboatoas

oo o 35853530 moboddmmamndolbomanls.

o © 3°G @) 3
D00Mgnmo  35&gamcnol dogboo dgbedsdabo
bgmagzobolb goboggzgmo ©g0bogds bbgowsbbge
Labdmgsmgdfingo mMasbobdsgonl Labgmesbm
350l dgbbogmal dgdmga. 3o@&gamool dog-
bom bgmazsbgdl dmEal pogg®gbznmgdals 36n-
&9fodn gobmago: mbsdgdmdal dgbedsdabo
3obgbobda gdmmdol @mbg; 33omogoge(z0s,

CSRDG Board, the supreme managing body
of the organization, has five members out of
which, 40% are females and 60% - males. Board
members’ ages range from 30 to 45.

LA14 - Ratio of basic salary of men to women
by employee category

The gender equality issue is also reflected on
our remuneration policy. We do not discrimi-
nate between genders with respect to basic
salary. For each category, the organization has
minimum and maximum limits for basic sala-
ries, without differentiating between female and
male employees. Salary ranges in each category
are determined on the basis of the Compensa-
tion Market Survey in various civic organiza-
tions. Salary differentiation criteria between the
categories are: level of responsibility for the po-
sition; qualification; work experience.
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2011 Bgemb 353535309 3 Jomms doFamsweoa badsdm bgmasbgdo 0s6533GmIgmas
3%893MM0ng3ab dabgozom
Basic salaries for males and females, by employee categories (2011 )

domo 3930
Female Male

dommgal Dgos Mamea
Top management

2 0 19200

doGmngol s Mameo
Middle level management 4 2 18 300

3MmaMsdolb gammbo

L3geomobéo 3 3 14800
Senior program officer

89603960 396Lbmbsa
Support staft 2 5 5700
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domo
Female

31503

26 200

20308

5800

3530
Male

27 665

20 450

7200



01065336 M3ITI&0

93° 963sdy, 939 smMsdgaman, bobm gobadg,
bobs Jombgmady, Jgoma 3o3985dg, D300 dmegdady,
omm Roggondyg, 3535 sbs8dady, dmmes M mmas,
gmabm @maModsdgamo, aMabs dGgagadyg, 6o bo-

0fMsd30emn, mams bmggMos, 30gs a39mgbosbo,
305 @M3m0 303300, M03d> 0mMEYs, 30ds amanh-
508300, 05856 amdgrndzomo, jobs gs3dgMas,
9396 GmbGmsdgomoa, bmbs smowsdgomo, Dy
3mMsd30em0, 356560 3dgmndgoma.
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W I“,"” 1 PERSONNEL

ll ' , ' “‘_‘s Eka Urushadze, Eka Datuashvili,
\ ol LI L 8- Nino Vasadze, Keti Kakabadze, Nana
it} Karseladze, Zviad Modebadze, Dato

Chikvaidze, Maka Asambadze, Shota
Murghulia, Eliso Gharibashvili, Irina
Bregvadze, Ana Nadirashvili, Lela Kho-
' : / peria, Giga Gvelesiani, Gia Toklikishvili;

' B 4 “q Lia Todua; Manana Mchedlishvili; Mi-
; sha Gogichaishvili; Tamar Gobejishvili,
Kakha Jamburia, Levan Rostomashvili,
Nona Aladashvili, Zura Korasvhili.
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SO1 - mMasbodaznol dogm asbbm@(z09emg-
dgmo  bgodabdogMo  Jdgwgdgdo o
3Mma®odgdo, MmIgmms dadobos bo-
Bmgomgdobg/mgddy mMasbodszoab
Logdnsbmdom bgao3-
b0l dgx3obgds s dommgs, o3 dg-
©989d0bs s 3MmaMmadgdol boboosma,

dmJ3gmgdnlb byghm o 9839J@&0sbmds
domn s6ygdal, dndpnbsmgmdabs o

abEMmadob 980376y

dmbgboema

3Mma@adnmo bogddnsbmdal gx39@nmdal
dgbogabgdmaw 393935390 mo 3Mmamadamo
dg3obgdalb 0bwogs@mEmmo Lob®gdalb dabyco-
goo 2011 Bgeb dmbos 0bgm@dssonlb dga-
mggds. 50badbaymo 0bgym®mdsz00b oge8gdal
o 8bsmnbol Jgogagda gomgamobbabgdaymas
2012 Bemob mgabnbdsg00b bogdnsbmdal mogga-
dgabob.

a56s  odalbs, Lbgowabbgs 3Mmgmadngdal

B>H32630 3gHomEgmar GRS §3r39oo
Ri3gb0 696g8030oMgd0l 3or23m0 RaYBIOEL
390yma30madal embab dgogebgdmac.

2011 Bemob dmeomb, "mgdol gobgomamgdal
3mamadal” gafgmgddo 12 Ladabdby Lomgdm
396@ML Ro@omms dggebgds doma 3Mmams-
dqmo  0bogo@mmgdol s  IgbHmmagdamo
bog800bmdgdol bamabbol gomgemabbobgdao.
dgi3obgded shggbs Lomgdm (396@Mgdal Lsgda-
obmdob domoma gx9d&ucmmds s bEsdarmunon
35630m06980b 3bsMma &gbwgbzns. (abormgom
3mamadmma obgstnda, a3. 41) Bomgdeemo dg-
©93900b Logndgzgmbg 8m3doems 3Gmgmadaom
dmbogbomo bgasgmgbol dggobgds. Iggebygd-
ab g9a9ddg oyMbmdam ©snggads 3m-
3530l 2012 Bl bogdosbmds.

Bgg60 Logd0sbmdal 860d36gmmgeb 3mB3m-
696@L BomImaaqbl Lbgawsabbgs Laboo (3me-
Bobs ©s 943LgMEnbalb dobmegds (0gbgds gb
3893 @Mgbobgo, 3mbLgm@ogos og Mggm-
896300 Logamm @byqdsb). o8 3m33mbgb@ab
99899&056mdob Igbogabgdmew 2011 Bl Ro-
GO ,(396@Mab” Im3baby@gdal Jggabgdals
9600560 baggmggmmbm gsdmzambgs “bodmgs-
©mgdMagn  mMasbods30gdal  gobgomamgdals
3Mmamadal” goMamgddo RsGomgdmmo §Mg-
b0bggdobs s 3mbLymE 30530l 3mbsoboreng Ls-
Bmgsmgdfng mMgsbodsnsms ImEab. godm 3-
00b308 dgbademgdmmds 8mag (3o 39a3959Lgdabs

SOCIAL IMPACTS

SO1 - Nature, scope, and effectiveness of any
programs and practices that evaluate
and manage the impacts of operations
on communities, including entering,
operating, and exiting.

In 2011, information was collected in accord-
ance with the system of programme evaluation
indicators developed for evaluating the pro-
gramme effectiveness. Results of aggregating
and analyzing the collected information will be
considered in planning the organization’s work
for 2012.

Besides, in the framework of different pro-
grams, surveys of beneficiary groups are con-
ducted in order to assess their satisfaction.

At the end of 2011, within the Community
Development Program, program indicators
and quality of implemented work was evaluated
in 12 target Community Centres. The analysis
demonstrated high effectiveness and stable de-
velopment of the Community Centres (see: The
Program Report, 41 p.) Based on these results,
the Program Impact Assessment was prepared
and the program activities for the year 2012
were planned.

Dissemination of knowledge and expertise
was one of the important components of our
work (this was done through trainings, con-
sultancy services and recommendations devel-
oped for public institutions). In 2011, in order
to estimate the efficiency of this component the
Centre conducted a telephone survey of the civ-
ic organizations that had participated in train-
ings and consultations carried out within the
Civic Organization Development Program. The
survey gave us an opportunity to assess overall
efficiency of our services (see: The Program Re-
port, 50 p.).
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Rgg60 LyFz0Lgdal Dmgswo gBgdE M. (abo-
9o 3Mmamadmo s63sMadon, a3. 50)

Go3 d9g9bgds  bbgoobbgs Labgmobegegemg-
b bygdgdobomgal dabmegdmem  Mg3m3gb-
©5(3098b, 308nbatgmdl doma  dgbexyemgdals
dnwdogo dmbo@mMoban, Moz sgMgmgg 3qbo-
dmgdemmdal g35dmgsb dgzoqgobmo Hmam(s
3MmamModal g89d@mmds, sbggg Logddnsbmdals
03 3m33mbgbGnm  Lobdmasmgdady dmbrg-
boemo bggezmgbs. dmbazndsmo@g@gdal dog
Brosb-bmaedry 938 Mg3m8gbosz0gdal goom-
35m0bBnbgdal 3bstn bobdomg agedmgsl ndals
030l ma3mgdsl, 93 bgggmadn Bggbo Logdasbm-
oo dmbgbomo ogdomn bgasgmgbs Lo -
dome bog®dbmdns. (abomgo 3Gmamadymon sb-
356030, a3. 52)

SO5 - mﬁgoBo%oGoob 3(0%0800 bobgq@&wgm

3@ ogol  bLogombgddg, sagosg

8076050@3(*760 bobagagmgm 3mo-
&0g30b dg3ds3900bs s mmdamgdals
Bﬁ)mggbao

LodmaoEMadady hggba Logdosbmdal bgges-
mgbs  godmabo@gds  sgMgmzg  Labymdbogm
3m0@030b gmEdamgdedg hzgbo baddnsbmdom

dmbrgbomon bgasgmabaon.

2011 Bgmb  mmasbado3008  LobgmdBogm
3mmo@ogob d99mga Lygmmgddy gosdsbgomo
ga®oregde:

e 93mbmdngMo o
ghombmgds;

boggnommto  qbe-

e 35Mgdmb  ©odnbdy@magds s dmgomasdgme
a0 93mbos330m0 Bmadgdo;

e dm3bIoMmygdgmms Rmgdgdo;

o bgmabyygmagdols ©09(396&Momabs(3000L
Mg@m@3o.
bLgbgdnm  Logombgdmeb  ®s393d0M9d00

2011 Bgemb 3m3baes s (396@E0b ,dogemg-
8q630" a0dmg3gybos 4 LEsGns, dmgbym 4
a0bbomas-bgdnbomn  Lbgowobbgs  Lgd@mmal
Bomdmdoggbgmms s dgbadoadabo bLygHmb
99L396&qd0lb dmbobamgmdam; safgmay (396~
BMab® g4L3gMEgdds dmbobomamds doomgl 22
oom s 28 §gmyg goms3gdadoa.
3565 5dabs, 2011 Bgeb:
o “396@Mab”  94L3gMEGgdds  LadoMmzgmmb
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Besides, implementation of these recom-
mendations given to various public institu-
tions is constantly monitored. This enables us
to estimate the program efficiency as well as the
social impact of these activities. From year to
year municipalities take into account more and
more recommendations provided by us, which
allows us to assume that our positive impact in
this area is quite substantial (see: The Program
Report, 52 p.).

SO5 - Public policy positions and participation
in public policy development and lob-
bying

Our activities also impact on the public
through our involvement in public policy for-
mation processes.

Under the current three year program (and
thus, in 2011 also) CSRDG focused on the fol-
lowing issues of state policies:
 Economic and social security;

o Environment pollution and citizens envi-
ronmental rights;

« Consumer rights;

« Government decentralization reform.

4 articles were prepared on the issues and
published in CSRDG's bulletin in 2011, and 4
discussion seminars involving representatives
of various sectors and experts from respective
areas was held. In addition, our experts partici-
pated in 22 radio and 28 TV programs.

The following also took place in 2011:

o In 2011, one of the Centre’s experts prepared
final recommendations for the Government
of Georgia regarding development and im-
plementation of the government policy stim-
ulating corporate social responsibility:

« In2011, the Centre’s experts were actively in-
volved in the work of 3 groups of the Eastern
Partnership Civil Society Forum, in the fol-
lowing areas:



dmogmmdabomgal  dgodydaggb  MgzmBgb-
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,,836@)60" od@n‘g(ﬁogg 0ym ﬁoﬁm‘gqm 3360’)—
30l badgDmdmmm 3mmo@n 3ol Bomamgdda g3-
m353900bs ©o LogsMmggmmb Imal s@bg-
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Imbo@mEnbaol 3Gm(39Ldn. 396dme “(396-
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936m3ab  Ladgbmdem  dmmo@nzal (ENP)

democracy, human rights, effective govern-
ance and stability;

economic integration and convergence of the
EU policy;

protection of the environment, climate chang-
es, and energy security.

One of the important areas of the Centre’s
research activities is support of free trade,
enhancement of competition and toughen-
ing of the anti-trust regulations in Georgia.
Part of the recommendations provided dur-
ing the previous years were taken into ac-
count in 2010 (adoption of the strategy) and
2011 when the draft Law on Free Trade and
Competition was submitted to the Parlia-
ment. This Law will promote formation of
free market which will have a substantial
positive influence on the country’s economy.
As a result of recommendations developed
by the Centres experts for public institu-
tions: the mechanism for identification of so-
cially vulnerable population was improved;
the Central Budget classifiers were refined
and the program budget development meth-
odology was elaborated; work was started on
development of development of a new mech-
anism for public finance distribution.

The Centre actively participated in monitor-
ing implementation of Georgias obligations
under the European Neighbourhood Policy
(ENP). Namely, the Centre participated in
a coalition project of the Eastern Partner-
ship Civil Society Forum during which the
Report on Implementation of Georgia's ENP
Action Plan 2011 (ENP AP 2011) was pre-
pared.

In cooperation with civil organizations of 6
member countries of the Eastern Partnership
Forum the Centre participated in drafting a
Position Paper of the Eastern Partnership
Civil Society Forum (CSF for EaP) addressed
to the Conference of Regional and Local Au-
thorities (CORLEAP) regarding the needs of
the local and regional public administration
reform. On the 8th of September 2011, this
document was presented by the Civil Society
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Forum at the inaugural meeting of the Con-
ference of Regional and Local Authorities
(CORLEAP) set up by the EU’s Committee
of the Regions in Poznan.

In 2011, the Centre’s expert actively par-
ticipated in drafting the final version of two
important environmental documents: “The
National Environmental Report” and “The
Environmental National Action Plan” (by
now both documents have been approved
by the Ministry of Environment and Natural
Resources).

At the same time, in cooperation with the
Agency of Disease Control and Public
Health, the Centre has prepared the Envi-
ronmental Health Assessment Report.

In 2011, thanks to the efforts of the Cen-
tre’s experts, amendments were made to the
Government Resolution on Control of Food
Products and the Code of Georgia on Food/
Animal Feed Safety, Veterinary and Plant
Protection.

(More details about the mentioned activity

are available in the Program Report, p 60 p. and
74 p.)
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mEa560bs300b byMz0bgdolb ImBb3amgdegdl
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b0bggdol dmbobaemggda. 2011 Bgmb mEgsbo-
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38m3m0bes yzgmady od@pegho begBmgdo
s dgbadsdabo (33momagdgdo dg3089bgor 2012
Brmol @Mgboby 3Mmamsdsdo.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

PR5 - Practices related to customer satisfac-
tion, including results of surveys meas-
uring customer satisfaction

Customers of the organization’s services are
participants of the trainings conducted by us.
In 2011, the organization’s trainers conducted
41 trainings. After the completion of every cy-
cle, the participants were given special evalua-
tion questionnaires to determine the customer
satisfaction level and identify the areas of the
most interest. As a result, respective changes
were made in the 2012 training programme.
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GRI 306306LAOL LOJNIBITN GRI CONTENT INDEX

badagogmdo Redmagmaemas 9baaM0dggdal The following Index contains a listing of each
939 bBBRIMG Y0 gm83mbgbdo ©o boddo-  GRI disclosure and performance indicator in-
2bmdal 9B9d@YOmdal 0bgoga@mMo, OB~ (1 ded in the report. It also shows where the
cegd0( dng0o Bobodgdaty 0baomeddo; odgy 1 mation about each component and perfor-
domamgdnmos, Lo dgodmgds Imadomo ab- L. i

&3 3 % mance indicator could be found in the report.
3™ 9(300 MOOIMGYD COMAS J-

o LB bomImoagboemn/ @  696ommdmoag Boddmmagbocrn/
Fully reported Partially reported

GRI gm@3s5@0b bEsbps@Ggymoa 3m33mbg6ggdo LobAoymg/ 36336030b a39Mn 56 33-
©> 0ben35§mMgda Addressed Ly333abo 3363569
Standard Disclosures and performance Indica—é

Relevant pages of
report or explanation

1.1 y3gmodg Bomomo Msbaol gowsbyzg@omadal
3030gdn 3060l gob(3bsgds () 4

Statement from the CEO

2.1 m@gs60bsz300b Lobgmo S 10
Name of the organisaton & = i

2.2 980o3M9bo bagod@m 83, 3Gmuyd30s ©o/56
dm3bobymgds [ 10-12
Primary brands, products, and/or services

......

2.3 mF3560bs300b bam3gMazom (gbgombarea)
LEPYIGYOe
Operational structure of the organisation, includ- (] 10
ing main divisions, operating companies, subsidi-
aries, and joint ventures

......

2.4 m3560bs3000L bamsm mazzobob dpgdsmgmds

Location of organisation’s headquarters o b 2
2.5 6530096 J39406530 bogd0s6MBL M sbaD (300
Number of countries where the organisation op- ° 10
erates, and names of countries with major opera-
tions
2.6 bogmomgdolb gm&mds s agGowoggmo bGsG Lo ° 10
Nature of ownership and legal form
2.7 ®m3gm dobMgdb g3Lobm@gds mmasbadszns
Markets served ¢ 10-12
2.8 5639603339890 mMasbods300b bowowy ° 13-14

Scale of the reporting organisation
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2.9 Losbgomndm 3gMomedn  gsbbmM(z0gmgdmmo 2011 Bgmb mmgasbadszosl
360d36b9mm3560 (33m0mgdgda dmBab, LGN ]- of aoby (30000 Mo0dg LgMom-
&b 96 bagmomgdob mgembsdHoboom Bymo  (33momgdgdo dmaab,
Significant changes during the reporting period LEONIGYOL ob Lagymeg-
regarding size, structure, or ownership o 0b gmM3ob 0gombobHoboom

No significant changes regard-
ing size, structure or owner-
ship took place during the
reporting period 2011

2.10 bosbgamadm 3gFommadn domgdymo gormomgdo Losbaomodm  3gMommdn o6
Awards received in the reporting period PY 303300005 KomEmgdo

No awards have been received
during the reporting period

3.1 bosbgamodm 3gMommo :2010 Bemab 1 0sb63M006 31

Reporting period o ©9393363g
January 1-December 31,2011

3.2 Babos obgomndal 8m8bomgdal mamacn 2010 Bemolb 3atown asbgo-

Date of most recent previous report o ®56gd0b 5bgscndo
Sustainability Report 2010

3.3 sbaofndagdol 3gMomoeemmds ° ymggmbmonma
Reporting cycle Annual

3.4 Logmb@d@™ 3060 Jgz00b39dal asBgbob dgdmb- i
393900 o 33
Contact point for questions regarding the report

3.5 obgoc0dob dnbssmbol gobbobmgmal 3Gm3qLa

. o 31-32
Process for defining report content

3.6 56356030l ggotamgdo / Boundary of the report o 30

3.7 sbgomndalb ogsmgal LggHmb o6 gomamagdal
o®a960bsL 5Mbgdmmo Jgdmyozgdo ° 30
Specific limitations on the scope or boundary of
the report

3.8 gfhomdmogo LaBsMIMgdal, Bomosmgdals, s69b- of a3543L gfommdmoga be-
oo a5399ma babamImgdol/@obswgsmgdals, BofMBmgdn, omasmgdo ©s o.
33030686J@mM3vy  @amgaetgdgmo  Bb- d.

J30930b 3qbobad 56356033 930b boggmdzgemo o We do not have joint ventures,
Basis for reporting on joint ventures, subsidiaries, subsidiaries etc.

leased facilities, outsourced operations, and other

entities

3.9 Babs Bmgdol 96306039630 Bomdmmagbamo 0b- o6 dgagozgmos BoMdmoag-
B 3d(300b FMEINEmagdol dg(33mob dgogag- bomo abxm®3s (300l M-
0, 5bg3g 9833560 MgBmEmINmamgdab dodgdgdo P moMgds gobamo Bengdol 56s-
Explanation of the effect of any re-statements of 360390056 dgroMgdom
information provided in earlier reports No re-statements of the infor-

............................ mation have been made
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3.10 360d3bgmmgabo (33emamgdgdo Bobs brmgdmasb

dgomgdoo  sbgsM0dal  ogamzgol  LygMmb,
B gdol ob Imbs(398ms osbascndgdals 3g-

o6 a5bbmM309mgdyms 3603-

3bgemgebo  3gmorgdgdo
adbeymo Bemgdob sbgsmndgdo-

omEgdal mgembsdHaboo o6 dgmetgdoon  agaMzal

Significant changes from previous reporting pe- bggmmb,  gomamgdalb o6

riods in the scope, boundary, or measurement ° 8mbo(398m>  @29635M0dgdal;

methods applied in the report 3gomegdob ogombsdbHoboo
No significant changes from
previous reporting periods in
the scope, boundary, or meas-
urement methods have been
..made .........

3.11 GRI 3absstmbob badagdgemo
Table identifying the location of the Standard o 112

Disclosure in the report

4.1 oma560Ds300b 3doMmggmmdals b G J@ncs
o o 20-23
Governance structure of the organisaation
4.2 dogmomgm, dsmmabo 33sGmggemmdamn mMgs- a0dggmdal o33 xmdatg
Bl 0033 mdotg 0dsgeMmmyemsm bmd o6 sMab 03530MmMmo© oMol mMasb-
om3sbAmgdgmo 89bgxgcn(s { i0bo300b 0Bl ymgdgmo
Indicate whether the Chair of the highest govern- : o i 0oy d@meo
ance body is also an executive officer Executive director is also the
chairperson of the Board
4.3 mdsmmgbo 38sGm39mo mMasbml sdmej0mg- 35839mds dgoagds 5 Bgzmab-
dgmo /06 sMs-smBsbmmmagdgmo Bg36gdab 5356. 850356 3 50l mEgsbo-
omEgbmds Boz00bogsb  @edmey300939-
State the number of members of the highest gov- ™o 69360, boognm mGo —
ernance body who are independent and/or non- ™6as60ba300b 02965336m3g-
executive members @0 (mMadbobogaol  sxdsb-
Ggmgdgme RoMyGmOo ©d
LoDmgsEMgdMozo MmMasbods-
(309%00L  gob30momgdals 3Gm-
PS a0l 3mmMEbs@mmn)
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The Board is a highest govern-
ance body. It consists of five
members, three of whom are
independent and non-execu-
tive. The other two members
serve CSRDG in an executive
capacity, namely: executive
director and program coordi-
nator.



4.4 394960%39d0, HmIgmams dgdggmdac ogz0mbg-
90L o ©86533OMImmgdl dgydmnsm Mg 3mdgb-
(30900 ©5 domnmgdgda dnsbmmmb mmasbo-
Ba300b dsmmgl 3dsGnggmmdom mEgsbmb o 24-25
Mechanisms for shareholders and employees to
provide recommendations or direction to the
highest governance body

414 ©s068)gMgLbgdam dbstgoms xanxgdo, MHmAI-
mgdog haMommo nygbgb mMasbobs ool baddn-
3bmdob 3m3gLbdo @ 25-26
List of stakeholder groups engaged by the organi-
zation

4.15 0l Loggdggmbdyg aobLodM3Mgo s dgemhogo,
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RoBomnysbgb Lodd056mdab 3rm(39L3n o 25
Basis for identification and selection of stakehold-
ers with whom to engage

EC 1 — 354860mo ©s g56560mgdammoa g3mbmangmmo 80
oM 9dmmgds D (ob. sbggg a3.13-14; @sbstion 6)
Direct economic value generated and distributed (see also: pg. 13-14; Annex 6)

EC 8 — 3m3gMsoqmo, bogm@oom o6 babdmgswmmgdo-
Loomgal Laboggorm Lodd0sbmdol gmEdom 0b-
BOLEOMJG o aobbmz0gmadamo 0bgglb-
&0(309%0 ©5 babdmgsmgdabsmgal babotggdmmm
dmaboby@gdal gobznmamgds, sbggg o3 gbom
dmbrgbomo dgaegmgbs
Development and impact of infrastructure invest-
ments and services provided primarily for public
benefit through commercial, inkind, or pro bono
engagement

D 81-82

EC 9 — 360d3bgmmgabo nfndo g3mbmdognma bgdm-
48900980bs ©s 3ol 35L3Godal s6smaba s se-
by
Understanding and describing significant indi-
rect economic impacts, including the extent of
impacts

EN1 — 8mb3scgdgmo bgomgnma/dabsms Bmbals 56
3mmmdals Bomomgdom > 88

[ 83-87

Materials used by weight or volume

..............................
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Direct energy consumption by primary energy source
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Indirect energy consumption by primary source
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Total water withdrawal by source
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33060 35836Md393900L dmmnsbo m@gbmds, do-
Lol domnmgdom o 91-93
Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emis-
sions by weight

EN22 —656Rgbgdol domosba  3sbos, wocmadymo
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omEgdob dobgogom
Total weight of waste by type and disposal method

) 93-94
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Log80obmdab Mga0mbgdal dabgogom
Total workforce by employment type, employ-
ment contract, and region
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Total number and rate of employee turnover by
age group, gender, and region
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©5 Jgmagomgdo, MmImagdoz o6  3M(39mmgds
MMgdom ob babggzem dGe® by Imdmdagy 0sb-
5336Mm3mgdbdy, smodymo bsgd0sbmdal dofon- o 96-97
®o©0 $039dab dobggzom
Benefits provided to full-time employees that are
not provided to temporary or part-time employees,
by major operations

LA10 — Bgmoboda badwamme Modwgbo basomn absfgg-
ds gm0 00658d6EmImal bBogmgdaby/@mgbobyg-
3%g, 096533MmBgmms 3@ gamMngdob Jobgozam o 98
Average hours of training per year per employee
by employee category
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mance and career development reviews
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Composition of governance bodies and breakdown
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dicators of diversity.

99-101
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Nature, scope, and eftectiveness of any programs and
practices that assess and manage the impacts of op- :
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Public policy positions and participation in pub-
lic policy development and lobbying

106-108
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results of surveys measuring customer satisfaction :
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Global
Reporting
Initiative™

Statement
GRI Application Level Check

GRI hereby states that Centre for Strategic Research and Development of Georgia has presented its
report “CSRDG Sustainability Report 2011” to GRI’s Report Services which have concluded that the
report fulfills the requirement of Application Level C.

GRI Application Levels communicate the extent to which the content of the G3 Guidelines has been
used in the submitted sustainability reporting. The Check confirms that the required set and number of
disclosures for that Application Level have been addressed in the reporting and that the GRI

Content Index demonstrates a valid representation of the required disclosures, as described in the GRI
G3 Guidelines.

Application Levels do not provide an opinion on the sustainability performance of the reporter nor the
quality of the information in the report.

Amsterdam, 14 August 2012

& C

- GRI REPORT
GRI CHECKED

Nelmara Arbex
Deputy Chief Executive
Global Reporting Initiative

The Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) is a network-based organization that has pioneered the development of the world’s most widely used
sustainability reporting framework and is committed to its continuous improvement and application worldwide. The GRI Guidelines set out
the principles and indicators that organizations can use to measure and report their economic, environmental, and social performance.
www.globalreporting.org

Disclaimer: Where the relevant sustainability reporting includes external links, including to audio visual material, this statement only con-
cerns material submitted to GRI at the time of the Check on 2 August 2012. GRI explicitly excludes the statement being applied to any later
changes to such material.
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36063030 1 — 30Bbgbn dbsmb 9bos 9dgMmgb s
358030 L3999l bsgMmsdmMabm Embydg sSmasMgdym
500330560l 93mgd930.
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358 33bbabdggdmmdsb. .
36063030 9 — 30b6gb3s byma 9bws Igmbymb 356m5dmb : EN2, EN5-7,EN 10, EN 18,
©33bman §g46mmmangdab gsb3nmsmgdabs s gsdmygbgdsb. | EN 26 -27, EN30, SO5
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6065539 6530b30gMa 353m3mqbab sm3mgbzmsb, 33dmdsmgabs s
d6dmems 39]60153gmdab Rsmgmaan.

3bGomo gundbgds GRI s UNGC ghomdmog gsdm3gdsl ,qfmag@ogogdamals ©sdystg-
do: 9bogM0daqdol gmmdsmamn aboz0s@oz0b babgmddmagebgmm domamgdgdo ©s gog@mb
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396b0s go6magbgdmmoas 398-3390wddg: www.globalreporting.org s www. csrdg.ge
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GLOBAL COMPACT

CSRDG has committed itself to the ten guiding principles of the Global Compact initiative.
This report also meets the basic compliance as a “Communication on Progress” for the UN Global
Compact (UNGC). The following table shows which GRI G3 performance indicators relate to
each of the ten Global Compact principles.

Issue Areas GC Principles Relevant GRI Indicators

" EC 5, LA4, LA6 - 9; LA13 - 14,
. HR1-9,S05,PR1-2,PR 8

Principle 1- Businesses should support and respect the protection
of internationally proclaimed human rights.

Principle 2- Businesses should make sure that they are " HR1 -9, 805
not complicit in human rights abuses.

Principle 3 — Businesses should uphold the freedom of association . LA4 -5, HR1 - 3, HR5, SO5
and the effective recognition of the right to collective bargaining. :

Labor

Principle 4 — Businesses should uphold the elimination - HR1 - 3, HR7, S0O5
of all forms of forced and compulsory labor. :

Principle 5 - Businesses should uphold the effective abolition of - HR1 - 3, HR6, SO5

child labor.
Principle 6 — Businesses should uphold the elimination . EC7, LA2, LA13 - 14, HR1 - 4,
of discrimination in respect of employment and occupation. 805

Principle 7 - Businesses should support a precautionary EC2, EN18, EN26, EN30, SO5
approach to environmental challenges. :

Principle 8 — Businesses should undertake initiatives EN1 - 30, SO5, PR3 -4
to promote greater environmental responsibility. .

Principle 9 - Businesses should encourage the development : EN2, EN5-7,EN 10, EN 18,
and diffusion of environmentally friendly technologies. " EN 26 - 27, EN30, SO5

Principle 10 - Businesses should work against corruption S02-6
in all its forms, including extortion and bribery

Anti-Corruption

The table is based on one published by the GRI and UNGC in handbook
“Making the Connection: The GRI Guidelines and the UNGC Communication on Progress’,
available at: www.globalreporting.org/CurrentPriorities/ UNGC/
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ANNEX

Projects implemented in 2011

Strengthening Local Authorities - The Way
Towards Decentralization (2010 - 2011)
/Delegation of the European Union to Geor-
gia/

Trainings for Civil Society Organizations
(2011)
/Open Society Foundation- Georgia/

Position Paper on Public administration re-
form in EaP countries to CORLEAP (2011)
/ The Embassy of Czech Republic/

Consumers Control Food Products
(2011-2012)
/Eurasia Partnership Foundation/

Including CSR and related issues in educa-
tion programs and university curriculums -
Publication of the CSR manual (2011-2012)
/Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES)/

Corporate social responsibility and the
role of government in its promotion (2011-
2012)

/Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES)/

Social Entrepreneurship - New Challenge
for NGOs (2011-2012)
/Open Society Foundation — Georgia/

Sharing of Eastern European Experience on
promotion of Corporate Social Responsi-
bility and Social Entrepreneurship (2011-
2012)

/Open Society Foundation — Georgia/

Three years program of the Center (2011 -
2013)
/Church Development Service (EED)/
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ANNEX

DONORS AND PARTNERS

OXFAM - NOVIB;

Church Development Service — EED;
Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES);

Delegation of the European Union to
Georgia;

European Neighborhood policy initiative;
MWH Consortium;

APRODEYV;

Open Society — Georgia Foundation;
Birmingham University;

United Nations Organization of Georgia;
Center for Change and Conflict Management
“Partners-Georgia”;

Civil Society Institute;

Caucasian Institute for Peace, Democracy
and Development;

Civil Development Association of Georgia
(Lagodekhi);

Union for Democratic Development of Geor-
gia (Ozurgeti);

Telavi bureau nof the Centre for Strategic Re-
searcha and Development of Georgia (Telavi);
Young Economists Association of Georgia;
Center for Training and Consultancy;
Association “ELKANA”;

United Nations Development
(UNDP);

DVYV International;

International Centre for Conflict and Nego-
tiation;

Global Initiative in Psychiatry;

Caucasus Environmental NGO Network
(CENN);

British Council;

Eurasia Partnership Foundation (EPF);
Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the Czech
Republic;

Norwegian Refugee Council;

Charity Humanitarian Centre Abkhazeti;
UN Global Compact Georgia.

Program
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ANNEX

Successful initiatives of community youth
centers in 2011.

Success Stories of the Fund Diversification.

In 2011, civic organizations Community
Union Gulgula (from Telavi Municipality) and
Community Youth Center “Leli I” (from La-
godekhi Municipality), achieved success in
attracting funds from different sources. As a
result, “Leli 1” implemented 6 projects and “Gul-
gula” - 3 projects. The majority of projects im-
plemented by the Community Union “Gulgula”
contained a component of teaching the village
population, namely informal trainings and in-
formative events. Special focus was made on the
socially vulnerable segment of the population
and women. As a result of this project, 120 peo-
ple attended trainings on various issues includ-
ing basic accounting courses, development of
business plans, project applications, successful
career development etc. It is important to note
that in 2011 the projects and educational events
organized by the Community Center created
jobs for 6 people.

Besides using the funds, both community
centers have their own sources of income and
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»(390@M0LY  3oMBbomMa  mMasbadszoal  —
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696 Lomgdm (396@E0lb bomdmowaqbemgdacs.

potential because both of them are involved in
entrepreneurial activities. A sewing workshop
has been operating in Gulgula’s facility for a year
now (4 ladies are employed there). Products of
this sewing workshop (blankets, mattresses) are
successfully sold not only in the local commu-
nity, but also in different regions of East Georgia.
As for “Leli 17 they have recently started bee-
farming and currently own 33 bee hives. In fu-
ture, income received from these activities will
be used for organization of informative cam-
paigns in the field of agriculture and improve-
ment of the education level in the community.

Examples of Successful Cooperation with
Local Self-Government Bodies and Lobbing
of the Community Problems

Community Youth Centers of Lagodekhi
(Kakheti), Ozurgeti (Guria) da Chokhatauri
(Guria)

In Lagodekhi Municipality community
youth centers managed to establish very success-
ful cooperation with the municipality, namely
with its Department of Sports and Youth Af-
fairs. This cooperation is gaining more and more
strength. In 2011, a three year strategic plan of
the above Department was developed with the
support and assistance of the CSRDG’s partner
organization - the Georgian Civil Development
Association. Representatives of the community
centers took an active part in the workshop,
together with the Department employees. The
strategic plan was used as a basis for the Depart-
ments Operations Plan for 2012 which, among
other issues, envisages implementation of joint
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activities together with community centers. If in
2011 the funding allocated by this Department
for each community center was GEL 500 (the to-
tal number of community centers is 4), in 2012
the funding doubled up to GEL 1000.

In Guria community youth centers (there are
5) have established good cooperation with lo-
cal civic organizations and are well involved in
their activities. In particular, three youth cent-
ers of Ozurgeti municipality participate in the
project called “Public Interests and the Govern-
ment’s Choice” implemented by the Georgian
Democratic Development Union. The goal of
the project is to inmplement legislative changes
and introduce effective self-government opera-
tion mechanisms in order to increase the level
of public participation in the local governance.
The problem was related to the implementation
of official duties by the majoritarian member of
the Municipal Council (Sakrebulo) and compli-
ance with the reporting obligations provided
for in the law. Previously these obligations were
completely neglected. The main task of the pro-
ject was to monitor implementation of these du-
ties. The youth centers were actively involved in
the monitoring process.

In parallel, the community centers dissemi-
nated information on Sakrebulo’s planned meet-
ings among the village population and submit-
ted to the local government information about
population survey results. Besides, the commu-
nity centers also monitored the meeting sched-
ule of the representational body in order to en-
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sure its compliance with the requirements of the
law. As a result, Sakrebulo studied nine problems
raised buy the population of the targeted villag-
es, including issues of one-time assistance and
monetary assistance to families living below the
poverty level. Sakrebulo made positive decisions
regarding 5 issues raised by the population and
the remaining 4 are currently being reviewed.

Besides, within the framework of the Rural
Development program a bridge was repaired
in the Jumati village, rural roads and a kinder-
garten were repaired in the Baileti village, rein-
forced plastic doors and windows were installed
in the kindergarten building and water pipes
were repaired in the Askana village. The total
cost of all these projects was GEL 47,326

Success Stories of Service Delivery to So-
cially Vulnerable Population

For Community Center Kiskisa (Telavi mu-
nicipality) the main target group is socially vul-
nerable population, namely children who have
the “adopted child” status and are under a tem-
porary care of the local families. In total there are
25 such children in the municipality. They are
alienated from their peers and the local popula-
tion in general and have very serious problems
related to social integration. In 2010 the Com-
munity Center started intensive work with these
children in order to provide them with certain
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dme, 6odznmgdo d5333960L LGoGLab 3dmby

20030mdMng Mmxobgddo ©Mmdoo godznmg-
3o 35393980 bomdmaanbyb. 83 35333900l
03630, %0330 25-b, dgoa 9bL. dom sgamm-
3603 00bo@mMmadmob s dmbobmmgmdobomsb
a309(36mgdob s 06GgaMs300Lb LyMom Dy
36mdmg39d0 9430. bomgdm (396@ 3 53 bogd-
390056 0689bLoMa dmdomds s dommgal
a0M339mmo  3mdboby@gdob as6g3zs  (3gdm-
48ggdomn B6ggda0, L3MGEGNmo ©s  Jym-
GO mmo  mmbabdngdgdo,  3m330y@gfmmao
36bgdo, BobBagmadgmgdol s ,8dmdmgdab®
BMgbabggdo s 5.8.) 2010 Bermowsb @sobym.
LobYab g&o3dy, 65d30emgd 35333900, saomm-
3003 6039390000, 30dmgd 3dmdmgdmeb o
3obBo3mMadmgdmab, 3mbymaddnda Lbodwmo-
(30900 943b653m©o0 s 3basgbo dgdmbgg39d0L
Mozbgo bogdomm domamo ngm. Lamgdm (396-
G0l 3qdomdab 2 bemal mo3bg hoGomgdamaos
a0dm33mg303 30 oAzq6s, MM3 3mbgyemnddqod-
ol MomEgbmds  Log@dbmdmaw  dgdznMmes,
@00 ddob aobobgzmes. gondofes 35333960l
06 gaMa(300L bofabbo s, 3mbazndsmndg@-
@b aMbgdgmo  Lmgosma@a  LosggbGmb
®06033MmM3gemol dgg3obgdoom, o3 ds3d3900b
aodmmhggs 353d39080bogsb

339 3M0d@03nmowe, dgndmgdgmos.

2030emmdM030
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services (such as amateur and folk art lessons,
sportive and cultural events, computer courses,
trainings for teachers and parents etc.). At the
initial stage the children often had conflicts with
the local children, foster parents and teachers.
The research carried out by the Community
Center 2 years later showed that the number of
conflicts reduced = significantly — almost by half.
Their social integration level improved. Accord-
ing to the Social Agency of the local municipal-
ity now it is practically impossible to differenti-
ate these children from their local peers.




Q3696010

&®J36063330/3M6LIYTGIBNIBN/LIAN6IAIBN
TRAININGS/CONSULTATIONS/SEMINARS

Lymgdm mMas60ds30gdabmgab s sbamasbHEymo 396@Mgdabogab
For CYCs and CBOs

1 CSRDG Program

(39680l 3mamads

2 CSRDG Program

(39680l 3Omamads

3 CSRDG Program

(39680l 3mamads

4 CSRDG Program

(39680l 3mamads

5 CSRDG Program

(39680l 3mamads

6 CSRDG Program

(39680l 3mamads

7 CSRDG Program

(3960l 3OmaMmads

8 CSRDG Program

(39680l 3mamads

9 CSRDG Program

(39680l 3ma®mads

10 CSRDG Program

(39680l 3Omamads

11 CSRDG Program

(39680l 3mamads

Strategic Planning (Lagodekhi)
LEBoGga Yo 39333
(oamrygbn)

Strategic Planning (Telavi)
LEGo@ga0gmo ©893830 (2greog0)
Strategic Planning (Ozurgeti)
LEBGga0 Yo @333
(mdgGagon)

Strategic Planning (for youth organiza-
tion “Progressi”)

LG ga0gmo @ogadgs (sbocr-
35bONmo mEgsbndszns “3Em-
aM9b0”)

Skill Development for Adopting Parents
MboM-h393960 65d30mgd0 3533393
ab 808mgd0 3dmdmgdabomgal

Local Govenrnemt Social Programs and
conduction of population poll in this
regard

dnbozndomydo bmosmyMo 3m-
3653980 ©d 83 3mbooc Imbobemgm-
30l godmgombgol dgmmeomemmaos
Experience sharing workshop
a53momgdol gsbosmgdol bad-
adom dgbggos

TOT on Project writing, Team building
and Effective communication

&M gbabgn &M gbgcgdabogal 3mm-
93&0L BgFob Bgbogs, 3960
dmdomds s 959G e
3M396035(300

Do No Harm

o6 536m

Project Planing and designing
36m1d@ob @egqadzob s BgMob
&3gboggdo

Team Building and Leadership
a6ma 3mdomds ©d
moEgMmds

ANNEX

16

14

12

20

33

35

16

15

16
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12 CSRDG Program
(39680l 3Omamads

Sub-Total
Ly sdbbEmgms Momogbmds

FOR NGOs, SCHOOLS, BUSINESSES
LybdmagsEmgdMagn MEa560D3(30980bmgab, bymmagdabsmzab, 3096gbobogal

13 Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES)
BHoMob 9d9MEG0b gmboo

14 Open Society Foundation- Georgia
gmbeo “m0s Lydmgsmgds —
LogoMmggmm”

15 Open Society Foundation— Georgia
gmboo “mos bybmaspmgds —
bogommggmm”

16 Open Society Foundation- Georgia
gmbeo “mos Lobdmgsmmgds —
Logdoomggmm”

17 Open Society Foundation- Georgia
Bmbo “mos babmaswpmgds —
baogdoomggmm”

18 Open Society Foundation- Georgia
gmboo “mos Lobdmasmmgds —
bogoBmggmm”

19 Open Society Foundation- Georgia
gBmbeo “mos Lydmgsmmgds —
bogotmggmm”

20 Open Society Foundation— Georgia
BmMbo “mos bLabmgsmmagds —
bogoGmggmm”

21 School Ne 198
bgmemo Ne198

22 School Ne 198
Lgmems Ne198

23 Women Initiative Support Group
Jomms 0bo(3008 03980l dbsm-

©33FgM0 XaYGO

" Team Building and Leadership

amboymo 8mdomds ©d moEyFm-
oo

CSR and Public Sector Role

3MM3MEs (3090 begosmy&in
3obybobdagdmmds s bogstim bgd-
&mMal Gmmo

Business planning for Social Enterprises
d0bgbgbol oggadzs Lmnsmao
LoBomdmgdabomgals
Business planning for Social Enterprises
d0bgbgbol s39a835 Lmznaea@o
Labamdmgdabsmgals

Proposal Writing
36mgd@ob by

Proposal Writing
36mgd@ob Bghs

Constituency Building
dboMagdgfMalb 3m3mggds

Business planning for Social Enterprises
d0bgbgbol ©sggadgs Lmgnsmao
LoBamdmgdabomgals

Diversity Management
36035mRgMH™306950L Jofmmgs

Program Evaluation

3Mmamadolb dggabgds
Strategic Planning
LEG>GIBYE0 R393330
Strategic Planning
LE®>GI30 Y0 @333

14

199

18

16

16

16

15

18

17

17

27

11
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24 NGO “Istoriali”
LodmasmgdMmngo mMasbadszns
“ob@mEnomo”

25 DVYV International
Lobaombm 1bnggMbodg@ s agm-
3obymo sbm(zos(z00

26 NGO “Sokhumi”
LodmasEmMgdfngn mEgsbads(zns
“beabndn”

27 NRC
bmgga00b m@Gmmazomms bodgm

28 Civil Society Development Association
bogofmggmmb bodmJomadm
306300056950b sbmz09(300

29 CHCA
bogdggmadmgddgom 313s60@stv)-
™o (396@ 0 sgbsdgomn

30 Geo-cell
%x9mbyero

31 Bank of Georgia
LogoMmggmmb 356 30

Sub-Total

by ©a3LbEMgms Mommgbmds

FOR LG REPRESENTATIVES

Concept of Social Entrepreneurship

Leovgoomm@o  3gbomdgmdol  3mb-
CHEICRY

Business planning for Social Enterprises
d0bgbgbol ©sg9a83s Lmznsmamo
LoBamdmgdabamgals

Result oriented Project planning and
evaluation

dgmgadg mF0gb@nmgdamo 3Gmygd-
&0l 393335 s Jgnobgds
Organizational Needs Assessment and
strategic planning

mmasbobsomo bagnmmgdgdal dg-
BobYos s bMoGIa0Ymo ©337383
Strategic Planning

L&MoGIa0Yere Rd39ad30

Strategic Planning for CBOs
LEMIGgaPmo ©d39a835 Lomgdm
m@a560Ds(30980b0300

Project Management
proeqtis marTva

Effective Service Provision
99539d&9M0 bgFgabgdal Bobmogds

saommdMngo bgmaobyygmgdab 6363m3sw0a96mgdabogzal

32 Delegation of the European Union to
Georgia (EU)
936m353d0600b BomImIsmaqb-
mmds bogoMmggmmdo

33 The Embassy of Czech Republic
Rgbgonb Ggb3mdmoagzal bogmbm

Sub-Total
Ly ©o3LbEMgms Mommgbmds

Municipal services and citizen partici-
pation

dnbondsmydo Lycgabgdo o dm-
Jomoggms 8mbsboemgmds
Completion of Position Paper for sub-
mission to CORLEAP

omdmbogmgo 3o GbomGmmdal  bo-
bBmgomgdMog ma060dsz00ms
gm&930b (CSF for EaP) gHomdmogo
dndamomgol  (mboGomb 8396) dg-
dmdoggds Mganmbamo ©s saormm-
d60g0 bgmobypmgdalb 3mbygmgb-
(300bodn (CORLEAP)
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20

15

17

18

16

23

13

14

314

30

15
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34 MWH Assistance in preparation of project 63
MWH 306bme 304980 proposals for Black Sea CBC call for
proposals

dogo degal ogbab LodmgHabdams
0065336 Immdals 3mamadal
(CBC) 36mgd@gdolb 8mbadbswgdg-

mo bgdobomgda
35 MWH Assistance in preparation of project 46
MWH 3mbbme 309930 proposals for Black Sea CBC call for
proposals

ds30 Demgab abol LodmgMabdoms
056533OmBemmdals 36mamodol
(CBC) 36mgd@gdol 8mboddowgdg-

mo bgdnbatgda
GRAND TOTAL 667
X3VAN HIMRIGMB3Y
132

IR3MIRN 33630036 I3NL 96326N3N 2011



RI606010

2011 6emob 353m3939380
J3mbmdn 35 s beosenmmo Smemodo s

donmg§gbo N 118

o Lodomggmmb g3mbmdngntn Mggmmcdg-
b0l 2010 Bemob 39@bo — dgaggames oy oo
80dsGornmgds 394@mm3s? /a. dbgmady/

e 36@03M0Dabmmo 8969%89680b doMomaewa
ab3gd@agda / 3. sgomodgoemn/

®©96966 M350 b53305/0300333MHaz90mm-
30b 3563005938

donymg§gbo N 119

*  gobgomyMa ©9(396@MdmaDs (300
bagomoggmmdo /3. BgGagmos; 3. 339wg-
bosbo; a. Gmgmogzodgzoma/

3MmIyMo:
dnbondomydn Jmbgdol gmmdomgds ©s
a0b3oMags;
>a0mmdMogn  doyRg&ogds ©ds dmbo-
Gm0bgo;
dnbozndomy@n  dm3babymgds s dm-
Jomodgms dmbaboemgmds.

FMA3mEsoaemn bmposemnamo 3sbayb-
nbd3z98emm30b 3563005/M935

donmg§gbo N 120
3mM3mmsommo  bmgosmygmo  3sbyb-
0b3agdmmds s Logsm Lgd@meal Hmea

/. bmgghos/

09d0b 3563005935

3MmIyMo:
®930b gobgnmomgdal Jbgmyco 3Gmamseds
(2006-20106.6.)

2010 Bemab daMman gobznmsmgdals
36g5Mnda.

ANNEX

CSRDG publications in 2011

Economics and Social policy

Bulletin N118

o The 2010 course of Georgias economic re-
forms / G. Dzneladze

o The main aspects of anti-crisis management /

M. Avalishvili/

Government Decentralization/ Local gov-
ernment development

Bulletin N119
o Fiscal decentralization in Georgia / Sh. Mur-

gulia, G. Gvelesiani, G. Toklikishvili

Brochure:

o Forming and management of municipal prop-
erty;
Local budgeting and monitoring;
Municipal services and public involvement.

Promoting Corporate Social Responsibil-
ity

Bulletin N120

o Corporate Social Responsibility and the Role
of the Public Sector
/L. Khoperia/

Community Development

Brochure:
o Community Development network program

(2006-2010)

Sustainability Report 2010.
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A | 2063600 ANNEX

2011 6emob nbsbbrymn sbzs5Mmndn Financial Report for 2011 / Auditort’s
Report 2011

1. 80b636byMa Jpam3smgmdab 335635603935 (mom3n)
2011 6emob 1 0563/M0s6 2011 6emob 31 @g;393860b Bsogemoo 39mompnbsmznb

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ( IN GEL)
For the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011

0Jd®033a0 SSETS
303nbs6g 3J@n3gd0 Current Assets
g bablbEgdo s doma 55 947 252 541  Cash and Cash Equivalents
133030296 %0
Logomsbaboom od@ozgdo 14727 26 415 Tax Assets
aosbomo 5356bgdn 1 664 2090 Advance Payment
Lyem 0dnbatig og@o0ggdo 72703 281046 Total Current Assets
amdgm3smnsbo sd@nzgda Long-term Assets

dofomowo badmemgdgda 188 579 202 683  Fixed assets
Leyem afMdgmgemnsbn sg@&nggdn 188 579 202 683 Total long-term Assets
by 3J@nggdn 261282 483729 Total Assets

633643380 201001 396261 RESERVES
301bsbamgdgmon 8mggds/bofsma 54298 431563  Accumulated gain/loss

80bm@gdnesb s 3388 761 Accounts Payable
3m3bobyc 530056 bocdmddbaemn
30RO YgdYdo

a90sbobrgma bgmegabgdo 8 16 923  Salary Payables
Logomababoom gomuadamgds 2596 26 631 Tax Liabilities
L 808nbomyg gomegdamgdgdo 5993 44315  Total Current Liabilities
Laym GgbgMzggdo s 261282 483729 Total Reserves and Liabilities

3oem)dgengdgde
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2. gemsa bobbFMgdab ImdMomdab 56356033985 ((mo6da)
2011 6emob 1 0563/m0s6 2011 6emab 31 ©g;93860b Bsomzemoo 3gmompnbsoznb

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (GEL)
For the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011

05653360m8mgddg go(399nma 497 445 463 685 Cash Paid to Employees

mobbgdn
3560 3m3Laby@gdobomgal s 25019 300 228 Paid amounts for goods/services apply
dgdgboemo Logmbmoabogal asoggdqmo
Fmoeo babbgdo
803Mmamab@gda 154 377 307 996 Micro Grants Given
Lbgs 3Mma®madamo bafggdo 2 138 157718 Other Operating Expenses
a903bomo bedgdmbsegmm 137 666 89 985 Income Taxes Paid
3905bsbowo

dofomao bademgdgdal 3gdgbs - 5805 Purchase of Premises and Equipment
396bos ImMab bbgsmdowsb domg- 3575 3162 Exchange Rate Loss

dqma D3Mmomo
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3. 393mbagsma/ bosmn gyemab 3g3mbgms (ms6dn)
2011 6emob 1 0563056 2011 6emob 31 @g;393860b Bsomzemno 39Mmnmmnbsozab

STATEMENT OF Cash Receipts ( In GEL)
For the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011

mgbgsd-bmgnda - 322 668 OXFAM - NOVIB
93gboob gobgomsmgdol 399 073 651712 Church Development Service (EED)
Loogqgb@m
936m 353306000 bomImIsanb- 64 309 103 964 Delegation of the European Union to
mmds bagoGomggmmdo Georgia
bogd3memdo(3gLb (Smmmbgon) | - 4912  Niepolomitse Municipality (Poland)
dgbozndomo@g@o
Bmbeo “assgemhabmo | - 8 443 Foundation “Save the Children”
35333900”
bmzga00L m@Gmemzomas 20 097 14391 NRC
Lodgm
9365000l 0065336 Immdals 43 900 -  Eurasia Partnership Foundation
gmbron
3bgMBongsbol sbomasdms 787,12 7992 Azerbaijan Young Leaders Associa-
oMo Sbm(305(300 tion
Lodmgomagm gobgomatgdals | - 1633 CIDA
booggb@m
Bgbgonl Hgb3mdmazol Logmbm 45 664 -  The Embassy of Czech Republic
3d3L "gagmbgmoe” 3792 - LTD “Geo-cell”
bgmmo Ne 198 4000 - School N 198
“MWH” 3mbbm& 30430 30 640 1130 MWH Consortium
000 bybdmasmgds — - 50015  Open Society Institute
0bbBoGnEo
000 bydmasmgds — 96 756 62 547 Open Society Foundation — Georgia
LogoMmggmm
bogdggemBmddgom 3m3sbogomy- 6 407 1865 CHCA

™o (396@ M0 “ogbsbgon”
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gmbro "bmbyde”

“9095b0” bagMmedm@mabm 3mb-
Lom@ob@goo

3om@bommgdo bodommnggmm

Lobsmbm mbngg@bodgGms
39635bmma sbmzosz00b

bogoGmnggmmb ggamoasmn

B0k gd9MEG0b gmboo
33MmEa3
30630baq30b mbaggMboGgd0

LogoMmggmmb 656 3o

LogoGmggmml Lodmgomagm
3063000561980b sbm(z05(300

3Mbgxmogd@&qdabe oo
Ima3o6s 3gdsms bogMmsdmm-

obm (39680

3933060 5©58056980bsmgals
356Ls 3 gdmm DOMbzelb Mm3
Logotmgdgb

0553509050 3MbGEmMmabs
%563-
Aogrmdol gfmzbyma (396& M0
6dob 3Gm@nJ@&qdal 36s63mg-
dgmms 3033060

©>  bLobdmasmMgdcogo

Jomms abo(z00803980b dbom-
©335960 X3 PO

0bogosmaco
3d93mbBommmmdgdo

2492

3 557,4

16019

2250
995

2829,79

49 500

4188

15 304

20 154

5165

58 582

10814

34 541
3231

3523

2726

1381

13316

Found “Sokhumi”

AFC Consultants International

GmbH
Partners Georgia

IDAY

Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES)
APRODEV

Birmingham University

Bank of Georgia

Civil Society Development Associa-
tion

International Centre for Conflict and
Negotiation

Union for children in need of special
care

National Centre for Disease Control
and Public health

Dairy produce union
Women Initiative Support Group

Contributions from Individuals
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3.1 embm@mqdabasb domgdyma gguman Labbmgda (668 547 msma)
TOTAL INCOME FROM DONORS (668 547 GEL)

amabnﬂb 39630056930 @060 mos bsbmaspmyds —

EE°D°65395§6: b “bagoGaggmem”/OSGF 14,44% ~ (96 756 Gel)
L

(399 073 Gel)

I EED 399 073 Gel (59,60%)
L

236m33330600b 63633m3sa96mmds

I FES-16015 Gel (2,39%)
- LsgsBoggmmdn 9,61% — (64309 Gel )

] ICCN-2829,79 Gel (0,42%)
-

The Embass
o Y

£33 a CN| E,
. of Czech Republic - 45 664 Gel (6,8%) a3Ga%banb @ /

JMORO
Eurasia Partnership Foundation - 6,567% (43 900 Gel)
| Eurasia Partnership
- Foundation — 43 900 Gel (6,567%)

Bgbgmob Ggb3ndmonzob bogmBm/

- o
.. ELS 61300 Cel ©.C1%) The Embassy of Czech Republic - 6,8% (45 664 Gel)
I OSGF —96 756 Gel (14,44%) @EopFob gd9GEb gmbro
. FES - 16 015 Gel (2,39%) 3™63m0gd§3d0bs @ 3mmads@sgdsms
bagHnsdmmobe (3968 6n/

ICCN - 0,42% (2 829,79 Gel)

o 363930330 b3b3oM Jgdm 3mgdsms a56ds3M G gds:
EED - Church Development Service/g3mmgbool gobgomatgdals basg 968 m
OSGF - Open Society — Georgia Foundation/gmbgo ,cm00 babmgommagds — bogomggmm®
FES - Friedrich Ebbert Stiftung /g3 oob 93680l gmbon
EU-Delegation of the European Union to Georgia /936 m 30330600 BodmBagqgbmmds badstmggmman
ICCN-Intcnational Centre for Conflict and negotiation/3mbg3emng8gdol o dmmadatis jgdsms bogm-
»3dmMabm (39660

3.2 336gma bgMgabgdoo (§F960639300 S 3MBLYMEGS(309300) Jomgdymo Jgdmbagsema
Income from services provided (trainings and consultations)

3L "xggmbgea” / LTD “Geo-cell” 3792
o%gﬁ)bonxoﬁob oboqraocbﬁ)Qo oMo Sbm(305(300 787,12
Azerbaijan Young Leaders Association

Jomms aboz05@ 03980l boMsdFgH0 gayn / Women Initiative Support Group 4188,19
bgmeo Ne 198 / School Ne 198 4000
“MWH” 306bm 309980 / MWH Consortium 30 640
gmboon "bmbdn” / Found “Sokhumi” 2 491,98
©553500983m 3MbGMmMmabs s bodmasmgdfngn gobIMMmgEmmdal 49 500
96m36amo (396@ 60 / National Centre for Disease Control and Public health

LogoGmggmmb 856 30 / Bank of Georgia 2250
LogoGmggmmb bodmgomadm gobgomamgdol sbmzos(zns 995
Civil Society Development Association

Lobaombm mbnggMbodg@oms agMdsbygmoa sbmz05(300L bLogoMmmggmmb gomosma 35574
DVYV international Regional Office for Caucasus

bm@39800b mBmEgomms badgm 20 096,8
Norwegian Refugee Council Regional Council (NRC)

Logggmdmddgom 30dsbo@stmmo (396@ M0 “oxbsbgon” 6407, 41

Charity Humanitarian Centre “Abkhazeti” (CHCA)
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4. bOﬁxO/GOQQO g‘mﬁﬂb abbs@b

20// 5:&”0[} / 005361‘)@06'2077 g@ﬂb 3’ @nga&ﬁﬂb 5.)073@00) 3‘7(617!’7@01!00)30[’

Statement of Cash Disbursement

For the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011

VR3N6OLEAIBNIRN
bI&XIB0
36ma@33gma bosMxggda
1. bsdmgsmagdm
LasdmasEmMgdab LEEYJGNFHsns
ad>dmogMmgds
3Mma ool 3mmME0boMgdob bat-
%900 (396bmbamn, sedyzaemmds,
BMbL3MEAG0Mgds, 3maMsdaboob
053533069590 bofgqdo)
0930l gobgomamgdal Ggba@L (396-
GGab 39damds (§gdogmcn dbsMoag-
9615, 3mbo@mEMnban s JgxisLgds,
0bggm@m3o(300L goa(3939, 393306M0)

LodmasmMgdFngn mEgabadbszogdals
0bgm@ds(30moa, & 946039600 s
30b56LyH0 FbomeadgmMa(bmsnsmuMa
396063gmdal gobgomsmgds, dozmMm-
acb@gd0, §Mgbnbaqdo)
2. 3nboi03smuMa doyxg§gdab
a353¢30635mm3s
3Mma®adnlb 3mmmeobomgdols bam-
%900 (3gObmbama, segyyMgammds,
BMbL3MMEG0Mgds, 3maMmadobosb
053533009310 boM g gdn)
Lo 3obmb3gdmm dmmbmgbscms dmbo-
&mcabgo
b0 xgE0b Imbo@mmabao (s65mnbo,
3MBLymE@Go309d0, Mg3mdgbos(zngdo,
31dmn 3530900, 39005 @ORSMZS)
3. 96369 mbgbg osmmaanb
Bsmdsmmgs
3Omaa30lb 3mmMoabomgdol bom-
®9%0 (396bmbamn, sednzammmds,
BMbL3MEAEG0Mgds, 3MaMsdaboob
©5 353306 93mmo batggdo)

138,224

857,659
391,334

159,566

130,080

101,688

199,944

92,615

50,218

57,111

266,381

66,236

ADMINISTRATION COSTS
Program costs
1. Empowerment of

Civil Society

Program coordination (Personnel, Equ

ipment, Transportation,program  related
costs)
Activities with Community Develop-

ment Resource Centre (technical sup-
port; monitoring&evaluation; information
sharing;networking)

Activities on informational, technical and
financial assistance for CSOs (SE promo-
tion, small financial support, advanced
trainings)

2. Transparent Municipal budgeting

Program coordination (Personnel, Equ
ipment, Transportation,program  related
costs)

Monitoring of implementation of low

Budget Monitoring (analyzing, consulta-
tions, recommendations, publications, me-
dia coverage)

3. Policy dialogue at national level

Program coordination (Personnel, Equipm
ent, Transportation,program related costs)
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begoomyFo 3GMaMmedgdal Imbo@m®-
abgo (s6smaba, 33my3s, Mg3m3gbos-
(30990, 358m (333900, 390005 OBSM30)
Lodmasmgdobomzolb 360d36g9mm3zs6
Logombgddg Lyd@mMmsdmEnbo ©ob-
39b0gdo > 3mbLyer@ (3090 (33emg-
39, 00b3gbogdo, 45dm (398930, g0
RIB>G3)

17,570

182,575

Monitoring of Social Programs (analyzing,
survey, recommendations, publications,
media coverage)

Activities on cross sectoral discourse and
consultations on issues of public concern
(research, discussions, publications, media
coverage)

9dgez0

7,425

Reserve
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Management of Center of Strategic Researches and Development of Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Center of Strategic Researches
and Development of Georgia (Organization), which comprises statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2011 and the statement of cash receipts and disbursements and
cash flow statement for the year then ended, also a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. The financial statement has been prepared by
management according to the policy disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
(further Accounting Policy).

Management’s responsibility for the Financial Statement

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial
statements in accordance with the Accounting Policy, which is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of the financial statements under the circumstances, and for the such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Organization's preparatien and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the
statement aof financial position of Center of Strategic Researches and Development of
Georgia as of 31 December 2011, and of its statement of cash receipts and disbursements
and cash flow statement for the year then ended, in accordance with the Organization
Accounting Policy.

31 May 2012 ﬁﬁo ‘ﬁ"ﬁc

member of BDO Intarnational Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
firms
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Ceanter for Strategic Research and Devel-
opment of Georgia co gratedul to Dr. Bl
MeCate, Dr. Angus MeCabe and Dr.
Felen Farnrncs (United Ringdam) for work
on the nedrafting and preparation of final
English tert.
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